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THE BERMONDSEY MURDER.

‘0 the south side of the Thames, in the region of tan-pits and suburban gardens known as
3 ondsey, there stands a new range of small houses, known as Minver-place. Here, in ofie
. of these houses, No. 3, dwelt with his wife, for a short time antecedent to the 9th of August,
. pman namea Frederick George Manning. Manning’s father was a sergeant in the Somerset
:‘ﬂ#in, and resided a long time in Taunton, where he was for many years the lessee of the
rkot tolls, and of several turnpikes in the town and neighbourbood and other parts of
,Somersetshire. He also for some years kept the Bear public-house, Taunton, and was much
fmechd in every relation of life. He died about four or five years ago, leaving his widow
.and Frederick George Manning, his favourite surviving son, his representatives. The father
Joft a larger portion of his property to the subject of this sketch than to any of his other
_c'l_l_ildree%, and a share expectant on the death'of the mother, which shortly afterwards
eccurred.
,. . Manning’s first connexion with-his wife is involved in some obscurity. He was formerly
'ip the service of the Great Western Railway Company, as guard, and there is no doubt was
;iéigl;:ated in the extensive robberies which were committed on that line. It will be re-

-collected, that, in the short spice of a twelvemonth, bullion, in boxes, to the amount of
. , was stolen from the train of which Manniug was guard. He was discharged
‘the 'commy’a service, and was not agiin heard of until the mail robbery took place, in
Janugry ; and, a8 no elue could be found to ths plunder from the up-mail, suspicion
Smmetmtely alighted upon Manning and his wife. Here it should be observed, that Manning
Mjome months before become landlord of the White Hart Inn, at Taunton, where for the
irst time Mrs. Manning appeared. They were both taken into custody, and after undergoing
examination were dismissed, in consequence of no property being found in their posses~
Rl;é at the same time iL was quite clear that the prisoners were connected with the
Aobbéry, and participated in the plunder. Iu fa:t, Nightingale, Poole’s confederate, whilst
at Exeter, assumed the name of Manning.
_ The ramours circulated at Taunton with respect to the Mannings” connexion with Poole and
%htingale (who were subsequently convicted before Lord Denman, at the spring assizes at

i xeter, and sentenced to fifteen years’ transportation), proved so detrimental to the White
‘Hart, and they were luoked upon with such suspicion, that it was found necessary to

NO. 3, MINVER-PLACE, THE SCENE O THE MURDER.
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dispose of the buslness, Manning and his wife leaving Taunton and coming up" to-
London, where, in a few weeks, they opened a beer-shop in the vicinity of the Hackney -

road; but this lasted a very short time, and the place was abruptly closed up by

Mrs. Manning absconding, taking with her the greater part of the property. This was

done at the wish of the deceased, Patrick .0’Connor, who had prepared a home: for Brs.

Manning at another part of the metropolis. Manning traced her, through the cabman who

had driven her to O’Connor’s house. They made up matters, and remained for some time

in apartments, and eventually took possession of the house where the murder was after-

wards committed.

Maria Manning’s maiden name was De Roux. She is a native of Lausanne, in Switzerland,
and inherited some small tgatrimony from her parents, both of whom are deceased. About six
years since she served in the family of Sir Lawrence Palk, at Haldon House, Devonshire, as

" maid to Lady Palk ; and while travelling to and fro with this family it is n‘llsposed she made
the acquaintance of Manning, who was at that time a guard on the Great Western Railway.

. At the decease of Lady Palk, in the year 1846, she obtained a situation as maid to Lady Blan-
t{re, the second daughter of the Duchess of Sutherland. She came to reside with her lady-

_ship at Stafford House, in July, 1846, and accompanied her to Scotland in the autumn of the

_same year. While attending her ladyship on a brief continental tour, before proceeding to

_Scotland, she met with the deceased, O’Connor, who seems to have been struck with her ap-
pearance and manners—so much so as to have offered her marriage. In the early part of tlie
season 1847 she returned to town with Lady Blantyre, and it appears was frequently visited
at Stafford House by both Manning and O’Connor, the latter of whom appeared to entertain
a very warm affection for her. Manning, however, seems to have been the most favoured
suitor, and on the 27th of May, 1847, she was married to him at St. James’s Church, Piccadilly,
After her marriage she accompanied Manning into Devonshire for a week or ten days; and
then, returning to Stafford House, went with Lady Blantyre to the Continent a second time,
one motive for her doing so being; as it is alleged, the opportunity it afforded of arranging her
own affairs abroad previously to settling down to married life in England.

On her return from the Continent she went to reside with her husband in lodgings at 2,
Church-street, Paddington, Manning still filling the situation of guard on the Great Western
Railway. We should here state, that it is believed, Manning, in prosecuting his addresses,
‘succeeded in persuading Maria De Roux that he was entitled to property under his mother’s
‘will, amounting to between £600 and £700. This was of course only a fiction ; but 8o deeply
did he lay his schemes that he actunally drew up a will, which has been found among the

rs in his wife’s possession, by which he bequeathed this property to his “ very dear and
B: oved wife,” to the exclusion of all other claimants, appointing her executor, conjointly
with Henry Poole, recently convicted of the mail robberies on the Great Western Railway,
who is one of the subscribing witnesses to the deed. There does not appear to be the least
reason to believe that Manning had any property himself, but with the money he obtained
from his wife, very shortly after their marriage, he took the public-house at Taunton.

Patrick O’Connor, the wretched victim, first arrived in London from Ireland in
February, 1832, or at least early in the spring of that year. He had a letter of in-
troduction from his brother, now priest of the rich parish of Templemore, near Thurles,
county of Tipperary, to a gentleman of influence, living at the time in chambers in the
Temple. The gentleman in question is a native of Ireland, and a friend of the murdered
man’s brother, the Reverend Father O’Connor. The gentleman received O'Connor
kindly for his reverend brother’s sake, and asked him what were his views, and the nature
of the situation be was seeking for. (’Connor said he wished to enter the police, and the
gentleman, to forward his views, gave him a lettez to Mr. Mayne, one of the police commis-
sioners. It is probable the letter was never delivered by O’Connor, for a few days after he
had received it he cha:tged his mind and said he would not become “ a thief taker.”

In about six weeks after his first introduction he called on the gentleman, and, much to
the latter's surprise, he produced a £50 note, and requested the gentieman to take care of it
for him. The gentleman took charge of the note, and knowing O’Connor’s poverty, eagerl
enquired how he became possessed of it. The latter said his mother had sent him £15, wit
which he had purchased contraband tobacco and cigars, and trading surreptitiously in them,
had amassed the amonnt of the £50 note. The gentleman at the time believed the story
to be true, and a8 O’Connor was then endeavouring to obtain a situation in the Excise,
he told him ironically that his practical knowledge of smugyling would, no doubt, if known *
to the Excise commissioners, prove a great recommendation in his favour. Before the close
of the year 1832, Patrick O’Connor had placed in the gentleman’s hands no less altogether:
than £184, £100 of which the gentleman invested in the funds at O'Connor’s request. This
rapid accumulation of mone{ excited the gentleman’s surprise, and almost his suspicions that
everything was not right. In the winter 1832-33 O’Connor obtained, through tbe influence
of the late Bishop of Llandaff, we believe, the situation of tide-waiter in the port of London..
In the meautime he had been, bit by bit, withdrawing from the gentleman’s hands the £84
not invested, and got back the last of it to buy a bed, which he said he was obliged to take
about with him from one ship to another in the Thames, in the discharge of his new daties.

He bad hardly been installed in his situation of tide-waiter, when he sent an attorney’s-
letter to the gentleman, demanding payment of the whole sum of £184. The gentleman:
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had no acknowledgement from O’Connor that he had received back £84 of it and probably

1] g3 would have been instituted, had not the gentleman, through ‘his soliciter,
who was a friend of the solicitor of O'Connor, proved the latter’s dishonesty by means-of the:
gentleman’s leundress, to whom. O’Connor, on_discovering that she was a widow, ywith =

.. pension of £26 a year, and earning in the Temple, as laundress to several legal gentlemen,

nearly £100 a year besides, made a proposal of marriage, and showed her ‘one eveninF Y
mnds, which he said he had just received from her master, being, a portion of money lent’to-
' O’Connor’s solicitor, on hearing this, refused to have anything more to dowith him, and¥
the gentleman sold out stock to the amount of £100, and through his solicitor retursed

O’Connor his money. The woman in question was a respectable Irishwoman, li,vizg rent free

in the kitchens attached to the gentleman’s chambers, receiving £15 a year from im for hex

services, and it is more than probable she would have married O’Connor had she not dis—
covered his ingratitude and want of probity.
After this transaction the gentleman made inquiries as to O'Connor’s method -of raising

. money, and he found that he had got introduced to the late Bishop of Llandaff, Mr. Darby, M:P.,

.and other proselyting Protestants, and that he knew of the Bexley fuud, »ppropriated to the
conversion of Roman Catholics, chiefly to the religion of the Established Church. To these
mtlemen O’Connor represented himself as: one persecated - for his. religious doubts by his

-. brother, the Rev. Dr. O’Connor, and other Catholic clergymen ; and he also alleged, there not

. ; being the slightest ground for the truth of the allegation, that his.-brother had wronged hins

... vespecting money bequeathed to the family by the Misses Tobin, who had been nuns in the

. ancient Ursuline convent of Thurles.. By these representations O'Connor insinuated: himself

into the good graces of the Bishop of Llandaff, Mr. Darby, Mr. Broderick, the grandson of the

- then Archbishop of Cashel, the late Lady Osborne, mother of Mr. Bernal Osborne, the mem-
ber for Middlesex, and others, and obtained from them mnot only large sums of money, but

. the situation that afterwards led to his connexion with the Customs as a gauger in the Lon-

don Docks. . Promotion to the latter situation is understood to be owing: to the influence of

Mr Sheil, when one of the commissioners of Greenwich HosBit,nl, who was indebted for

his election to represent Tipperary chiefly to the exertions of Dr. O’Connor, Father Laffan,

Mr. P. Fo, » and other friends of O’Conner. Patrick O'Connor appears to have beea a

man who would do anything for money ; and it is more than probable, that a passion for the

person of Mrs. Manning was not the main cause of his intimacy with her and her husband,
but rather that it was based on his being leagued with Manning in some money-getting

transactions and speculations. o .o

'}_‘hlf circamstances under which O'Connor made the acquaintance of Maria de Roux sare

as follow : — . .

", Intheearly part of the year 1846, 0'Conuor, having obtained a fortnight’s leave of absencs,.
took it into his head to gto Boulogne. . He embarked at London-Bridge wharf, on board.
one of the London and Boulogne boats, in which Maria de Roux was also a passenger, she

being then on her way to join Lady Blantyre, on the Continent. In the « vening, after all the
other passengers had retired to bed, O'Connor and Maria de Roux were left together in the

- saloon cabin, and here their first intimacy commenced. She appears to have communicated

. her name and the /position she occupied to O'Connor without any reserve, for upon his return

to England he meotioned the fact ot having met such a lady to his friends, and expreased
his intention of calling upon.her at Stafford House as soon as she returned from the Continent.
That he did so, and that a correspondence was kept up between the two parties for some time,
is also known, O*Connor having trequently spoken of visits he had made to Stafford House”
and also exhibited letters received from Maria de Roux. One of these letters indi-

. cated that she was expecting or desiring that O’Connor- should make her his wife; for she

asks him, “ Of what good is it to continue our correspondence? You never speak of marriage.”
Among his friends the deceased made no secret of his intimacy with Maria de Roux, but he
- mever led any of them to believe that he had any serious intention of marrying her. His
object seemed rather to be, to make it appear that he had great influence over her, and that
she was very fond of him. On one occasion in company where O’Connor was, the conversa-

. tion turned upon the favourite actress, Madame Celeste, and a person present remarked. om
the very engaging.effect which her peculiar accentuation had upon the audience. ..O"Connor
remarked:that he greatly admired it himself, and that her pronunciation of the English lan-

. gugn was very like that of < Mauridhe Rhus,” as.he was accustomed to style Mariade Roux.
ollowing up the observation, he remarked that she wrote asshe spoke, and, producing a nets,

- o handed it to a friend present, and requested her to read it aloud. . After perusing a fow

lines, the lady saw that it wag, in common parlance, a “ love letter ;” and onmaking 8 remark

. to that effect, O’Connor laughed, and appeared highéy delighted that his asce! over

Maria de:Roux should be generally known. When de Roux married Manning,.it is quite
true that O’Connor addressed a letter to her, upbraiding het with infidelity to him; bus his
friends believe that this was sheer bypocrisy, and that he cared nothing whatever sbout the
matter. “ Mauridhe Rhua,” the name by which O'Connor always designated Mys, Manning,

: &lﬂibernimexpmdon,ﬁgnifying“lledmrﬁ; o Lo

‘The following are copies of notea written by Manning to Patrick. O’Conner, on. the
two Wednesdays . preceding the murder. They both bear the Borough post-mark.and ae

. .atamped as delivered respectively on the 1st and 8th Auguat, as directed. The letters.are
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a cevbatinvot literatim : it will be:seen that the firet-sspreially : Detzays -the - weiter’s dm-
c«mbw}o@cﬁ the English langusge. It roostims 1~ e

«“PrAr 0'Coxnor: 1 shall be most to see you this day to my House to dinner at

‘5. o°Jock. Yours affection, MARIA mmu—lz ©Connor, . 4 , London Déck—
- (Paid,)—Wednealay morning.”

- Jotie net-kmiown -whether the deceased:dined witlr the Maunings..an :this day:; dut onthe
: following Wednesdny he received the amnexed note :— .

‘%« Dear O’'Conxor: We shall be happy to see ybu to dine with us to-day, ath'l'!-pﬁzf
a'clock. Yoursaffection, MARIA MaxX~NG.—P." 0°Connor, , London Dock.-—Wéd-
nesday morning.”

This note invited the deceased to dinner on ths day: p ing is murder. He @&d not
dine in'Minwver-place on this day ;- bnﬁeaw;:rnied;by M. W ‘went thers at a ‘hate
“heur in the eveniug, and left after having his temples rubbed by~ Mxs Manning with®au
'de Cologae, in conssquence of his fealing' rather faint. - The Mannings-did'not ask O°Cesmor
to.dine with them on the following dsy in the presence of Mr. Walshe ;; they: were a \4
*too atfidl for that, and delayed inviting him until the following ' merning, when' Mrs. Man-
ming again wrote to him, at the London Docks, a note 'which the unhapgy msan is' proved to

I;.lgve wnmhh‘friondabveﬂe-mxuﬁn and Gmham,fonmaﬁngrthno:;ml:.dou as
‘was on his way to be murdered. This note was of course destroged by: his assassins, as
nothing has-been seen df it sinee.

Patrick' O’Connor-was last seen alive en the night ¢f Thursday, the 9th of August;
as Iate: as tem o’clock, smoking and- in ‘conversation with Mrs. Manniog. - On the
-morning of Friday the deceased was absent from himdutxlt the London Docks, .andthe
day wore on without his comini. It'was thesame on Saturday. - ‘Sundsyatd Monday lpeed,
- and no tidings-of him reached his friends; and-on-Tuesdsy sindster apprehensions began to
““be entertained: ing his fate. ' An i who had o him on London Eidge
o the evening of Thursday, came forward and stated thathe had told kim- he was 6a his
» way to Manning’s-house at Bermondsey ; and s his intimacy with this family waswell knewn,
'hﬁ:ﬁwwm instituted there by his surviving relatives'ant the police; who lmd been sppsed
" of kis suspicious absenee. These inquiries were answered by Mre. Munning with coolnéssand
-oomposure, and copjecture was therefore completely at fault as to 'what bad ‘become ofthe

: g man.
Two days later, that is to say, on the 17th of August, the police, in the' prosectition
W Cheir srosearches, returned to );he'houe. -« The w\vu'ﬂm&q but:the birds had:fled.”
REswwing and his wife ‘bad left in “hot haste,”-stripping -the: house bf all its furniture,
~#wiliith wis afterwards discovered to have:been sold “in a lump® toa meighbouting broker.
. “wengthened by this circumstance in- their suspicions, the: police' effected an entry upsnthe
\ , and explored the apartments and garden. ‘- Even 'this ‘wus in vain, until one of
e officars, more sharp-sighted or better«informed onthe subject than the- others, thought
he detected mome trace of recent removal in one of the ﬂnglamnes-with which the back-
“kitchen was paved, and trying the mortar of the joints with:hié kuife, found it to be g{:.ite
soft. Upon this they proceeded .to take up the flags anit remove the earth. beneath ; - when,
in & square oblong: hole filled-up with' quicklime, they-discovered tlie body of Q’Conhor,
‘ying on its face, and witlritslegs trussed up to-the haunches, to make it fit the reeeptucle.
rapidly had the lime done its work in .consuming the corpse; that its identity was enly
established by the remarkable and less'perishable featares of an extremely prominent chin
‘#nd-a set'of false teeth. This'was on the Friday. ' On: the Wedn preceding, “Mrs.
* Manning had been interrogated ‘that very spot on the sabject of nor’s ngnnee;
and it is presumed the murder took: place on the night of the Thursdxy ing—that is
"to:my, five clear days before. Yet all this while, »s she:bad noservant, she must have'per-
* *foymed : the ordinary occupations of & household in this kitchen—-a fact - inferentially preved
<~ By thw'staténsent:of one of the witnesses—thet the.room wasvery cleen on the dsy'ithe
'Ioliw called forthe first time to .make inquiries after thie : murdered man; and she’ntust
rSave cooked the food she ate, and perhaps consumed the clotlies he wore, atitlie firs which
v rwas: o closé to - the'lody of the victim as .almost to be capable of imparting warmth to

My . . .
e T et e o el priency ety attod
1 on ite-page, 18 one of & newly-built and a
~Wow, consisting of d:‘:‘ms—ggo kitehens b the basement, pu!omqud}a-iowﬁbve
‘ithems, and.-is approached from the ‘street by.a -flight df ssveral stonewteps: ‘It waatidken
" by the supposed murderers at Midsunmmer last. ’ S
" “How Patrick O’Connor was murdered is not kmown, further than'the fact that he’had
seventeen -wounds on the back of his head; and a-pistol bullet-lodged in the skin over'the
right eye. It is possible that he was slain ih' a étate of intoxication. That’he was an' ab-
- stemious ‘'man in the matter of strong 'drink, is admitted by-all kisfrieods; but it iis also
~ «otened that: he ‘was latterly in mortal fear of cholers,and that be:had'-beerr seen drunkith
‘Qﬂlﬂg:;q}ort wine, which he had taken as a prevemtive of that: disesse. That hetaay
have induced to partake of strong liquors, under the fear of cholera, is by no means




' ‘HAEK XITCRENW

ERQNT KITGHEN

AREA
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NEW WESIOH S\TREETY

———

"rSROVNDPLAN OF MANNING'S HOUSE, SHOWING THE' HOLE WHERE .
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an improbable supposition, though the idea that stupefaction was caused by steeping his
tobacco in laudanum is much more probable, seeing that the post mortem examination did
not indicate the presence of orium in the stomach by the smell; but, at all events, it is nearly
certain that he was insensible when he was murdered, that he was in a recumbent position,
very likely lying a-bed, and that he lay on his left side, with his face rather downwards.
All the wourds on his head—which were sufficient to cause death, without going beyond
them to look for another cause—were at the right side; and the bullet, which may have been
fired at him to finish the work begun with the blunt cutting instrument wherewith these
fractures were effected, was found over the right eye, as if driven through the head from
the rear. That this was the case, and that the projectile in question was propelled by an
insufficient power, is obvious from the fact that the bullet lodged in the skin over the right
eye. This would lead in some sort to the conclusion that it was fired from a badly-loaded air-
gun, or with a small charge of gun-cotton from a common pistol or other fire-arm. The
course of this wound, however, shows that it was not fatal; and, theiefore, the murder must
have been consummated with a heavy hammer or some similar instrument, for the back
part of the skull was found entirely beaten in fragments into the brain by the violence of
successive blows.

From circumstances that have since transpired, very little doubt exists that the murder
of O’Connor was premeditated for some time, and that the house in Minver-place was
actually taken for that purpose. The Mannings, through their extravagance and dissipation,
had got rid of nearly all their property, with the exception of the furniture, and their circum-
stances became critical; scarcely had they been a week in the house than suspicion was
excited amongst the inhabitants of the neighbourhood by their extraordinary conduct
They appeared, to use the words of the person who resides next doer,  “to be up all night ;
there was nearly always a light burning; and there always appeared to be something
mysterious going on.”—Mr. O’Connor, the deceased, was frequently at the house, and his
jocularity with Mrs. Manning was markedly observed by the persons residing in the
houses on either side. He was almost always to be seen smoking, in the company of
Manning, at the back-parlour window, and also in the small garden at the rear of the
house. That a liaison had for some time existed between the deceased and Mrs. Manning,
is (Rite certain; and that Manning was aware of the fact is equally apparent, for as late
as Thursday, the 9th of August, the day on which he wassupposed tohave been murdered,
Manning and O’Connor were in tke garden smoking together. The deceased seems to have
been frequently cautioned by his friends to discontinue his visits to Mrs. Manning ; but he
always observed in reply, that he did not fear any harm, as they were on the best terms,
and he did not like to abandon an old companion. In order to show that the act was
long premeditated, as far back as the 11th of July Manning went to the shop of Mr.
Evans, ironmonger, in King William-steeet, City, to purchase a crow-bar, about 11lb.
weight, for, as he said, to lift heavy things up, “such as stones.” It is pretty clear, from
the appearance of the place where the body was concealed, that it had been some time
before prepared, and an instrument of the kind would be necessary to raise up the stones,
which are large Yorkshire flags. .

o

INQUEST ON THE BODY.

The inquisition was talen, August 18, at the New Leather-market Tavern, New Weston
street, Bermond:ey, by Mr. Carter, one of the Coroners for Surrey, and a jury of thirteem
of the most respectable tradesmen in the neighbourhocd. Fourteen jurymen had been sworn,
but Mr. J. Meade, a friend of deceased’s, objected to one of them, viz. Mr. Coleman, builder
and owner of the house in which the murdered body was found, on the ground that he
would be required as a witness. The Coroner allowed the objection, and the name of Mr.
Coleman was struck off the jury-list.

The jury having been sworn, C .

The Coroner said: Gentlemen, the first thing I shall have to call upon you to do is, to see
the body, and then I shall call witnesses to identify it. When the body is identified I can
give an order for interment, to be carried into effect, of course, only after the body has been
examined by the medical gentleman that may be appointed to do so by this Court.

The jury then went and took a view of the body. It was still naked as it was found, the
legs amingighs baving béen tied up to' tie body ‘with a sew rope. Though but partially
covered with Jime, decomposition had rapidly set in, or, at any rate, there was extensive dis-
colouration cf the face; neck, and. thorax ; and it was:only by the: chin (deceased had a re-
markably thin and projecting one), and a set of, false {get{. that those best acquainted with
deceased could identify the body.

The first witness called and sworn was .

Mr. Pierce Walshe, who said: I have seen the body of a man at No. 3, Minver- rhee, New
‘Weston-street, in the parish of Bermondsey, and I have not the slightest reasonable doubt as
to the identity of that body. I recognise it by its features; and the person to whom it be-
longed was named Patrick O’Connor, who was a gauger in the London Docks. I think his.
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age was about fity. I have known him personally since the 26th of April last. He wasm
personal friend, and his sister is married to a cousin of mine. He resided at 21, Green

street, Mile-end, and was a single man. I was with him at No, 3, Minver-place, on Wed- -
nesday, the 8th of August, and saw him last alive at twelve o'clock that night. We partad,.:
at the corner of Commercial-streef, Whitechapel, after having been at No. 3, Minver-plsos
He was then in a good state of health, )

The inquest was then adjourned. .

The adjourned inquest was, resumed on the 24th, wl.en, amongseveral other witnesses, the..
following were examined :—

- Barnes, p:lice-consuble 256, K division, proceeded on Friday the 17th, in company
with police-constable Burton, of the M division, to No. 3, Minver-| New Weston-street,
Bermondsey, On arriving there, B unlocked the door of the house and went.in. Bur- .
ton had the key in his possession. ere was no other person in our company. We looked
in the front and back 1pa'ﬂmn', and then in the front kitchen. We then went into the bagk.
kitchen—it was on a level with the front under ground. The back kitchen was :OVeL:

ith large flag stones; all the rooms were quife empty. I observed a dmnp mack. the.

of two of the stones, which induced us to take out our knives and try the mortar. I

it was wet. Burton did the same. I then told Burton I should not be satisfied until thoss
two stones were taken up; and Burton went out and borrowed a shovel, a crowbar, and. a ..
boat-hook without a handle. We then prised up the smallest of the two stoness and I rem
marked to Burton that the stone was neyer laid by a mason, because it had mortar all under
it: it had a bed of mortar under it, instead of the mortar being merely round the We
then removed the other stones, which had the same appearance. I took the shovel and.re-.
moved the mortar and earth, assisted by Burton, who uu&;hq ‘fowbu. At about the depth -
of twelve inches, I found a Pleu of linen rag, It was about the size ofbotjlgng‘l‘i‘mdl.and e
I took it up and smelt it. Iremarked to Burton that jt smelt very much gsif it had,belonged
to a dead body, and if we proceeded we should most likely find the body. We then continned .
the digging, when I saw somet.hinﬁ else which I thought was another white rag. I toek
hold of it and shook it, and said, “ Here is the toe of a man.” Burton was then about to leave. .
for assistance, but I said % Wait a moment,” and I removed the earth. and exfo,.ed the whole
foot. Burton then went to the station for some assistance, which camg, and 1 dug on farther.
until T came to the person's loins, and, with assistance, we found the dead body of a man..
there, lying on his face. ' The body was buried in unslacked lime, with the legs tied up round
the hauuches with stout cord: they were bent back. Befare the body was removed from the .
hole, Mr. Lockwood (the surgeon) came, and I saw him take from the mouth . set.of falae.
teeth, which he washed in water, which we had at . The body was then taken out and
removed jnto the front kitchen : it was quite naked, I should thin| L_xt. had been dead a fort-
night, by the smell. The body was buried in a of lime two inches thick, and thers

about eigﬁhuen inches of earth above that. A Mr., Flynn, was brought from, the City,.
and he identified the bocigns beingbzhaat of Mr. Patrick O’Connpr. On, the maming. of this
day week, previous to finding the body, I went to 21, Greewood-street, Mile End-road, and ..
was shown a box, which wag said to be Mr. O’Conuar)y.. The box was locked when we.ex- .
amined it on the previous Monday. We then sealed it %ph and we found it sealed on. the...
Friday morning. It was opened on the Monda‘iby,M;., lynn. He forced it open. These...
wa a cash box on the top of some papers, which was unlocked. We opened it, and thers .
were three compartments in it, but there was nothing in them. There. were a quantity. of. '
memorands, I O U’s, and other papers, under one of the compartments. On Friday the. bex
was thoroughly searched, but no,thinﬁaof consequence was found, A basket, full of letters, was. .
found, and among t.bpﬁ. some of old dates from Mrs. Manning, but none of receat date.

James Barton, 272 M: Oa Tuesday nightig’xe 14th inst., about half-past eight o’clock, in
consequence of three friends of the deceased Mr. O’Connor coming to the palice station, where ..
1 was on duty, to make inqdiries respecting the deceased, Mr. eotor Cowland directed me
to make inquiries as to what became of him. I proceeded with Mr. Meade;and the other.two .
gentlemen to No. 3, Minver-place, New Weston-street, and finding the house. closed - up, I
‘went through the adjoining house, and got over the bl{'.i:lﬁ, with, the intention of examim- ..
ing the premises. During the time I was getting over the wall, Mr. Meada got. the key of :
the house, and opened the front door. I then, in company with Mr. Meade-and the two othes . .
gentlemen, looked over the house. By the appearance I thought the house,had been leftin . ..
very confused state. In the front kitchen there was a quantjty of-linen. In.the back. .
Kkitchen, over the two stones where the deceased was subsequently ound, & hrz::l: or.post~
manteau was lying open. In and around the box there was a quantity -of
apparel ; also a railway guard’s coat : these things about covered ge two stones. In each of -
the other rooms there were things strewed about. I looked over all the things which.I found,
but 1 found nothing which M.r.nﬁendg' and his friends snppoq;}l to. belong to Mr. O’Connor.. .
At that time we had no suspicion that the body was there. Naxt morning a Mmhnhn;lg‘
came and tried to unlock the door, but he did not succeed, as we had put the Jatch-key, in'the...
previous night. Mr. Bainbridge then went to the station-house, and I followed him, and. at. .
the station he wished to know the reason why we had gane to, the the previeus night, ..
ang I heard him say that he had purchased the goods from Mnnn_in.hfor 8, but.that he had.. .
not taken the railway coat and some other things away: the linen he said he had pothing.ta...
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do witk. He gave hig name at the station, snd said that Manning had just left his house.
‘We then returned to the house and stopped there, and saw him take away the remainder of
the goods, with the exception of the linen. Amongst the things which be took away was
a shovel, which stood against the copper-hole—that was in the back kitchen. I handed that

to Mr. Bainbridge myself. On the Friday I went to the house about twelve o'clock in the

day-time, accompanied by Barnes, to make a full search. We went down into the back

kitchen. I was standing on‘the nearest store to the window, and I said to Barnes, “ Here ave . .

two stoaes which look fresh,” and Barnes took his knife out of his pocket, and tried the sides
of the two stonea. - He found the mortar soft, and it smelt sour, like fresh mortar.

tried the joints of other stones, and found the mortar bard enough. We then proposed to
take the stones with the soft mortar up. We received no information which caused us to do

this. We removed two of the stones, which were together about five feet long and two feet
wide. On removing them, Barnes drew my attention to the untradesmanlike way in which
the stones had been laid, becanse there was mortar in the middle. On removing the mortar
we found a very hard substance, and the earth appeared to have been trodden down. I eased
the earth with the crow-bar, and Barnes shovelled it ont. We proceeded a little way, when
Barnes pulled out a piece of rag, and after proceeding a little further, Barnes drew my atten-

tion to the toe of the deceased. He then removed the remainder of the earth and exposed a N
portion of the foot of a person. The body could not have sustained any injury from the crow- -

bar. I then went and procured further assistance, and when I returned with Mr. Yates from
the station, and Mr. Burton, both inspectors, I saw a portion of the flesh, but I could not say”
whether it was the back or loins. I then, by direction of Mr. Yates, went for the friends of a
.gentlentan of the name of O’Connor, who was missing, of whom inquiries had been previ-
-oudly made. I procured the assistance of Mr. Flynn and Mr. O'Connor, the brother of the
- deceased, who returned with me. Upon my return the body wasin thé front kitchen—it was
the body of a man. The body was covered with lime. 1 should think it was four feet deep
where the head was lying. The body must have been there for some time. We found in the
-back bedroom a black satin stock, but it cannot be identified as belonging to the deceased. I.
found no stain of blood uponit. We examined the rooms most minutely, but there were no
stains of blood. There were marks on the ceiling of the back room, but I do not think they
‘were caused by a":{ly act of violence. Think they might have been occasioned by the removal
of a bedstead. We discovered no weapon of any kind about the house, * We hud not been

engaged in excavation more than ten minutes when we discovered the deceased’s toe. - No -

sperson had intimated to us a knowledge of where the deceased was.

Samuel Lockwood, sargeon, dayosed:-Am not at present practising my profession, I was .
eston-

in the neighbourhood of New street on Friday last, and some information I then
received caused me to go to No. 3, Minver-place, about half-past one o’clock r.M. I saw two
policemen at the door, and on my announcing myself as a surgeon, they admitted me. I
went down steps into the back kitchen, and there found that tﬁe slabs {u

yet buried in the earth. The earth was-tiien removed, and I noticed that the legs were bent.

e » d been removed,
and that digging was going on. I saw the feet of a person exposed in a hole, the body being. -

backwards against the haunches, and firmly tied there, which gave rise to the exposure of _

the toe. The head was considerably lower buried than the feet. I assisted in removing the

dirt.very careftilly, being afraid-that some injury might be done to the head of the body by

the ehovel. When we got to the head, I found a very extensive fracture on the superior part
of the head, rather behind. It was lurge enough for me to introduce my two fingers into it.
I bad seen the placards stating that a person was :muissing, who wore a set of f.lse teeth;
and the circumstance being alluded to at this time, I removed the dirt from the head and
face partially. to feel if there were any teeth in the mouth. I found a full set of false teeth
in the person’s mouth, and I ‘delivered them up to Mr. Slow, the summoning officer, after
washing them. The body was raised shortly afterwards in my presence, and carried into the

front kitchen. I noticed a considerable quantity of lime round about the body attached to it. -

The body was blue and in a state of decomposition. On examining the body after it was
raised, and in the preserce of Mr. Odling, I found another fracture at the back «f the head, on
the r';iln side. Mr. Odling also called my attention to a prominencé—a small hard Jump—
over the right eye-brow. There was no external wound there; and on my cutting down
upon the prominence, I extracted from it a rather large leaden slug or bullet, weighing nearly
three drachms. No weapon that might have discharged such a bullet was found on the
. premises to my knowledge. . )
Mr. George Odling was ¢alled and examined by the Coroner: I reside at No. 159, High-
. street, Borough, and am divisional surgeon to the M division of Metropolitan Police. 1 was
sent for about three o'clock on Friday last, by the police, to proceed to No. 3, Minver-place.

There 1 saw the dead body of a man, lying on his face, with his legs tied back, in a hole in

the back kitchen. The legs were in a reflex position, and the body was covered with line—
that is to say, the surface of the body had lime adhering to it. I examined the body in part
. a8 it lay, ana I discovered that the head was fractured. The body was eventually removed
into the front kitchen, where I made a further examination, and discovered a foreign body or
substance under the integuments over the right eye. That substance was loose, and I could
move it. I pointed it out to Mr. Lockwood, who has been examined to-day, and he with a
lancet then extracted the substance, which turned out to be a leaden bullet. At that time I



15

did not make any further examination of the bead; and beyond the tracture and the
bulet I did not discover any other injury to the body likely to have caused death.. I have
since made a post mortem examination, assisted by Mr. Lockwood. Before doing so we exr.1-
amined the body externally, and found no-other injuries except those which I have alread,
mentioned. 1 opened the head and abdomeu, but not the chest, because I did not think 1t .
necessary, as there was no wound externally, and the other injuries, which were apparent,
were sufficient to have destroyed life. The bead was first apened. I removed the greater
rtion of the hair, and, having done so, examined the head externally. The -
ibited as many as eighteen wcunds, many severe and deep—some deeper than others. el‘hey :
were on the right side, on the top, and at the back of the head. These appeared to have
been, for the most part, but not all, inflicted by a blunt instrument, for the bone was not cat, .
as would have been the case if it bad been a sharp instrument. They might have been pro-
duced by the back or sharp part of a hammer, about an inch and a haif wide, such as a brick-
layer’s hammer, without a division. Finding so many injuries to the scalp, I réflected it, ard,
of cpurse, thereby exposed the bone, and found the craniuin fractured and separated into many
pieces, some of which I now produce to the jury. They are sixteen in number, and formed
part of the cranium of the deceased. There were many more pieces uncollected, which I

ight have taken, with fissures or cracks. .
ml'fhe Coroner: Can you, ic consequence of the cranium being destroyed in the manner you -
have described, account for the fact of the bullet being found betweea the cranium and the
scalp?—Witness: No. The ijuries to the cranium and scalp clearly could not have been
done by the bullet. There was, however, an internal opening within t half an inch from
the precise spot where the bullet was found lodged.

The Coroner: Can you form any conclusion as to how the bullet came in the position in
which you found it >—Witness: It is impossible to say, but I should think it came from some
of the fractures which were apparent at the back of the head.

The Coroner: And in consequence of those extensive fractures you could not detect where
the bullet had entered 7—Witness: No, I could not. . There was one part of the surface which
had = dark appearance, such as gunpowder would make. .

Mr, William Massey was next sworn. He said: I am a medical student, and reside at
Swarkestone, a village in Derbyshire. I formerly lodged at No. 3, Minver-place. 1 left
there a month ago last Saturday. I had lodged there nine or ten weeks previously.
Frederick George Manning and Maria his wife were my landlord and landlady. There was .
no other member of the family. Maria’s Manning’s maiden name was Maria de Roux. - I.
ascertained this from seeing marks on certain. linen articles in my rooms. I took my meals
with Mr. and Mrs. Manning frelc}nent.ly while I lived there. They kept no domestic servant,
but engaged a person occasionally to clean the rooms. I have seen Mr. O’Connor there. I
was introduced to him by Manning. Daring the time I lodged there, I think Mr. O'Connor -
dined three times with Mr.and Mrs. Manning. He appeared to be on friendly terms with them.
1 visited Mr. O’Connor at his own lodgings twice in company with- Mr. and Mrs. Manning. .
1 never observed any improper degree of familiarity between Mr. O°Connor aud Mre. Manning.

I should say they ap) very friendly together, but I had .no ides there was anything = .
wrong going on between them.

Coroner : Did you ever hear the, Mannings speak of the circumstances of the deceased
man ?—Witness: Yes, fre}uently.' I have heard both of them speak of him as & man of
property—as being worth £20,000. ' ‘ .

Coroner: Have you ever had any conversation with Mr. Manning in reference to the de-.
chased O’Connov?—Witness: Yes; I have conversed with Manning, and also with his wife,-
in reference to Mr. O'Connor. . ..

Coroner: Tell the Court what passed.—Witness: Well, one night about eight o'clock, |,
when I came home to Minver-mce, 1 found Manning sitting in my room. I sat down with
him, and bad a pipe and some -and- half, and in the course of conversation he asked me
what drug would be most likely to produce stupefaction, or partial intoxication, so as to
“cause a person to put his hand to paper.” He said his wife had been to the Docks and
seen Mr. O’Connor in a state of intoxication, and that he had taken her home to his lodgings .
and shown her his will, in which he had made over all, or a considerable portion of his pro- |,
perty to her.. Mrs. Manning was in my room when he said this. Previous to this conversa-
tion about the will, Maoning asked me—I believe I had been reading a medical work— -
which part of the sknll was the most dangerous to injure. . e

A Juror: Did you inform him ?—Witness: Yes; I -think I told him.that behind the ear
was the most vulnerable point. Upon another occasion our conversation turned upon Rush,
and. he asked me whether I tho:g_ht & murderer went to heaven. .I replied “ No,” and, .
quoted a text of Scripture to that effect. Manning proposed getting O°Connor to his house,
and ssid.to me and his wife, “ Frighten him well, when he coines, about-the cholera, and
persugdii\im to take much brandy.” This was on the same occasion as when the will was
mention:

Coraner: Did he ask you to bring him to the house?—The witness: Mr. O’Connor
had been very kind to me and my brother at the Docks, and 1 certainly bad invited him
myself to come and dine with us at Manning’s, but I believed Manning to have addressed
the remark, “ Get him (O’Connor) to come here,” to his own wife, and to have intended the
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other part, “and e him to drink large quantities of brandy when he comes, and
frighten him well about the cholers,” forme as well as for his wife, perhaps. He hkinted about
patting some stupifying drink into the brandy. . .
Coroner: Did you ever see any weapons in the house?—Witness: No; but I recolleet.:
asking me this question, ¢ Have you ever had, or fired off, an 3" -and-whap -
sort of 8 weapon it was? I said I had not had one, but I had seen one off in some---
experiments on natural philosophy that I had attended. He-asked me if it made any neise.
I told him I thought not; but it was some years since I had seen the experiment. :

A Juror: Did he ever ask you to procure him any drugs?-—Witness: Never.

Coroner: You said he asked you what were the most stupifying drugs?—Witness: Yes.:
He once asked me whether chloroform and laudanum were not used-as stupifying d .
and I told him that they were. I had no apprehension of his having any design.in =
of On one occasion he said to me, “ For God’s sake, never marry a foreigners for if yom- -
do, she will be the ruin of youn.” - Some time before I left him he wanted to get me out of his -
houge; and so did his wife also. I asked him for my bill, and they would bardly ever give it -
me. It was sent home to my parents with an ov and I told them notto payit. ..

erwards obtained a proper bill, with a reduction. I left town a fortnight ago last lfcnﬁy, :

for eight days before that I had been living at Mr. Bainbridge’s, the broket.
her witnesses having proved the purchase of some lime, and-also of a shovel, the inquest:
was again adjourned; and after a lengthened inyestigation, on the 26th of August, thy -
mtumed a verdict, “That the deceased was Patrick O’Connor, and that he- een
ilfally murdered by Frederick George Manning and Maria his wife.”

PURSUIT AND CAPTURE OF THE MURDERERS.

It having been suspected that the Mannings were endeavouring {0 leave Englend . in the
Vietoria, a vessel. bound . for New York, application was made .to the authorities of: the...
dockyard at Portsmouth, and Admiral Capel ferthwith ordered the Fire Queen, Government; .:
steamer, to get up her steam and proceed in. chase of the. Victeria. The vessel left :
at half- eight P, and continued stexn chase, hailing, every. light theyx saw. Aby.
length. observed a large ship, and after chasing her for. five miles the Fire Quesm.. .
came alongside, but only to the disappojutment of the officers, for. the turned out to be: .
a Prussian man-of-war. The Fb’:vmﬂ» then, at two o’clock on Tuesday morning,. haileda. .:
ship about ten miles this side.of St. Catherine’s, and she turned out to be the Viclorias ..
they made asignal for her to stop, as they wanted to boardher. The Victoria hove to,:and:
Captain Huntley, of the Fire .Queen, Langley, Thornton, and a local offiesr namped n
went on board. TFhey had a private interview with the captain, and he informed the i
that there were two persons on board named ing, but be did:not know whe they were.. .
After about one hour and a half search they found the besth, in which were two femalss, :
sleeping, and were at. once convinced tbat t were not the. they were in seswolx: .
of. There were upwards of 270 emigrants on board, . The Fm thea retumed. toy .
Gosport.

APPREHENSION OF MARIA MANNING.

Maria Manning wasarrested in Edinburgh, with a large amount of-prepert hdogtgtolb
deceased, O'Oopn%r, in her pessession. leaving Minver-place, she took é the.cab withhes
three large boxes and a carpet bag. She first directed the ¢abman to.drive to the. Londem...
Bridge station of the South-Eastern Railway; having asrived thers, she desired him te.eall .
a porter belonging to the railway, whom she requested to obtain some tacks ia order to fasteny
some direction-cards (which in the course of the journey she had -purchased, and on which. .
she had written the assumed name of “Mrs Smith”)' upen her boxes. This was dome as. .
direeted, and two of the boxes, by the woman’s desire, were conveved into the luggage-ofice,. ..
with directions that they were to be taken care of -uatil celled for. The; woman then-ree.
entered the cab and was driven to the London and North-Western Railway station,. wers..
she alighted.

Thd;‘e circumstances having been communicated to- Mt. Haynes, the. superintendent of :the .
detective police, that officer, at an m}lz‘l:an on Mondsy morning, the-20th of August, pro- .
ceeded to the terminus of the South-Eastern Railway, where he fortunately found the boxes...
exactly as described, no in%lll.:’y having been made for them sincethay wcdq:onted,nﬁn
Monday week previously. e suspicions entertained by Mr. Haynes now ripened imto-core ..
tainties, and he at once sought an interview with the secretary to the company, to whom he.
explained the whole matter, and urged: the ecessity -of examining the contents .of the .
boxes. Mr. Herbert conferred with two or three of the directors who h to be:at the...
station, and the Commissioners of Police having backed Mr. Haynes's application by.a request
to the same effect, the boxes were conveyed to the secretary’s office, and there forced open. The. ...
first glance at each disclosed a quantity of female wearing-apparel, which, upon examinstion,
proved to be marked with the name of “ Maria Roux,” the maiden name -of Mys., Manming...



117

Digitized by GOOS[Q



. that wished to dispose of certain railway stoc

" honse of Mrs. Hewat, where “ Mrs. Smith” had stated that she s Mr. Dabson, havi

18

Jinlieuot'itonthe&tnrdn. Before going sway she wished also to get back the name énd*
. address which she had left Zn her first %2& This, however, mnotﬂmd at the time, n:

* very fortunately, too, as it subsequently was the means of tracing her out, and leading to her-
capture so promptly.

On Tuesday morning, Messrs. Hughson and Dobson received a printed letter, acquainting-
them that certain shares in some foreign railwa;is had been stolen in London, and cautioning -
them against having dealings inregard to them. immediately excited their suspicions as to~

. their fair visitant,and, ufter weighing and deliberating upon the matter, they became more and
more convinced that  Mrs, Smith” must, in s'me way or other, have been connected with the
nefarious transaction alluded to. Without a moment’s delay. Mr. Dobson proceeded to the

lice office, and acquainted Mr. Moxhay, the superintendent, with the suspicions entertained:
y himself and his partner, Mr. Hughson. Mr. Moxhay consnlted a description he had re~

. ceived of the person of Mrs. Manning, as well as that given in the London rs, and he at
once became convinced, like Messrs. Hughson and Dobson, that “ Mrs. Smith” was in reali
Mrs. Manning. As a train was just about this time to start for Newcastle, )
in the first instance, to the station of the North British Railway Company, where Mr.
Dobaon, in company with Mr. Moxhay, personally inspected the ngers f{. all the car-
riages, but without discovering “ Mrs. Smith.” From thence they instantly went to the

3

luckily, before calling upon Mr. Moxhay, found the piece of paper on which the address of

. “Mrs. Smith” had been written. On arriving at the house of Mrs. Hewat, Mr. Moxhay,

and a criminal officer who accompanied him, knocked at the door, and asked if a ¢ Mrs.
Smith” resided within, when they were answered in *he affirmative, and were shown into her
ropm, followed by Mr. Dobson. Mr. Moxhay apteded to Mr. Dobeon if this was the woman

to him, when that gentleman immediately
answered in the affirmative. Mr. Moxhay then acquainted ¢ Mrs S8mith” with the crimes
of which she was ch-rged. She made no answer. 8he was evidently, however, in a state of

" some excitement, but not at all equal to what might be expected from a party in'her -
. tion. ~ Her face became deadly pale, and she bit her lip and showed other aymywmf
. uneasiness.

Her luggage, consisting of two boxes and a carpet-bag, was then examined by Mr.

Moxhay and the criminal officer, when the most- undoubted evidence was obtained that
* the prisoner was no other than Mrs. Manning, and that she had in her possession the
" greater part of the property said to have been stolen from the house of Patrick O’Connor,
" who was so brutally murdered in London. The prisoner asked permission to retire into

an adjoining ‘apartment for a few minutes; but this being refused, she consoled herself by
taking a glass of wine, and she repeated the draught more than once during the time that

. the examination of her baggap‘tle was going on. The wine inspired her with renewed con-
e a

" to London, by telegruph, of ber ap

fidence, and in a short tim her coolness and self-possession had returned. Sie was
conveyed from her lodgings to the Boliog-oﬂiee in a cab; after which, intimation was sent
ension.
On Wednesday morning Maria Manning was placed at the bar of the Edinburgh police-
court, according to the usual form observeﬁ in ail such cases.
She walked into the dock with a firm, unfaltering step; and, during the whole time she
" wasat the bar, her countenance did not betoken the slightest simptom of agitation or alarm.
Ever since her apprehension, indeed, she has conducted herself in a manner that shows she is
determinad to brave all consequences, and not to give the slightest hint or indication that
may, at a future period, tell against herself or her alleged husband and confederate in the
murdet. She was very neatly dressed; and, from her easy and gracefu! manner, she is
evidently a person who has mixed a good deal in society. She isnot, however, by any means
what may be styled beautiful, as some of the papers have asserted. There is akitd of eﬁgod
expressicn about her face, which, when wl;joined with the bold and somewhat callious
manner at the bar of the police-court, and during the reading of the very serious charge
against her led not a few of the on-lookers to say that she was just such a woman

~ as could assist in the devising and carrying out such a deed as that in which, she is

implicated. .
&t. Moxhay read the charge acainst her, which was in the shape of a petition at his own
jnstance, and was as follows —The petition of Richard John Moxhay, superintendent of

. police, and procurator-fiscal of court for the public interest, hmnb:{i showeth—That your pe-
or

" did, within the house sitna

titioner has been credibly informed that Maria Roux, or Ren, eux, or Ilanniz:ﬁ:t pre-

sent in custody, has been guilty, actor or act in jart, of the crime of murder; as also of the -

crime of theft; in so far -s,':‘ron the 9th of August, 1849, or about that time, the said accused
in Minver-place, New Weston -street, parish of i

Bermondsey, in
" or near London, then occupied by Frederick George Manning, wickedly and felonious); aitack

and assault Patrick O’Connor, residing in Greenwood-street, Mile-end, in or near

and
did dhchu{o a &imol or other fire-arm, loaded with gunpowder and a leaden bullet, .'t the -
" said Patrick O

nnor, whereby the said bullet pen and was lodged in his head; and:
also did with a hammer, or otlier lethal weapon to thae petitioner unknown, strike him one or-
more blows on or near his head, by all which, or part thereof, he was mortally wounded, snd:
died soon thereafter, and was thus killed by the said Maria Roux, or Reu, or ‘ieu.orlln-

™
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ning ; like as (2nd) upon the 10th day of August, 1849, or about that time, the said accused
did wickedly and feloniously steal, and theftuously take away from the house situated i
Greenwood-street aforesaid, lately before occupied by the said Patrick O’Connor, scrip of the
Boulogne and Amiens Ruilway, of the following numbers :—48,665, 48,666, 48,667, 48,668,
48,669, 48,670, 48,671, 48,672, 48,673, and 48,674 ; and scrip of the Sambre and Meuse Rail-
way, of the following numbers:—6460, 6461, 6462, 6463, 6464, 64656, 6466, 6467, 6468,
and 6469; the property of the representatives or representative of the said Patrick O’Connor,
whose name or names is or are to the petitioner unknown.”

Sheriff Arkley, who was the presiding judge, said : Mrs. Manning, this a very serious charge
against you, and it is my duty to tell you that it is not necessary that you should say any-
thing, unless you please.

The prisoner, in a low but distinct voice, said, ¢ I bave nothing to say.”

She was then removed from the dock to be sent to London, in the n{ernoon, by the Cale-
donian and North-Western Railways,

On her arrival on the Friday morning, she was taken to the S8outhwark Police Station. Ia
the course of the merning she was brought before the magistrate at the Southwark Police
Conrl:,.‘1 mg;o 1ﬁer a preliminary investigation of the circumstances, committed to Hotsemon-
ger-lane .

"APPREHENSION OF MANNING.

“The prevailing impression on the nfmhlit: .mind was that Mmnaing had madechis escape te
the Channel] Islands, and was concealed there, and these are the dircumstances+witich ledto
that conclusion :—First, he was known to have gone there on a -former occasionwhen it “was
advisable to be out of the way; secondly, Mr. Bainbridge, the-broker who bowgbtthe fami-
niture, states that he slept at his house on Tuesday, August-14th, ‘that next m ivewas

'1gutly~nh.rmed ot the window-blinds being pulled up, 10, a8 he gaid, he B290: Bill
o llinﬁldue that day, and-that he left s y in a cab. Thirdly, the cabmarwrawho toskdim
‘=from Mr. Bainbridge’s house-states that he set him down at the ‘South-Western :statioks; that
e was directed by himto.drive there by back streets and a circuitous route,vand: thit he

srged him to be quick, or he'(Manuing)would be too -late. Lastly, an : i

-:tion: was received from the Channel Islands, stating tm:iyomgmmmwb&thm

#somboard the steamboat, going thither, she not knowing of-the.murder at:the time, and:that

“ehadmd gone ou to-Jersey, while she landed at Guerssey. .

- Manuing arrived dt'Southampton about two o’clock oh Wednesday, the 15th Amgust; - and

- ook up his quatters at the Oxford Arms Inn, near-the railway terminun, «Hevo hossmained
the whole afternoon, 'and -at midnight-left for - Jersey by the -Seuth-W ; .
Company’s mail ship the Despatch.

- -During the*voyage he appeared on deck very little, confining himeelf to the:
- :drimkig brandy immoderately. On reaching Jersey he diseubarked; and, in compauyasith
«wtellqw‘pas,elfer named Turk, with whom he had contrived to.sevape i
zisiothetuwn of St. Helier’a. Arriving at the Navy Arms lnn, mearthe:hatbour, howiitked
Ay, bappene o have only one destiesboddedsopm, droqgages; anhi thineepemtatt
% ; happened to have only one double-| ‘00m * H 2
i haying been-uffered to the two applicants, was Wm@w t»m)per

- wapaei for-thesfentof the room. - On-Fhursday be wentout in-company with' Mi. /8 “8ee

“irthe.defand; ax he deacribed it. &ge retlurned ome hk; theevening nﬁwkwftho

25idiord andethelandiady, subsequently joining the scompawy 'itfi*thepeirivunvaskl-entering

“fuedby’ into coneersation with all who came into the:room. 'Theroswas spsculisrity about him
“whith was not-at silagreeatle to-the landlord,and’ was even jeadsiiked by the:company. He
wus'mllﬂyvem:imhie staetiyer, ‘and 'tuqmntlyv»‘}ot ‘into altercation with the
parties to whom he cbeetrationd, Mr. Turk, the individual who.accompanied him to
the Navy Arms Ion; emong the rest. Duriag Saturday, Manning went out as usual, return-
ing in the evening to thé ' Navy-Arms; and on-the foHowing moming he asked the landlord
where he could go to church. ~ In the course of the day he had a great deal of conversation

with Mr. Berry, telling him that e had lest:all his money in-the Fr.nch revolution, and that
hie must go to Paris to settle bis affairs. He inquired what it would cost to go to Granville,
the opposite joit on the French coast, and n&m ascertaining that he could go for about 20s.,
he expressed an intention of doing so, and begged that Mr. Berry, who, we should add, is a
seafaring man, would accompany him as interpreter. Mr. Berry declined, and advised Man~
ning, if he wanted to go to aris, to return to London and go by the usual route to that
capital, to which he seemed to accede, desiring to be called in time for the packet leavin
Jersey on the followir g morning. He was roused, but declined to get up, and Mr. Tur]
having left Jeisey on this day, Manning remained the occupant of the double-bedded room
alone. He seldom dined at home, but took two or three meals a day in the house, and
always ate most voraciously—to use the landlord’s own words, “ as much as three ordi-
n men.

the SBunday evening, Manning entered the parlour of the Bath Hotel, kept by Mr.
Seward, one of tL.e most respectable hostelries at St. Helier’s, and joined in conversation with
several trade:men there assembled. The same overbearing manner which had rendered his
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company so disagreeable at the Navy Arms, distinguished him here. In the course of the
evening he- bitterly of the diffieulty of obtaining good-living in Jersey, and saidi. :
he'had-Had biut one good-dinner-since he bad been on the island; and that.was off .8 congert;.
eel:-' He added that he ought:not to feel surprisad; for befere he left town his;brother clegh:: -
had said to hrim; with an oath, « Fredymyboy, you'll find the Jersay people a set of humbugal’*
Thie-supercilious tone the fellow.adopted in making this observation was not very:grati‘ying
to the persons-assembled, and‘one of them,na Purkiss, who, it will be.seen; subsequently'/. .
took an active part in- hiss ension;, sarcastically replied, “ 'Lk tell ‘you: what, sir, yow'e: :
fin@ Jersey a‘very: healthy pl for where thereis one die there.aratwenty:bo.” Manwing,:. :,
still in the-same supercilious tone, rejoined, “ What do:you mean by-bolti sir?-” upan whigh:
Manning threw himself back: in his chair and laughed beartily, In the course:of the evening; .
a gentleman: present having mentioned that he came from Derby, Manning -asked him: if -Bes.
knaw-the family of Massey, of ‘Swarkstone, near-that place, and; with -a singular fatality, het
weht'on to explain that the old gentleman’sson had-lodged with himvin Liondon: while watking
theHospitals; that heiwasasad:dog; and;suiting the action:to the wordy ke teck:up bis hat;.
and‘said, “ Look here, the fellow changed hats with me before: he lefb. my house, and heve is-.
his'name in the one I'wear.” ‘This conversation, it must be recollected, took place hefareany -
news of the Bermendsey: murder had reached Jersey, although it was know= in London, the:
newspapers published on Saturday (in which the t first appeared) not reaching Jersegts -
until the.’l‘uesday-followin%.o During the remainder of the evening, Manning preservedthe -
ﬂming of

sarre swaggering manner, his position, and: describing himself . as a traveller fones .
cloth warehouse. One gentleman, more sceptical than.the rest, expressing himself doubtfal.
of ‘something that Manning had :said, he, in a domineering- tone and:manner, pulling at-the: -
same time from his pocket a large card; said, “ If you .are not satisfied, here’s my.eard.” Hey.,
however; took care not to extibit: the card: - While: at . the: Bith Hotel on-this eveningyhe.
drank a qunm{ of brandy and water; and -when: the: company broke up he was rather-in-::
toxicated. He had previously said that he was staying at the Union Hotel; and wheniba:i .
left the house, Mr. John H , who! aubo%mtly'teok: part in-his apprehension, observing .
that he turned ina wrong direction for the: Union, said, “I beg your parden, sir, bu k A
you- are going outof your road.” Manning-turned- round-and replied, * I know-psrfeelyr: -
weth where I have got to goto. . Good night.” On' the afternoon of the following:day hey:
calted' again: at the Bath-Hotel, and asked Mts. Seward’s permission to: walk into ther bt
parlour.  She allowed him to do 8o, and, seating himself in a chair, he entened inte convessery.. .
tion with her. The want of ‘tact he-again exillnud, ited while talking: to. Mra.Sewand was; it
will'be seem; most extraordinary; had be desired: to secure- his-own:apprebension he:coulds:.
scarcely have taken a more likaly course to obtaiz it. He begam' by describing . hiseselfasnai»
traweHer for ‘Sir R. Burnett’s. British gin, and spoke in high; terms:of 8ir- Robert’s .establish»..
ment. Mrs, Seward, knowing that her husband: obteined- his gin from Sin R. Burnett;was::.
naturally sarprised at this:stasement, and she at once told him that Mr. Sewaxd obtained adl;-
the gin he'had from Mr. Méans, the agent for Sir-Robertyon the island: Manning, withiew::
exhibiting any-alarm at this fict, threw himself back- in the chair, laughedhuﬂ:ilg; KDdRXn,
claimed; “How: very strange My name is Mann——;” and: then, stopping short, Maex.
Seward-did not catch the last sylable, - He remained for some length of time, spoks-of velia:
island -as:a most delightful place;:and said re should bring his deas wife with hiwe-theo memb.:
time he came, He took occasion to tell Mra. Seward that his wife was a veryfies womas:::
—that.she:was passionately fond of. kim, and- that. she:always addressed him a8 hep¥ deag: -
Fred.” Before leaving the Bath Hotel, Manning ascertained that Mr. Seward was .mt&gqu
land, but that hie-would return on the following morning-(Tuesday). He said. he shonldh.

lad to make- his acquaintance, and would-call the next' morning; and: have & grilleddhwlfem: -
lunch, which- Mrs. Seward promised to get ready.. ‘

On the-evening of this day, while walking in - the: streets:of St: Helier’s; Manning mek 8- .
ﬁamleman whem he formerly knew.at Taunton; and who was staying at Jersay, pasting: hibu..

oneymon. The gentlerean observed Manning first, and,. not. wishiog to recognize; himy:
turted his head away before the other saw him. It is supposed that Manning; having. re.
marked his presence owthe island, fel¢ that:it would be unsafe to remain-in 8t. Helier'ss andit;
determined: to go further inland; He kept his appointment; however, at the Bath .-Hotek on::.
thafoHowing day, arriving about eleven: o’clock. He was ohserved by the landlady:todeok: .
into- the our, where the cloth was laid- for lunch. Mr. Parsons, the late clerk-of: the
Ham| race-course,. with another gentleman, was ‘seated in the room at this timesendiv
whether Manning recégnized.the face or not is uncertain, busy.after looking into the-roonss ba:

withdrew, and/ was seen no mere at.the Bath Hotel. .

Thelandlord:of the Navy Ar ms, where-he lodged up to this:time, states that he netipsch s
emaskable change in| his manner.after Monday, and this alteration was. also- remarked. angd »
observed upon by the company who-met him: in the parlour on the evenings. of:each day. .
Ow'the Ssndxy. afternoon . ning hailed the driver of the St. Aubin’s omnibusio St. Hess.
lier’s, and; taking-hif seat on the box, rode along the coast in the direetion.of Sts Lawnttemw:
Ha'talked freely to.the driver, 4 man named Phillips, during his ride;.eand remarked;om the::
beswties-of 86 Beter’s Vall'{,.;hrough ‘which they passed. On arriving-at the: haselat effx
StuLawrence, he-waved his hand in token-of recognition:to a gentieman. who was walling Myos
the rondside.. The gentlemen; not.recognisiag: him as a- friend, failed to acknewledgerthes:
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. salute, upon which Manning said to the driver, “ Is not that gentleman’s name Ford ?” The
«driver replied that it was, and that he lo at the British Lion, a small roadside inn, near at.
4and. lganmng hereupon exclaimed, me, how very odd ! he is a most L
driend of mine; I knew him intimately four or five years ago.” The omnibus on jts
journey through the valley, and, on its return, brought Manning back as far as the British
m where he alighted. On ente::f the house, he immediately went up to Mr. Ford, who
‘was seated near the entrance, and said, © Ah, Ford, my dear fellow, how do you do? Iamso -
glad to see you.” Mr. Ford at once recognized the person who addressed him as Man-
ning, and recollected having ﬁe%:::.ly met him at the Globe, in South Audley-street, where
Manning’s sister formerlz lived aid, and where she was visited by her brother. Mr. Ford
havin, en hands, hﬁ invited himself to dinner, and actually did remain and dine
with Mr, Ford and a widow lady who keeps the house. During dinner he spoke freely to Mr.,
Ford, and ‘W quite at ease. After dinser he asked Mr. Ford if he understood the French
danguage. Mr. Ford said he did slightly ; upon which Manning begged that he wonld accom-
pany him to France, as he wanted to go there to arrange several matters relating to some
roperty. He said he would pay all expenses, and be very much obliged to Mr. Ford if he
would go. Mr. Ford declined, and, entemining some suspicion as to Manning’s honesty, he
asked him, ¢ Are you married, Mr. Manning?”’ Manning rﬂxed, “Yes.” 3 _For& said,
" “Where ia your wife?” Manning rejoined, “ Ob, she is in London. The fact is, I have
£200 or £300 to lay out, and I have come here to see how I can invest it best. When I have
determined upon a course, I shall return to England and fetch my wife” He added that he
‘was then in treaty for the purehase of a brewery at St. Helier’s. ~ Mr. Ford asked him whose
brewery ? Upon which Manning remarked that he was not at liberty to give the name at
present. In the course of the afternoon, Manning expressed a strong desire to see Mr. Ford
~ -on the following day. Mr. Ford said he was engaged on the Monday and Tuesday, and ulti-
mately an appointment was made for the following Wednesday, when Manning promised that
he would dine with Mr. Ford at his lodgings. He came at the hour apg:sime on that day,
but Mr. Ford, not being at_all anxious to renew his acquaintance with his quondam friend,
. was not at home, at which Manning expressed some surprise, and asked whether he had not
Aeft a message for him. The landlady said he had not ; and ultimately Manning remained to
dinner with this lady and her daughter, and, in the course of an hour cr two, left, as was

npa’osed, for St. Helier’s.
ithin about three hundred yards of the British Lion, on the same line of road, stands a
neat little cottage, over the door of which are inscribed the words “ Prospect House,” the
windows looking directly into the bay of St. Aubin, and commanding a view of Queen Eli-
zabeth’s Castle, and all the picturesque scenery on that part of the coast. This house is
«oceupied by an aged couple, natives of Jersey, named Berteau—the old man tilling a little
1and, and his wife increasing her store by letting lod?'.ngs. Two rooms in the house are
«occupied by a carpenter and his wife, also natives of Jersey, named Weildon ; and neither of
the &mﬂ: ies speak more than a few words of English, generally conversing in the J
patois. To this house Manning ap to have gone after leaving the British Lion on Wed=
- mesday, and observing a bill in the window, he in(}:ired what apartments they bad to let.
Madame Berteau showed him a large bed-room, which he ultimately hired at four shil-
lings per week ; and he arranged to take his meals with the wife of the carpenter, who
wastto make his bed and wash for him. Having promised to return the same night, he
~went away.

He arrived at M. Bertean’s house about eight o’clock on Thursday morning, and was
shown into his room by Madame Berteau, who told him that if he had any friends call upon
him, he might receive them in her own parlour down-stairs. He thanked her for her civility,
‘but said that he should not have any one call upon him, as no one knew him in Jersey. He
thad not been long in the house before he sent out for a bottle of brandy, of which he drank

N ,freguenuy during the day. He remained in-doors all day, took his meals with Mra. Weildon,
.and conversed with her on various subjects. In the evening he went out into the garden at
the back of the cottage, putting on, for the first time, a blue Guernsey frock and a green felt
hat, and remained there some time ulkmg to M. Berteau, who was pnnninl‘gnhis ordinary
avocations. He drank the whole bottle of brandy on Thursday, and early on Friday morning

_ -sent for a second, which he consumed in the course of that day. The same course of living
was pursued by him on Saturday and Sunday, without any icion on the part of M. Ber-
tesu as to whom he was barbouring. On Sunday, a friend of Madame Berteau came in to

. -#ee her, and, having heard something of the habits of the lodger, she remarked that his con-

. dut 10 be very strange, adding, that she hoped he was not the tor of
a2 murder which had happened in England. Madame Berteau had heard nothing

, of ‘the murder, and thought little of her friend’s caution, and so the matter dropped for

~this day. Fortunately, however, Madame Berteau’s friend was not the onty person whose -

J

su were excited by the conduct of the murderer. The brandy consumed by
. ming was procured from the house of Mr. Healin, a very respectable inhabitant of Jersey,

who 'lives in & small house in Saint Peter's Valley. Mr. George Heulin, one of the

Aong, was in the habit of serving the iirl who fetched the brandy ; and he also thouglit -

it vemarkable that so much the liquor should be consumed at M. Berteau’s, who; .
~Je knew, was a very temperate man himself. He asked the girl certain questions, and
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-ascertained from her that the person who drank the liquor was a lodger, who con-
fined himself to the house all day, and drank brandy, as he said, to keep the
.cholera away. Mr. Heulin baving heard in St. Helier's that the murderer of Patrick
O'Connor was sapposed to be concealed in Jersey, at once suspected this to be the man, and
determined to satisfy himself, if possible. With this view he watched daily for his appearance
in the garden, where the girl hmg told him he generally went in the evening for a short time.
He saw him on Sunday evening, and again on Monday night; and was the more assured
that it was the man in question, in of his evident desire to escape ob:ervation by
pulling his felt hat over his face as he walked up and down the garden. It should be stated
that the garden in question is an open piece of ground, and can be overlooked from the high
road, as well as from many other points of view. On Monday evenintg Mr. Heulin made so
-distinet an observation of Manning, while the latter was digging in the garden, that he felt
no doubt of the identity of the man. About an hour after, and just as it was becoming dusk,

Mr. Heulin went to the back entrance of M. Berteau’s house, determined to ask him whoand

what his lodger was, and what name be passed under. Mr. Heulin found Manning sitting
with M. Berteau outside the back-door, in a little yard, smoking his pipe. On seeing Mr.
Henlin, M. Berteau advancd a few paces towards him. Manning rose at the same time, and

retreated into the house. Mr. Heulin put such thought necessary to M.
Berteau, and communicated his suspicions to him. 0 is in very weak health,
was somewhat alarmed ; but he was also unwilling ia lodger was the suspected
gurty. He said the man appeared a very nice had given the name of

en not go out much t be accounted for by the

ninis; that he eenm‘r;l! i
fact of his being unwell, afraid of the cholera; ana no aouoy, when better, he would go
-out asusual. Mr Heulin was not satisfied, and at once proceeded to St. Helier’s, in order to
communicate with his brother (Mr. John Heulin) on the subject. When the latter heard his
brother’s suspicions, he felt perfectly satisfied that M. Berteau’s lodger was no other than
George Frederick Manning, and at once proceeded in quest of Langley, the officer who had
Jjust arrived in Jersey, and whom he met within a few paces of the Bath Hotel, where his
brother had detailed the circumstances to him. Mr. Langley felt so satisfied of the correct~
ness of Mr. Heulin’s suspicions, that he directly took that gentleman to Mr. Chevalier, and
urged the propriety of ﬁ)ing over to St. Lawrence directly, and arresting the man. It being
now past nine o’clock, Mr. Chevalier suggested that the man would, in all probability, be
ﬂze to bed, and that perhaps it might be as well to defer his arrest until the morning. Mr.
gley at once ohjected, remarkinithat delays were dan%emus; and that, as they were now
-0 near their mark, they had better hit upon it. Mr. Chevalier at once consented. The m,

consisting of Mr. Chevalier, Mr. Langley, Mr. Lockyer, the two :ulins, an .
Purkis, at-once left St. Helier’s for M. Berteau’s cottage, to whic ive must again
qecur for a few moments. While Mr. George Heulin and } 'ere conversing
together, Manning, who had merely retired from their immediate observation, remained in
the back kitchen, the door of w! he overheard all that passed. The moment
Mr. Heulin had gone, Manning ertean in the back kitchen, and asked him
who the man was he had been 1 @ came for, and why he wanted to know his

name? M. Berteau stated that, wnite asking tnese questions, Manning trembled from head to
-foot, and appeared scarcely able to articulate. The thought instantly occurred to him that he
was harbouring a murderer; and as soon as he had satisfied Manning that the person who
had asked him the question was a neighbour, and that his motives were only those arising
from curiosity, he exclaimed to his wife, * That’s a murderer!” In order to prevent, as far
.as possible, the man from destroying himself, or committing any other crime, he put away
a hatchet and some pieces of rope which were lyinhf about the house.

'Mannin , it appears, retired to bed as soon as Mr. Heulin had gone, and at about half-past
nine the officers arrived. They alighted from their carriage about 200 yards on the St.
Helier's side of M. Berteau’s cottage, and walked thither on foot. By a previously concerted

-arrangement, Mr. Chevalier and Mr. George Heulin went round to the back of the house and
explained to M. Bertean that they were now come to arrest hislodger on acharge of murder—
-an announcement which appeared to give both the old man and his wife considerable
satisfaction. It was agreed that Mr. Chevalier should return to the front of the house, and
knock at the door, which M. Bertean promised to open, and that he should hand to Mr.
-Chevalier a h‘glhwd candle, with which he undertook to proceed up-stairs to Manning’s room,
the door of which, if found locked, was to be instantly burst open, and the party in bed over-
powered. It was am:’ged that the Messrs. Heulin should remain outside the cottage and
,x‘r;vent the escape of Manning by the windows, of which there were three to his room alone.
. Lockyer and Mr. Purkis followed Mr. Chevalier, and close behind them was Mr. Langley,
who could alone identify the murderer, with another lighted candle. Contrary to expecta-
tion, the door of the murderer’s room was found ajar, so that on reaching the landing the
-officers entered immediately. Mr. Chevalier pushed the door open hastily, and, placing the
candle he held in his hand on the table, he rushed towards the in which the man lay.
At the same instant, Langley, who had merely caught a side glimpse of his face, cried out,
“ That’s the man—seize him!” Lockyer and Mr. Purkis instantly seized both the murderer’s
.arms, Mr. Chevalier-havirg thrown himself upon the bed and thus disabled him from making
-any further resistance. The somewhat rough seizure to which he was subjected appeared to

.
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anzﬁ' some annoyance, and he cried out “ Hallo! what are you about? Do

gni:a‘to mtrder me?* ' 'tvh thoment He saw Langley, hdwevet; he mzured ‘N eommsz:e‘,
and 8aid; “ A, sergeant, is that you? I am'glad you are come, I know what you aré i
abdat. If you had not come, I was coming to town to explain all. I am innocent!™

then asked, “Is the wretch taken?” alluding to his wife, as Langley. é:g’poned. The offiter.

replied in the affirmative ; upon which Manning remarked, “Thank I am glad of it; ..

that will save my life. Sheis the guilty party; I am as innocent asa lamb.” Mr. Chevalier
directed him to dress himself in the presence of the officers, and when he had done so he
proceaded to handouff him. Manning, as eoon as-he saw the irons; said, .“ I'hope you ave'ndat:
gving to handcuff me.” Mr. Chevalier exgl;ined the necessity of daing.so, upon which he
eld out his hands, which.'were i ately: pinioned \ by © Manning saw that
all the property in the room belon,ied to him ; and seven sovereigns having been found in his
bag, hesaid they were all that was left of & sum of £12, which bad been paid to him
for his farniture by a man in London, “and that,” he added, “was all the money I had to
start with.” ' Having been conducted out of M. Berteau’s house, he was ]ilwed in the carriags
whith had brought over the officers, and conveyed back to St. Helier's. On his way,
although no questiony were asked him, he volunteered several observations in reference to

the crime: Among the remarks, in allusion to his wife, he said he “hdped she would

not destroy herself before he got to Loudon, for, wien there, he could soon clear himself.”
Again he said, “I suppose'she must have £1500 upon her; at least, she onght to have
She has often told' me' ‘that'she would be revenged #on O’Connor.” . Chevalier
here' asked what she meant by being revenged? porn which Manning ' rejoined,
“ 7, he induced us to take the house in Minver-place, and to furnish it, on the under-
standing that he would comeand live with us, which he did not do; and my wife got into &
greit rage, and said she would be revenged. I said, ¢ Don’t be angry, dear;’ and advised her.
to forget and forgive. O’Connor got off his agreement by ga.ying a few weeks’ rent. A little
befora this time my wife went to his house, and he showed her notes and railway coupons, and
promised that he would leave hér the greater part of his property under his will.” = After a

pause, hé added, % She frequently went to his house; and about a fortnight before the murder .
she invited him to come and’ dime with 'us, but he did not come. She wrote hin anothuér: -

lettér, asking him to dine with us on the fatal day. The dinner was laid up-stairs when he
arrived. My wife asked him if he would not go down-stairs and wash his hands, as wus his»
custom, before dinner. He replied ¢ Yes,’ and xmmediatelg went down-stairs, followed closely
by my wife. Assoon as they reached the bottom of the staircase, my wife put one of her
arms routid 0'Connor’s neck, and with the other hand she fired a ‘pistol at the back part of
his head.  O’Connor immediately fell dead. I fainted, and do not know what became of the-
body.” Mr. Chevalier asked him if he had not seen a hole dug in his back kitthen 2
Upon which he-said, “ Oh yes, I had seen it, and I believed that it was intended for me. I
ve my wife intendad to murder me.” :
Mr. Chevalier and the detective officers having placed their moner in safe custody in the
gaol, the former waited on Sir Thomas Le Breton, and informred him of the captare of the sup-
murderer. Sir Thomas immediately came down to the prison, and directed-that a close
watch should be kept upon him. Béfore Sit Thomas left the gaol, the prisoner complained of
indisposition, and the medical officer (Mr. Jones) having been sent for, recommended that
he should be allowed to have some brandy and water, atter which he speedily recovered him-
self, and retired to bed in good spirits.

THE VOYAGE TO ENGLAND.

At seven o’clock on Friday morning, Mr. Chevalier and the detective officers proceeded to--
the gaol, for the pur%o:e of conveying the prisoner to the packet. He made a particularres.
quest that he might be allowed to walk through the streets of St. Helier’s; and, as it-waa-
v early illlmﬁxe morning, Mr. Chevalier consented to allow him to do so, ley -
and Lockyer walking on either side, and Mr. Chevalier immediately behind him.
There were very few persons present at this hour in the streets, so that no inconvenience.,
arose from this circumstance. Even at the ﬂgxer where he embarked, there could not have:
been more than 300 spectators. When the officers got him on board, he was.conducted to-a
separate cabin in the forecastle, where he remained, during the whole voyage, in the custody of -
the officers. The officers kept the cabin as private as possible, but it was quite out of their.:
power to prevent some parties on board from gratifying their curiosity by obtaining a sight .
of the supposed murderer. Manning was highly delighted at the notice he excited; and..
with one woman he conversed for some time. remarking that he had “had two wives, lm{ that
was one too many.” Captain Childers, the Commander of the Despatch, recognised him. ime.-
mediately he came on board, and told the officers that on the night he crossed, the 16th.of -
Aufu.st, he recollected his coming to him several times, and pressing him to drink brandy ;,
in fact, at one period of the night his conduct was so troublesome that Captain Childers was
obliged to ask the steward to get him to turn into his berth.

‘The Despatch steamed into harbour after 3 sail of eleven hours. Mr. Icspec 7
hdre came on board to receive th:(frisoner, a fly having been obfained, he was B
to opel of the officers and conveyed to the railway station, and subsequently brought.an by & .
special engine. ’

-~



26

The special train arrived at the Vauxhall station at ten o’clock precisely ; and as it was .
feared, the ¢ :ﬁm&\ having announced the prisoner’s expected arrival, that a crowd might be .
assembled at the Waterloo station, the prisoner was removed from the oarnago at this place,
and conveyed by Inspector Haynes and Sergeant Lan%ley to the Stone’s-end police-station, '
where the against him having been entered by Inspector Yates, he was placed in one

-ot the cells, closely watched by two officers.

EXAMINATION OF THE PRISONERS AT THE SOUTHWARK
POLICE COURT, SEPTEMBER 6th.

At half-past eleven o’clock the prison van left the station for Horsemonger-lane Gaol, to
-convey the prisoners to the conrt. An intimation had been previously forwarded to Mr.
Keane, the governor of the prison, by Mr. Secker, requesting that he would permit the parties
to have an interview of five,minutes’ duration, in the presence of the officers, if they desired it,
before leaving the gaol, this ‘course being adopted to prevent the occurrence of a “scene” in
court—a result which there was too much reason to fear might follow upon their being con-
fronted for the first time in the dock. Mr. Keane, in carrying out the magistrate’s suggestion,
caused Manning to be first brought from the ward in which he was confiued to the hall of
his own residence, where his wife was presently introduced to him. As she entered, Manuing
raised his hand somewhat theatrically, and frowned upon her. A pause ensued, during
which neither of the prisoners spoke to each other. Mr. Keane, observing this, said to Mrs.
Manning, “Have you anything to aa{d to_your husband, Mrs. Manning?” The female
prisoner replied, in a firm voice, “ No.” Mr. Keane then addressed a similar question to Man-
ning, who also replied negatively. The two prisoners were then conducted to the Govern-
ment van and driven off to the police court. The absence of all feeling exhibited by both
parties was especially remarked by the officials who witnessed the interview between the
prisoners, but it was universally admitted that Manning appeared iderably more affected
than his wife by the awful position in which they both stood. On the arrival of the van in
the station yard, the female prisoner alighted first, and walked with a quick step into the cell
appropriated for her reception. Manning followed his wife, in custody of two officers, and
evidently endeavoued to assume a carelessness of demeanour which ill accorded with his
.anxious countenance.

Precigely at twelve o’clock the male prisoner was brought into court, and placed at one end
of the dock. Ashe d through the crowd he trembled slightly and appeared somewhat
alarmed. When relieved from the pressure of the spectaturs, he recovered his composure,
and, beyord a slight quivering of the muscles of the face, gave no indication of unea-iness.
The two solicitors, Mr. Binns (for the husband) and Mr. Solomon (for the wife), having
taken their places in the dock, Mrs. Manning was introduced.  As she entered, the inconve-
nience arising from the crowd in the body of the court was at its height, and the noise ap-
peared sliilimy to disconcert her. While Mr. Edwin was endeavouring to quell the dis-
turbance, Mrs. Manning sat down, and conversed with the female turnkey in attendance upon
her, resting her head upon her hand, and evidently endeavouring to avoid the the glance of
her husband, who sat in the opposite corner of the dock, looking at her most earnestly. The
disturbance, among the spectators increased rather than diminished, until I\gr. Secker gave
peremptory crders that a large number of persons near thie doors should be ejected, in order
to allow the remainder breathing room. Order having been at length restored, Mr. Edwin
directed the prisoners to stand-upon an elevated platform prepared for them. i

Manning rose immediately ; but, instead of standing erect, he sat down upon the side of
the dock, in a careless attitude, his feet being placed upon the platform, and bis hands, in
which he held his hat, resting upon his knees. He was dressed in a shabby blue paletot,

_ buttoned closely up to the chin, and around his neck he wore a red check silk handkerchief,
tied in what is generally understood as “flash style.” Having no shirt-collar, tbe extraor-
dinary formation, or rather malformation, of his neck and chin, was readered &eculiaﬂy pro-
minent. His countenance, as before stated, wore an anxious expression, and throughout the
day it was remarkcd that he neither changed his position, nor spoke a word,

8. Manning, on being called upon to stand up, rose from the seat she had occupied, but
appeared unwilling to mount the platform. Mr. Edwin therefore directed the officer to assist
her, but she still objected, and, with a significant smile upon her countenance, appeared to
solicit permission to remsin in the position she then occupied. She was genteelly attired in
a black satin drees, with visite en suife, trimmed with black lace, a white straw bonnet, and
black lace veil. Her appearance was decidedly improved since the preceding Friday. She
maintained the samedegree of composure throughout the day which marked her conduct on
that occasion. B8he’ appeared to pay the greatest attention to the evidence of the various
witnesses, and occasionally suggested questions to her solicitor, to assist him in his cross-
examination. One remarkable feature in her conduct was a total indifference to the presence
of her husband, towards whom she occasionally directed a furtive and contemptuous glance

The evidence brought forward was of a simiar natare to that which had been given on.
the coroner’s inquest ; and, after several remands, the prisoners were fully committed for
trial at the Central Criminal Court.
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THE TRIAL.

The trial of Frederick George Manning and Maria his wife, charged with the murder of
Patrick 0'Connor, commenced on the morning of Tharsday, October 25th, at an early hoar.
The approaches to the Central Criminal Court presented appearances of -bustle and excite-
ment. Persons who had been fortunate enough to secure the entrée began to arrive before
eight o’clock, anxious to secare favourable places in the court; and by the time the doors
were opened—shortly before nine—a very considerable .number of persvns had assembled.
‘There was, however, very little excitement manifested out of doors at that early hour; but
as the day advanced the namber of idlers in thé Old Baily: increased, 'and by noon a con-
siderable crowd had collected, and continued to throng the street:mnatil. the adjournment of
the Court.

Admission could only be obtained by tickets from the Sheriffs, .and, s this regulation was
strictly observed, it had the effect of preventing the confusion and annoyance which must
have resulted from the overcrowding of the court. Under the - directions of the Under-
Sheriffs, Messrs. Millard and Wire, every. portion of the court which could be made avail-
able for the purpose was appropriated to_ the accommodation of spectatars; and soon after
nine o’clock nearly every seat was occupied. Several ladies were present on the bench and in
the body of the court, but the attendwnce of the fair sex was far less numerous than we have
seen on occasions of less general interest. In.the early part of the marning, the gallery—to
which it was reported a.high dl?e 'was made for-admission—was very thinly tenanted ; but
as the day advanced ‘the-number:df its occa, increased, though it appeared to be far from
crowded. Indeed, this wasike.only part of the conrt which was not fully accupied. Several
gentlemen, and one ortwodaiies, who geid not obtain-nocommodation infother parts of the
court, were provided withwests in thedock. Tisere:was,as is usual on-similar occasions of
interest, & very numerdws:kttendanea of.: of the..long vebe. rA_i_xonﬁ the dis-
tinguished visitors presexttr we observéd- Howdan, Lord Strangford, Coutit Golloredo, the
Austrian Ambassador,  Baron Ko}br,-—ﬁecutu’y to:the @Austrian Eughassy,- the Swedish
Minister and his-Secretary, the First-Besvetary tothe Pm Legathn, the ‘Marquis of
Hertfort, the Marquis Azaglio (the Surdicisw-Chargé & Affaires), Admiral Dundas, M.P.,
Aldermen Sir W¢ and ,vaadBheriffs Lawrence and Nicoll.

At five minutes- ten o’clock, the Lord Chief Baron gir F. Pollock), Mr. Justice
Maule, and Mr. (Justite Cresswell, aceompanied by the Lord Mayor, and the usual civic
officers, entered the court. At the same time, the two prisoners, Frederick George Manning
and Maria Manning, were placed at the bar. The male prisoner was the first to enter the
dock, in charge of Mr. Cope, the Governor of Newgate, and, advancing to the front, he took
his place at the right-hand corner. The female prisoner, who immediately followed, walked
to the other extremity of the dock; but no look- or.soken of recognition was exchla:ied be-
tween them. Manning was attired in a respectable .suit of black, and wore a black neck-
kerchief. He appeared in better health-and spirits. than at -his examination at the police-
court; but during the day he manifested a nervonsrestiessness.. He frequently changed his

ition at the bar, and was observed, on several occasions, to cast furtive glances at his wife.

e, on the contrary, for more than an honr after she-wasplaced in the dock, remained almost
as motionless as a statue, and was mever seen, throughout the day, to turn her eyes towards
her husband. She seemed to be suffering from illuess, and had the appearance of robust
health which characterised her previously to her eommittal. “fThe cheerful buoyancy of
spirits, amounting almost to levity, which she manifested at the’ &reliminary examinations,
appeared also to have deserted her. Sheremained standing until the Judges had given their
decision upon the application of her counsel for a trial .per medietate linguz, when, at the re-

uest of BR: Ballantine, she was accommodated with a chair. She wore a black or dark
g.ress, fitting closely up to the throat, a shawl of somewhat gaudy coloars, in which blue pre~
dominated, and primrose-coloured gloves. She was without bonnet,.and wore as a head-
dress what appeared to be a very handsome white lace veil.

The male prisoner is described in the calendar asthirty years of and by trade a
“traveller ;” and his wife as “ married,” and twenty-eight years of age. ‘Both the prisoners,
however, appear much older.

The Attorney-General (Sir J. Jervis), Mr. Clarkson, Mr. Bodkin, and Mr. Clerk appeared
for the prosecution, instructed by Mr.” Maule, the solicitor to the £ Mr, t
xilkiﬁs and Mr. Charnock were for the male prisoner, and .Mr. Ballantine and-Mr. Parry for

rs. Manning. . . )

The prisoner Frederick George Manning, was cln:ged on the indictment (which was read
by Mr. Straight, Clerk of Arraigns) with having, on.the 9th of Auqnst, 1849, at Bermondsey,
feloniously disc a pistol loaded with a bullet at Patrick ‘O’Connot, and inflicted upon
him a mortal wound, of which he then and there died. The second count charged the said
Frederick George Manning with having caused the death of Patrick ‘0’Connor by striking,
cutting, and wounding him on the back part of the head with a'crow-bar. There were other
counts alleging that the death of O’Connor had been caused jointly by the shooting and beat-
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ing, and describing the weapon used as an air-gun. Maris Manning was indicted for having
been present, aiding and abetting the said Frederick Gm?e Manning to commit the felony.
On b’?ing called upon to plead, the male prisoner exclaimed, in a loud and firm tone, “ Not

Mr. Ballantine said he uﬂnared on behalf of Mrs. Manning, who was a native of Geneva,
and who, as an alien, _F;ay that she might be tried by a jury composed partly of aliens.

The Chief Baren: The prisoner ought to plead before the application is made.

Mr. Ballantine would call their Lordships’ attention to “ Bacon’s Abridgement,” vol. 4, p.
568, where it was laid down that, “If upon an indictment of felony against an alien he plead
¢Not guilty,’ and & common Jury be returned, if he do not surmise his being an alien before
any of the Jury sworn, he hath lost that advantage; but if he allege that he is an alien, he
may challenge the array for that cause, and theunﬁn a new precept or venire shall issne, or
an award be made of a jury de medietate linguc. t it is more proper for him to surmise it

B his plea pleaded, and thereupon to. pray it.” If,- however, it was their ips”
Ay, ST A Lo

1

opinion that the plea should be pl e application was made, the female prisoner
was now ready to plead. - .

The Chief Baron said, according to the old form, when the question was put, after the plea
had been put in, “ How will you be tried? ” the prisoner, instead of answering By God and
my country,” said, “ By a Jury de medietate lingue.”

r. Ballantine: Then we will take the plea.

The usual question—* Are you guilty or not guilty of this felony ?”—was then put to the:

female prisoner by the Clerk of Arraigns, and she replied, in a tone scarcely audible & few

- feet from the dock, “ Not guilty.”

The prisoners were then arraigned on the Coroner’s inquisition, and beth of them pleaded
“ Not guilty.” : .

The clerk was proceeding to swear the Jury, when

Mr. Ballantine said: Mrs. Manning desires to be tried by a Jury de medietate linque, and
prays your Lordships to award it. |

The Attorney-General understood his learned friend to make this application on the groundt
that his client was technically and legally an alien.

Mr. Ballaatine: I put it upon that grcund.

The Attorney-General said, that, although aliens were undoubtedly entitled to that privi-
Jege, yet that Mrs. Manning, being the wife of a British subject, had no claim to a Jury de
medictate li And, even if she were not the wife of a natural-born subject of this realm,
yet, being tried upon a joint indictment, she would not be entitled to such a Jury. With
regard to the first point, it was declared by the act 7 and 8 Victoria, chap. 66, sec. 16, “that
any woman married, or who shall be married, to a natural-born subject or person naturalised,

* shall be deemed and taken to be herself naturalised, and have all the rights and privileges of

a natural-born subject.” Bat it had been expresaly decided, that, even if the female prisoner

" were now an alien to all intents and purposes, yet that, being indicted jointly with a natural-

~ born subject, she was not entitled to a Jury de medietate linguz. He would refer their Lord-

" back, and pointing out how an alien became at all entitled to a jury

* ships to the abstract of Barre’s case (Moore, 557), “ Bacon’s Abridgement,” vol. 4, p. 557. It
- was there laid down that, ¢ ugou an information exhibited by the Attorney-General against

several merchaats, some of whom were aliens and some English, after issue joined, the aliens

. prayed a trial per medi tate lingue, but it was resolved by all the Judges of England that

they should not have it; aud they likened it to the case of privilege where one of the defen-
dants demands privilege, and the Court (as his companion) cannot hold plea, there he shall
be onsted of his privilege.” ' k .

Mr. Ballantine said he had submitted his application partly upon a s:atute with which:
their Lordshil)s were familiar, the 6th-George 4, c. 50, sec. 47, which provides that nothing

- therein contained shall extend to deprive any alien indicted or im ed of any felony or-

misdemean ur of the right of being tried by a jury de medictate ki ; but that, on the-
rayer of every alien 8o indicted.or impeached, the Sheriff shall return for one-half of the-
ury a comuetent number of aliens, if so many there be in the town or place where the trial is-.

* held; and, if not, then so many aliens as shall be found in the same towa or place.

The Chief Baron asked the learned gentleman to assist the Court lz going a little farther-
Jistate I

believed it was by a -tatute of Edward IIL? He
Mr. Ballantine- The 28th Edward IIL. B t, though that statute might intimate the right

* of an alien to be tried by a jury of this kind, he thought it important to call the attention of"

- the Court to the modern.statute he had cited, to show that it contained a declaration that

the
! aet

hits of aliens should be perfectly carried out. In was, in fact, a re-enactment of the-
of Edward IIL by the Legislature, with the knowledge of uny dificulties that might have
arisen under the operation of that act. Hw thought it an important fact, that no exception.

" was made in the ~tatute of George IV. The Legislature must have that
© the kmowledge that alicns had been indicted along with persons whm noe.m 'witb

were alao perfoctly well aware that aliens might marry natural-born subjects .of ::g
The Chief Baron: The act of 6th George 4 (8ir R. Peel’s Act :
4 Jury Act). was pased long:

" peior to the statute mentioned by the
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shiereacn to o posaos oo i the pecticulas mosion 2 he fosare werampe h dkatute with
‘ o a: B ? - Of 4me
that the prior act, which was perfectly clw,cg:l.:i not be overruled by the u;bsequent statuge,
ok that the right conld Boj be taken away by the mere implication 'of that statute. - This
was en extremely important privilege in the administration both. of the criminal and ciyil
{':sﬁee of the conntry, and he thought their Lordships would be of opinion that it could .only
.+be aholished by exprass-and direct easctment. - He would.call the attention. of the Court to
e D o A D 1 it o st chat e o e from time to time. in
E y 3 ? D 1, it is sta i has. tive to
moake any alien to be a denizen; that he eannot grant this,pmoga{ive‘w.m; and
- - that the usnal mauner of & denization is by letters patent, and 80 it may.be by Parliament.”
. Beuaderstood the Attorney~General te contend that the 7th and 8th Victoria, c. 66, rendeced
Ao, Jaw as it stood previously to that statute inoperative with-refarence to the ferale pri Y
.n-oou:‘gm of her & married woman ; and that that statute, by giving her all the
rights of a natural-born subject, took away from her the power of demanding & jury de.medie-
«date binguc. . He (Mr. Ballantine) spprehended, however, that .a law which involved so im-
,portant a.right as that new claimed by the female prisoner could only.be. abrogated by ex-
Ppress terms, and that there was nothing in the terms of the act cited by the learnngondym
to take away that right. He considered that the grounds upon which Barre’s. csse, which
had been referwed to by the Attorney~General, was decided, were :not at all applicable to the
. ﬁmﬁm ‘The Ghief Bagon bad asked him (Mr. Ballantine) to refer to the statute 28
ward IIL, c. 13, and he found (“ Bacon’s Abridgement,” p. 566) that that statute enacted,
that “in all manner of inquests and. proofs which be to be;taken or made amongst aliens and
denizens, be they merchants or others, a]thouil‘ll‘the King be party, the one-half of the in-
quest or proof shall be denizens and the other aliens, if 50 many aliens and foreigners be
in the town or place wherd.such inquest or proof is to be taken ;- and if there be not so many
aliens, then shall there be put in such inquests or proofs as many aliens as ahall be found in
the-game towns or places, Ahat be not thereto parties, and the remnant of denizens which be
good men, and not suspicicus to the one party. nor to the other.” ;He apprshended that tge
real question in this case was, whether the woman at the bar. was.a denize, and, if npt, he
. .sabmutted that she was entitled to be tried by a jury de mediciate linguc.
Mr. Parry followed on the-.same side. “He- contended that the. privilege daimodol;y the
.- feale prisoner was one which could not be got rid of by mere implication in.an act of Par-
. liament ;. but.that, if -abolished at all, it mnst be abolished by express. enactment. . The 7th
.4nd 8th of Victoris, ¢. 66, conferved eertain privileges upon aliens born, who maxried natnrel-
+horn. subjects.of the Crown ; but it did not take away: sury privilege that had heen previonaly
-~ aonfarred by any: act of Paxkiament; sand he thevefore submitted that the clausa of that. gct
mpon:which the Atterney-General relied did.not suppert his ebjection, because it did.not by
-eBpress enactment take. away the right claimed by the prisoner ¢s an alien born. He Aﬁ-
~hepded that there was only ealy ane way in which & person born an alien could divest, him-
t self' of the :tuity o stalus nfaliunfe; and that was by the congent. of the State or Govetn~
<.mqnt of which he wes a:subject. : It had: been desided in.Dop.dem, Thomas v. Acklom,
2 Barn; and Cress., 779, that the only way in which a-natural-born subject could divest him-
- solf of that condition was by.the cobsent of his liege lord. . X
- *. Mr. Justice Cvesswell: Was it not.rather that s man canpot get rid of the allegiance he
vawes. to the country where he was bon ? .
Mr. Parry app ded it was decided that a person could not divest himself of the con-
iition of alienage without the consent of the country of which:be was & natusal-born subject.
«He,wonld refer their Lerdships to]4 Blackstone’s Commentaries, page 352,  where it was
. .cleady laid down that the female prisoner was entitled to she privilege she now claimed.
‘Spesking of challenges. in_criminal cases, Blackstone says, “Challenges may here be made
.:either on the part of the King or on that of the prisoner; and either to the whole array, or
the separate polls; for the very same reasons that they may -be made in civil causes.  Fon it
is here at lsast a8 neoessary as there that the sheriff or retnrming officer be totally indiffereqt ;
that: whewe an alien is indicted, the jmz should be de medietate, or half foreigners, if so many
.arafonnd in the place.” The Court, he. thought, would hardly hold, upon the authority of
the case cited by the Attorney-General, that because the female prisoner was indicted jointly
+4tith 3 natarals subject, she was therehy debarred from her privilege as an alien. These
parties might have been indicted separately. Would their Lordships hold that, becaugp &
peex mjoinuy indicted with a commoner, his privilege of trial by his peers was taken awey
- m 8 ?

After a consultation between: the Chief Baron and his brother Judges, which occupied
«-pearly half an hour, ) e
The Chief Baron announced the, decision of the Court. He . sad that Frederick Geqrge
+Manning and Maria Manning hig’twife were indicted for murder,- and both had .ot
nus:ilty. Maria Manning had an, ed. by. her counsel that she-was entitled to have & jary
medietate lingu, on the ground of her being an alien. The Attorney-General had op
~:6his.application, aid had cited Barre's ‘case, which :hadioceurred in the Court Jof Exchequer,
and the statute of 7 and 8 Victorid, which enaets that an alien: waman marrying 'i:w‘?l.
born subject of this realm shall become naturalised by the marriage. It appeared to him (the

’ .



83

Ghief Baron) that the statute'of Victoria was an answer to the &plléaﬁoﬂ. "He wonld fortiear
going into the argumetit with reference to Barre's case; for he would not like Lastily, and
without much more consideration, to adopt theé decision tf;erh‘ given as applicable to the pres
sent case; but he idered that the statate of Victoria was ‘A complete answer to the appli-
cation which had just been made. By that statute an alien woman who married a nataral-
born subject became naturalised by the marriage; and from the terms of the statutait
agpeared to him that she would be considered exactly as if she had been naturalised by act
of Parliament, or had been herself a natural-born subject. The question remains, whether she
could now claim a Jury de medietate lingue. Her husband, as'a natural-born subject, conld not
be tried by a jury so constituted. The languagse of the statute of Edward III., and, indeed; of
all the modern statutes explaining the law, was, thit in all manner of inquests and proofs
-which be to be taken or made amongst aliens, although the King be party, one-half of the
inquest shall be denizens and the other half aliens. Now, the quéstion was, whether this wal
.an issue to be taken between the Queen and an alien. Maria Manning had married a natural-
born sabject of the realm, and was deemed and taken to be naturalised. It was laid down by
Hawk. P. C, book ii. chap. 43, sec. 39, *It is holden that by denizens in this statute are
‘meant, not only those who are born within the King’s liegeance, but also those who are made
<denizens by the King’s letters patent.” It had been contended by Mr. Parry that the statuté
of Victoria was intended to confer privileges and to create new rights, but not to take away
privileges which had previously existed ; but it appeared to him }the Chief Baron) that the
answer to that was, that the status of the party was altered. All the privileges which were
personal-—which belonged to the individual—had been preserved; but the privilege of being
tried by a jury de medietate linguz was not the individual privilege of the prisoner, but of thé
status or condition to which he belonged. It was not necessary, then, to take away that pri-
vilege by express words; it was sufficient to alter the status of the person. The moment he
cceased to be an alien, the inquest to be taken ceased to be an incimt between our Sovereign
Lady the Queen and an alien, and became an inquest between the Queen and a nat
subject of the realm. It appeared to the Court, therefore, that the trial must proceed.
Mr. Ballantine then moved that his application might be entered upon the record. -
The Attorney-General said, if that were done, he would plead that the female prisoner had
‘married Frederick George Manning, a natural-born subject of the realm.
_ After some conversation, it was agreed that Mr. Ballantine should have the option of rais~
ing the question on the record, or of having the point reserved for the consideration of the Coart
-of Appeal in Criminal Cases. ) '
The female prisoner paid great attention to the arguments upon this application of her
~«counsel ; but when the decision of the Court—adverse to her interests—was delivered, she did
not exhibit the slightest emotion. o ' Co
The Attorney-General then proceeded to state the case to the Jury. He said that the
great importance of the investigation they were about to enter upop, and the excitement
which it had created in the public mind, had induced him, as the public prosecutor, to appear
‘to conduct the case; for he was decirous of taking upon himself any responsibility that might
arise in connexion with the case; and his object would be simply to elicit truth, and to assist
in the firm administration of justice. He was quite certain that, upon a charga of this serious
natare—almost the most serious charge that could be made against any member of the com-
munity—it was unnecessary for him to caution the Jury to dismiss altogether from their
‘ninds—as he implored them to do—everything they had heard or read upon the subject of
this painful event, and to confine their attention solely to the evidence which would be pro-
duced before them, and upon which alone, under the direction of the Court, they ought to
Arrive at their decision. He feared that it would be necessary for him to eater at some Pngth
into the details of the case; but he would abstain as much as possible from unnecessarily oc-
cupying their time. It would be his duty simply to lay before them, as shortly and cl e:gr
‘a8 possfble, a statement of the circumstances which would be detailed in the subsequent evi-
dence. The prisoners were Frederick George Manning, who, he believed, formerly came from
‘Bomersetshire, and who was for some time a guard in the service of the Great Western Rail-
way Company, until 1847, when he married the female prisoner, Maria Manning. ' She was, he
‘believed, a native of Switzerland. She bad formerly lived in the service of & ughter of the
Duchess of Sutherland—Lady Blantyre; and she was married to the prisoner in the year
1847,  After that time these persons kept an inn at Taunton, and they subse-
uently took a house in Minver-place, Bermondsey, the scene of the fatal murder.
Patrick 0’Connor, whose death was the subject of this charge, was for many years ‘a
ﬁuger in the Customs; and on Thursday, the 9th of August Iast, was stationed at the
ndon Docks. ' He resided in Greenwood-street, Mils-end, at some distance from Minver-
place. On Thursday, the 9th of August, Patrick ®°Connor left his ordinary place of re-
-sidence in Greeawood-street, about half-past seven la the momh;g. He was present at
the Londsn Docks at the ‘ordinary time—eight o'clock. He sj the appearance-book.
He remained on duty till four o'clock, when he again signed the departure-book, as hav-
ing left his duty at that time. About a quarter before five o’clock he was seen by :two
friends near London-bridge, and, being qucstioned as to where he was goiny, he produced
and showed to oae or both of them a letter of invitation to dinner, which he read, and
“which was signed “ Maria,” About five o'clock on the same day he was seen in Weston-
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other mmtter whistieuglit not te: be passed over; becanse: pomibly. his: learned! frisnds mi .
wvert to it in defending the prisoners. It might be alleged for the defenes;.that the. if |
comumitted by either of the prisoners, was committed by the man, and that the woman could
be regarded only as a principal iu the second degree—not as.an accessory before tha fact, but
28 an accessory after the fact. She.was not.so charged, nor could stie be so charged; for the
law did not allow any charge to be made against a married woman for being an accessory
after the fact, for comforting and barbouring her husband; and he did not believe that the
evidencs in this case woald warrant asy sucls coiiclusion with regard to the female prisoner. -
Bearing io mind, then, the propositions he hed stated, he thought it would be admitted that
he was justiied in assuming - that Patrick 0'Connor had been murdered by some one in the
heuse:ocenpied by the prisoners. The question for the Jury would be, was the murder com»
mitted by botls the prisoners, or by either of them, in the presence, legal, actual, or construce
tive, of the other; or was. it committed by either of them, with the guilty concert or conw
nixance of the other, but in his or her absence? 1f either of these propositions was established
to the satisfaction of the Jury, both the prisoners must be found guilty. He'must now take
the Jury back to the facts of the case, and would give them, chronologically, a bistory of the .
conmexion between the parties. Tlhie origin of the intimacy between O’Connor and the Man~ .
ings he had been unable to-tracs, but he had reason to believe that, at some time previously -
to: 1847, O°Conmor had paid his addresses to the female prisoner. Recently, however, and for
some.time past, they had beeu npon: terms of intimacy. The female prisoner was in the con-
shl:l: habit of mﬁ:f a(])l’connot, and sh:ﬂ‘ was (anl subgel‘xntgerm of x:;nmacyd e?ag} him as no)t. c{)nly
to:bs acquainted his pecuni; airs (he being a man of eonsi e property), but, .
by his direction, she was admitted gy his- apartments, where she remained frequently, in his .
absence, for & considerable time. At Lady-day last the prisoners became tenants of the house
No. 3, Minver-place, Bermondsey. Some time afterwards, a gentleman named Massey, a
medical student, became a lodger in their house: The prisoners kept no servant, the house-
hold work being generally done by the female R{riwner herself, with the occasional assistance
of & charwoman.. In the presence of his wife, Manning several times made statements to.and
inquiries of Mr. Massey, which at the time:seemed unimportant, but which appeared to him
(the Attormey-General) of so- much importance that he considered it his duty to call the at-
tention of the Jury to them. Manning stated, in the presence of bis wife, that O’Connor.
was & man of considerable property (about £20,000); and he was represented also to have
said that O’Connor had made & will in favour of his wife. Manning made inquiries of
Maussey as: to- the effocts of chloroform: and laudanum, and whether they would be effective
in stapifying a man so far that he might put his hand to a note for £500, which he
(Manuing) wished to obtain from O’Connor. Manning also inquired what was the most .
vital pact of the human body, and was told the jugular vein. He asked where was the seat
of the brain ; and it was pointed out to him by Massey. Manning further inquired of Massey
whether he had ever discharged an air-gun, and whether it made a noise; and upon another
occaeion, he asked him what he thought would be the end of a murderer. Massey, at the
time, ;ud very little attention to these conversations, which took place about the end of
July. Previously to the 28th of July, both the prisoners expreased their desire most anxiously
that Massey should leave the premises. They said they were going out of town for a time;
:l::y pressed him over and over again ; and on the 28th of July Massey left Manning’s-house,
went to Mr. Bainbridge’s in Bermondsey-square. On the 23rd of July the male pri~
soner went to the house of a builder named Wells, where he purchased a bushel of lime,.
ing that- he wanted it for the purpose of destroying slugs in his garden. Being asked
er he required grey lime or white lime, he said, the lime he wanted was that which
'would burn the quickest, and, accordingly, grey lime was sent. Manning made a bargain with
Myr. Wells's boy, to give him something for taking thelime to his honse. Accordingly, when
the boy took the lime to the house, the door was opened by the female prisoner, who, without
saying anything or hearing anything from him, as to. whether he expected to be paid for his
treuble, gave him some money, and the male prisoner pointed out to him a basket in which it
was to-be shot. On the 25th of July the male prisoner ordered, at a shop in King William-
street, a larqge crow-bar, which was to be made, by agreement, for a certain sum. The crow-
bar was made, and was delivered on the 28th of July. The man who was directed to take it
homie, carried it in his hand, without any wrupper. About the middle of London-bridge he
was-met by Manning, who eomrelained that the crow-bar was not wrapped in paper, and took
the man: to a stationer’s in Tooley -street, where he (Manning) purchased a quantity of paper, .
covered up the crowbar, and then directed the messenger to take it to Minver-place, where
he said a persor would be to receive it. The man went to Minver-place, where the door was
opened by the female prisoner. The man said nothing, but gave her the crow-bar, which was-
covered with paper. She asked him the price, aud when he informed her, she complained
that it was more' than had been bargained for. She,.however, paid him the money, and
received the erow-bar, still wrapped in paper.. Now he (the Attorney-General) must remizd
the Jury that, when the bedy ot O'Connor was found, the crow-bar was not discovered upcm
the premises, nor was it among the articles whicly had been sold to a broker. On the 8ih f
day preceding that on which O’Connor was last seen alive—Mrs, Manning pur-
chased a shovel, stating that she wanted a stout one; and that it was immaterial whether the
haudle was long or short. -On the 8t of August, then, after the  purchase of thelime, the
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crow-bar, and the shovel, Mrs. Manning wrote a letter to O’Connor, asking him to dine at the
house that day, in these terms :—
“ Wednesday morning,
¢ Dear O'Connor,—We shall be happy to see you to dine with us to-day, at half-past five.
¢ Yours, affectionately,
“ MARIA MAxNIXG.”

"This note was posted on the 8th of August, at three o’clock in the afternoon, and was addressed
to O’Connor at the London Docks; it would not, therefore, be delivered until the following
day, and was evidently not the letter which O’Connor had shown to his friends upon the
‘bridge. Indeed, this note was delivered at 0’Connor’s house the following day (the 9th) by a
porter from the docks, Q'Connor having left home at half-past seven in the morning. On
“the evening of the day when that letter was sent (the 8th of August) O’Connor went to the
‘house of the Mannings, lupgily, in company with a gentleman named Walshe. Mrs. Man-
ning said she had written a letter to ask him to dinner, and was surprised he bad not come.
O’Connor replied that he had not received the letter. O'Connor stayed at Manning's house
that night till about twelve o’clock, smoking, but not drinking, aud some conversation took .
lace as to some money which Mr. Walshe had received for him. At twelve o’clock O’Connor
eft, having complained duriag the evening of being unwell. On the 9th he went to the
Docks, and left them at four o’clock. He was seen that evening on London-bridge, again in
‘Weston- street, near Minver-place, and again, when he seemed undecided where to g0, and
from that time he was not seen sgain alive. About a 8lmrter to 8ix o’ciock on the evening
of the 9th, the female prisoner went to the house of O’Connor, in Greenwood-street. He .
(the Attorney-General) had instructed persons to ascertain the period of time that would
be occapied in going from Minver-place to the lodgings in Greenwood-street. He found that
to walk the distance would occupy about forty-two minutes, and to go by omnibus thirty-five
minutes, and by cab about twenty-five minutes. Mrs. Manning stayed at Greenwood-street
that night until about a quarter-past seven o’clock. The male prisoner was certainly in .
Miover-place that evening, for about a quarter-past seven o’clock he was seen smoking and
chatting upon the wall at the back of the premises, where he .remained about twenty
minates, and then suddenly jumped down, and went away abruptly,.saying that he had
to keep an engagement. On the 10th of August, the day following that which they
might reasonably conclude to have been the day of the murder, Mrs. Manning ag+in went
to the house in (x?;eenwoocb street, about a quarter to six o'clock, and remained there about the .
same time she had done the previous evening; and he thought it was not unfair to presume
that she had gone there for the purpose of removing part of O'Counor’s property. Her visit
excited no suspicion, for, as he had said, she was in the constant habit of going to the house;
but the witnesses observed that when she left she appeared nervous and crale. The 10th of .
August was on Friday. Cn the 11th Mrs. Manning engaged a girl to clean the back and
front kitchen in Minver-place, and also directed her to clean a basket in the back kitchen,
which appeared to have been filled with lime. The girl was unable to clean the basket, and
Mrs. Manning endeavoured to do so herself, until she had exhausted all the water on the pre- .
mises. On the sama day, the 11th, the male prisoner went to a stockbroker’s, where, in the
name of Patrick O'Connor, he sold, for £110, twenty of the Eastern Counties Railway shares,
which were unquestionably the property of O’Connor. Manning received for them a £100
note, which was changed at the Baok for fifty sovereigns and five £10 notes; and the notes
thus yriven in change were afterwards found in the p of Mrs. M, g- Theab
of O’Connor from his crdinary duties had naturally created suspicion and i among
his friends; and on Sunday, the 12th, the persons who had met him on London-bridge on the
9th called at the house of the prisoners, where they saw the woman, and asked if she had
seen O’Connor, and whether he had dioed there on the Thursday previously? She said no—
that she had not seen him since the grevious Wednesday, when he had visited her with Mr,
Walshe. She said she had expected him on Thursday, and had called at_his house to inquire
for him. Mr. Walshe was not satisfied with this statement ; and on the Monday Mr. Fiynr, a
relation of the decgased, went again to Minvervglace, where he saw Mrs. Manning. . Mr,
Flynn asked her if O’Connor had been there on the Thutsda)j ? She said he had not. Ac-
cording to the opinion of the witness, she a?peared to, be flurried and indisposed, and he asked
her if she was ill. She said she had been ill a short time before, and that probably accounted
for it. Early on the mominiof the 18th, Manning went to a person named Bainbridge, a
farniture broker, stated that he was going into the country for a time, and agreed to sell the
whole of his furniture for £18. Manning required that the furniture should be removed the
following morning at five o'clock, which was assented to, and Manning then agreed to lodge .
at Bainbridge's house for a fortnight. After the male mmoqer had gone to Bainbridge's
house, he sent a servant to his kouse in Minver-place for his wife. The servant returned, and
said Mra. dlanning had been gone away an hour. Manning himself weat to the house in
Minver-place about five o’clock, and knocked at the door, but was not answered. He mgde
inquiries, aud was informed that his wife had left the house in a cab with some luggage. The
broker's wife asked Manning the same day why, as the furniture was %:;mg to remain in tne
house that night, he did not sleep there, when he stated that he would mot sleep ig
that house for twenty pounds. It appeared that, about four o'clock in the afterncon,
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Mrs. Manning had packed up a large quantity of clothes and other articles ; she called
& cab from the stand, placed her boxes upon it with the assistance ef the driver, and
went to the South-Eastern Railway station, calling at a stationer’s shop on the way, where
she purchased some cards, and wrote upon them the address, “ Mrs. Smith, passenger to
Paris.” On reaching the station she directed the porter to nail these cards on two of her
.. boxes, which she left there. She then directed the driver to proceed to the Euston-square
" station; and, according to her own account, she went by railway to Newcastle, and was
apprehended by the police on the 21st of of August, at Edinburgh, where she was passing
unger the name of Mrs. Smith. The police had reason to suspect she was Mrs. Manning.
They charged her with it; she made no denial ; she was asked for her keys, and gave them
up. In'her boxes, and upon her person, were found seventy-three sovereigns, a £50 note, a
number of £10 notes—five of themn being the notes obtained by the male prisoner st the
Bank, a £5 note paid to Manning by the sharebroker, a quantity of Sambre and Meuse
railway scrip, which was undoubtedly the property of O’Conuor. He (the Attorney-
General) had thus traced Mrs. Manning to the period of her apprehension, and be would
_now return to her husband. On the 15th of August, two days after the male prisoner had
sold his furnitare and taken lodgings at Bainbridge’s, he hired a cab in the morning, and
drove from Bermondsey-square to the Southampton Railway. He was followed, and on the
27th of August was apprehended at Jersey by the police: officers. At this point of the case it
was necessary that he (the Attorney-General) should do what would be afterwards done by
their Lordships—caution the Jury against using adversely tothe female prisoner any declara-
tions made by the male prizoner upon his apprehension. It was necessary that the whole case
should be detailed in evidence before the Jury, but the rules of law precluded the statements
made by Munning from being used adversely against his wife. Manning, when he was a
prehended, made no resistance ; he said he was about to come to London to explain the
whole matter; he stated in substance that the act was committed, not by himself, but by
his wite, and that he was sure'she would admit it in his presence and that of a clergyman;
and he endeavoured, indeed, to cast the whole blame upon her.. Manning described the
manner in which the murder had been committed ; he gaid kis wife asked O’Connor to dinner,
_and that as he was going down-stairs she put her arm round his neck, and shot him in the
head. Manning did not state, however, how it was that O’Connor’s head had been so
cruelly and frightfully mutilated—indeed, knocked to pieces—by some blunt instrument,
probably the crow-bar. ‘These were all the facts of the case. There could be no doubt what-
ever that the man O’Connor was murdered by somebody. The question for the Jury to
determine was, whether both or: either of the prisoners committed the act, or whether
either of them did it with the knowledge and connivance of the other. They would
find that, before the deed was committed, the lime which was undoubtedly used for
the purpose of obliterating, if possible, all traces of the deceased, had been purchased by Man-
ning, and delivered in the presence of his wife ; thatthe crow-bar, which was well calculated
to loosen the hard ground under which the unfortunate m+n was buried, and to raise the flag
which it was hoped would cover him from observation, had been purchased by the male pri-
soner on the 23rd of July, delivered to the female prisoner on the 28th, and paid for by her;
and that on the 8th of August the female prisoner herself purchased a shovel which, although
. it might be used for ordinary purposes, was handy and convenient for the removal of the
earth. It was also evident that, without any netice, the prisoners quitted their house on the
13th of August, after repcated inquiries had been made there about O’Connor; and upon one
of the prisoners was found a large amount of property, a great proportion of which was un-
questionably the property of the deceased; while to the other was traced the possession of
g_(&erty of the deceased, which he (Manning) had converted into money in the name of
'Connor. These were the facts from which the Jury were to draw their conclusions. He
the Attorney-General) was sure they would do so calmly and fairly, patiently and honestly,
ismissing from their minds all they had heard and read upon the subject, and relying solely
upon what would be proved in evidence.
‘The firat witness called was Henry Barnes, the policeman who discovered the remains of
the unfortunate Patrick O’Connor. .

HENRY BARNES'S EVIDENCE.

Henry Barnes, examined by Mr. Clarkson. He said: I am (a police-constable of the

K division. In consequence of information I had previously received, I went on Friday,

“the 17th of August last, to No. 3, Minver-place, accoinpanied by another ufticer named Bur-
_ton, who had a key in his possession which unlocked the door. “We found the house empty.,
In the back kitchen I observed a damp mark between the edges of two of the flag-stones,and

“this arrested my attention. With the assistance of Burton I.removed the stones. There was
mortar underneath, and then earth. The stones appeared to have been recently removed.

We proceeded to remove portions of the earth, and when we had got about twelve inches

down we came u@n the toe of a man, and when about six inches further we came upon the

loins of a man. The body was lyin'f on the belly, and the legs were drawn back and tied to

the haunches with a strong cord. The body was quite naked. We removed more earth, and

at length we found the remainder of the tgo&y. The cord with which the legs were tied was.
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about the size of a clothes’ line. The body was comp fmbodded in slacked Time, Wr.
Leckwood, surgeon, came in during our operations, and, e the body remained ¥ in the
hole, took a set of false teeth from the mouth. I did not examinethe head closely, and did
not see whether anything particular had ed toit. We removed the into the
f ont kitchen, where it was examined by Mr. wood and Mr. Odling, another surgeen.
Mr. Flynn came in also, and examined the body. The body remained in the house till after
the in(ﬂut. On the same day I went to the residence of Mr. O’Connor, 21, Greenwood-
.street, Mile-end-road, where I saw a box said to belong to deceased. It was unlocked, but
sealed. It had been forced open by Mr. Flynn on the 13th, and a seal aﬂarwardn&utuﬁ
it. Within that box I found a cash-box, but no cash. There were only some IO U’s, &
memoranda, and ether papers.

By Mr. Ser%mnt Wilkins: One of the atopes we removed from the floor of the back
kitc‘gen of No. 8, Minver-place, was about twoTfeat square. The other was about three foet long
and two feet wide. They were thick, heavy stones, and we were obliged to use a crow-bar to
remove them. We borrowed a crow-bar for the purpose from some Jabourers. The soil we
removed was wet, and was smthi%like what is called “made earth.” I am well ac-

d with the premises now. ere is a small garden at the back. Supposing one en-
Sered the house by the street-door, he would find the front parlour on the right-hand side of
the passage. The two kitchens are under the parlours. There are houses on each side of it.
1 know nothing of the nature of the partitions, nor whether persons could be heard speaking
in the adjoining houses.

Jamm’Bnrton. examined by Mr. Bodkin, said: I am a police-constable of the M division.
On Tuesday, the 14th of Au?t, I went to the house, No. 3, Minver-ghee, along with Mr.
XKeating, Mr. Meade, and another gentleman. We found it emrpt . [ ‘was there also on
Friday, the 17th, when the stones were removed from the floor of the back kitchen, and the
mw The size of the opening was sbout 5 feet long, 2 feet broad, and between 2 and

By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: I went to the honse first, as I have said, on the 14th. On that
oecasion I found 28 pieces of linen, which appeared to be clean and fresh washed. I alse
found same boxes, but they were not such as goods are sent in. Tn the back kitchen T also
found a shovel. Different shrubs wers growing in the gardem, and likewise some acarlet-
runners, tied up with string, ..

MR. LOCKWOOD'S EVIRENCE.

‘M. Lockwood, examined by M. Clerk, said: I am a surgeon, residingin Newington. On
the 17th August I went to the prisoners’ house, No.8, Minver-place, and found the constabies
Barnes and Burton there. 1 went into the back kitchen, and found that some slabs had been
removed from the floor. Part of a body was visible in the hale from which the slabs hatl
Hoen removed.  After some time I saw the’ entirely uncovered. The legs were beit
back to the haunches, and tied te the body in that poai{ion. Before the body wss removed
$rom the hole, T took from the mouth of the deceased & set of falge teeth. The body was
¥hen taken to the front kitchen.  Mr. Odling, another surgeon, cut the cords. T examined
‘the head in the front kitchen. I perceived a protuberance, which was hard and movedble,
over the right g“e. I cut down upon it, and found a ‘bullet inside, which T have row-in uq
possession. [ Mr. Lockwood here produced the bullet.] On the back part of the head
Journd extensive fractures. I could not trace the course of the bullet on account of the ex~
-tensive fractures and the decamposition of the brain. I am not aware of the precise number
«f fractures, but 1 extracted sixteen pieces of bone. ‘The wounds on the head were such as
niight have been produced by a crow-bar or chisel. There were contused as well as incised
‘wounds. Thefractures and the wound from the bullet wounld undoubtedly have occasionsl

death. T was present at the post mortem exaniination. The intestines of the deceased were
spexfectly healthy-looking ; the brain was decomposed.
‘Mr. €. Slow, summoning officer, profluced a set of flse teeth, which he'had received from
ilgir. Lock]wood. Mr. Lockwood identified them as those he had taken from the body foand at

nver-place.

Mr. W. Comley, dentist, 7, Oibexnevgiveet, Whitechapel, deposedl that he knew the late Mr.
Wnu%,ndmuhim the set-of false teath now produced. .

Mr. Pierce Waldhe, examined by the Attorney-General: I'knew the deceased, Patrick
‘OConnor.  On the 17th of August I went to the prisoners’ house, but did nat get in then.
‘The next day I got in, ard was shown a dead body, which 1 recognised as that of Patrick
‘O'Counor. 1 saw him alive on the 8th of August, and was at his lodgings in Greenwood-
atreet, Mile-end, and accompanied him thence to the honse of the prigoners, in Minver-place.
Mr. .ianning let us in. It was about a quarter to ten ¢’clock. ” The male prisoner was at
&ome, and we all sat down together. The fimale prisoner asked deceased why he did not
gome to dinner that da{ She said they 'kept dinner waiting an hear, .and wanted to know if
Jhe had got her note. ‘Ihe deceased seid he had vot. T said, perhaps she bad posted it tao
late, and she remarked that:no doubt he would get it the next day. The deceased then said
that 1 had got the balance of Mr. Pitt’s bill that day for bind, #and for which an execution had
been taken out by the officers of the court at Charles-square, Hoxton. Mrs. Mamning then
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duced, but the decgased did not drink any. We went away about twelve ¢’cleck. I acoem-
panied the deceased on his way home, and when I left dim he appeared quite well. I nower
saw him |§linnlive. The prisoners appeared to be as fri
By Mr. Ballantine: Mrs. Manning procared some eau-de-Cologne aod bathed. decensed’s
tompluwithit,bntitdidnota&pmuhvethehltmm ri him to.
By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: I believe Pitt is a grocer in the Be -
M{W. ing, examined by Mr. Bodkin, said: I am clerk in the Examiner's-ofice
t:eCusmanwId l:'(tlg:,dm I uwl;im luﬂteshve onﬂ:h eveni o:fg:o:th o
ust, on on-bri abont a quarter to five. He was on the Sarrey e bridge,
an‘:igmgoinginmatdimﬁon. Aq named Graham was with me, and. we stopped
and had some conversation with the deceased, and he showed us a letter.
‘Mr. Bodkin: Did you notice the name?
Mr. Ballantine objeeted to the question, as he understood there was no evidence o show
¢hat there was any connexion between the prisomers and that letter.
“The Chief Baron admitted the objection. ' )
'Mr. Keating’s examination continned: After some conversation with Mr. Grshem and
myself, deceased pursued his wg“towank Bemmdsa, and he appeared’in his usual heakth
snd ts. On the Sunday following I went to Minver-place, and the female prisoner
%m the door and let mein. I asked her if Mr. 0"Connor had gone to dine there on the
ui

nd&zel;:on,a " ‘** ° d not dined there on that day. 1-then asked her if she
had not at hi sday and Friday night, and she szid she had; and she
also told me that ?huudnym:lﬁ' to inquire after his health, as he had
been at her house . and was not w Inplied'muw-vug;tm:u
he had been seen by two frienda coinc in thet direction. She no
oply, and I asked if 1 cowia see mr. Manning, have seen him, and she
me that Mr. thought it was very not to keep his ap
ment to dinner. 1 tho she seemed very nervous wmio » was wmaing to her{ and 1
n inquired for Mr. Mamning she said -he was out, and she t he was gene to

asked if I could see Mr. Manning in the evening, about six o’clock, if I called, and
she told me thc‘!m:both asked out to tea. I have frequently seen the female pri n
mpmy withwbe. O'Cohnor, and they appeared on very friéndly terms. l-nm
w on texms.

By ‘Mir. Ballantine : 1 never agwd sy chlar intimpey between Mrs. Manning and
the decensed. 1am aware that nnor and Mrs. Manning were a¢quainted with sdch other
before Manning and he were scquainted. I have met Mrs. Manning and deceased walking

a m many times. en I have been at Mr. O'Connor’s lodgings, I have also
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there. I have left them thero alone as late as eight o'clock atnight.
Manning totd me she had been at 0"Connor’s lodgings on the 9th of Amgust. ‘She:saill
ghe had been there atout seven o’clock ; but whether was ‘thetime she left her own houss
or arrived at 0’Connor’s 1 g, I caonot say. :
David Graham, examined by Mr. Clerk, said: T am an officer of the Customs. 1 was as
ted with the late Mr. or; and the Iast time I saw him alive was on the 9th of
ulgut, when Mr. K and I met him on London-bridge. It was dbout a quarter-to five
&’clock in the aftarnoon when we saw him. On the 12th of August T went with ar.
to Minver-place. Mrs.:Manning let ns in. I saw no one else but Mrs. 1
& conversation between Mr. Keating and Mrs. Manni He asked ‘when she had sees Mn
O’Connor, and she replied that she not seen him smee Wednesday, and he was then W
unwell. H&:u obliged to lie down upon the sofs, and she rubbed his face with ead,
Thncsasy evening or e patyoss of ssostoing mpy oo 1nh ot Sonm v immer, e, Maa:
¥ 1y evening, for the. why he conve to-dinner. M.’
ning, sbe said, thought it uogentlemanly of M S Cymon potete come. Mr. Kesting' selked
ahning, and was told that he had gone to church. ‘Mr. Keating said he would peshaps
gﬂutdem in the evening; but she said it would be of no use, as they were going out

By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: Manning’s house is about half a mile from the spot on Fomfions
bridge where I and Mr. Keating met O%onnor. They met him at a bs:nnnoﬂduk
By Mr. Parry: 1'knew Mr. O'Connor, but not veryintimatély. 1 have seen Mts.’
and him walking together three or four times. 1 also saw Mrs. Mamning onoe st
honse. I left them er, and they appeared very friendly. lr(l;&m oceupled twe
roams on one floor—a bed-room aund sitting-room. : .

It bdns now nearly two o'clock, the Court and Jury slfjourhed afew minutes for the puec
g some réfreshment. Upon their returm, Co ' '
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- By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: He wss, going:in the direction of Minver- S
- Jaohn Yoanghusband, examined by the Attoiney-Genera), said: mew the Jate Mr.
O’Connor. He saw him last on the 9th of Aygust, on London-bridge., It was about a
quarter-past. five o'cleck-when he saw him. .He was walking very slowly, and stopping, as if
undecided which way.to.go. Witness was.on the top of an omnibue.
By;ﬁzr. Sergeant. Wilkipg: O’Connor was walking towards the City at the moment witness
saw him.

_ Sophia Payne, examined by Mr. Clarkson, said: I live at 2, Minver-place. I knoew
Manning, the male prisoner. 1 remember hearing a rumour of the murder of Mr. O’Connor.
On the Monday after I heard it Manning came to my door, about six o’clock in the evening,
and asked permission to go through my house to his own, because his wife had gone out., 1

ve him permission, and he got over the garden-wall to_his own house. On the Thursda

fore that Monday, I saw him, about .a_quarter to seven in the evening, sitting on his
en-wall, smoking & pipe. I.conversed with.him about 20 minutes, when he suddenly
jumped down, ”yinﬁ' he had an appointment to attend to which he had forgotten, and he
must go and dress. Isaw him no more that evening. I left home about half-past seven, and
retyraed about eleven. I left my hnsband at.lrome.

By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: It was quite light when I saw the prisoner Manning on tha
gu'tf;n-wall. He was sitting with his legs towards his own garden. He was dressed as
wnal; and looked asusual. - His garden was rather larger than ours. He had flowers in it;
but I am not, aware whether he was in the habit of paying particular attention to them.
‘When people are bustling about in the house adjoining ours, we can hear them, if we are quiet.
Wae take tea aboyt five o’clock. During that time we are rather quiet. Lithograph rinting
is carried on in our house; but it does not commence till seven in the evening. g‘hexe 15
nothing else in our house likely to make a noise.

By Mr. Clarkson : I have children; but I always keep them very quiet.

By the Attorney-General: I am quite sure about the hour at which I had the conversa-
tion with the male prisoner, Manning, in the ?:den; for it was just before my husband came
home. _He generally comes home at seven o’clock. - '

. Mr. Flynn, examined by Mr. Bodkin, said: I am an officer of the Customs. I was ac-
quainted with the deceased, Mr. O’Connor. In consequence of his absence from home, I
went to Minver-place on Sunday, the 12th of August, to make inquiries about him, but
I did not get in. I went again on Monday, accompanied by a police-officer in private
clothes. 1 saw Mrs. Manning, and had some conversation with her.  I.asked for her hus-
band, and ghe sgid he was not. in. I said I was a friend of Mr, O'Connor’s, and wanted
to know if she or her husband had heard anything of him? .She said “No.” I said it
'Waa very strange; and she replied, that it was very.odd indeed, for some friends had seen
Bim: on London-bridge on the 9th. She mentioned Mr. Keating’s name as one of the per-
sons who had seen him. She said that Mr. O’Connor was a very fickle-mindéd man; he
often came into her house, and: stopped a.minate or two, and then suddenl‘g'xgumped up
and went away. She then said it was probable he was.at a place at Vauxhall, where
she had been with him once or twice, and she mentioned the name of Walshe. After thig
she said, “Poor Mr. O’Connor; he was the best friend I had in London.” When she said
this, I fancied her countenance chanied, and she became pale; and I inquired if she was
ill, . or \if the room was too warm? She replied, “No;” and that six weeks before she had’
been ill. I next asked her if she had been to Mr. O’Connor’s Jodgings on the 9th; and
she said she had.. I asked her what time she left her own place, and she at first said’
six o’dock 5 and on x::gdashng if she was certain of the time, she said it might be &

-(Eut; and she added, that she had met one ar two friends going down. AsI was
vipg her -she said, “You gentlemen are very susceptible.” ) .

v 1. Bodkin : Did she give any explanation af this expression? ~ . .
«,Witness: She did not. |, . L )

.. By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: The deceased kept his money in {a eash-box in his trunk, and
his trunk stood in h(ig Jbed-room. . »
1.8y the Attorney-General : 1 went to the lodgings of the deceased after I'had been at Min-
wekrplace. I forced open his-trunk, and. found in his cash-box .a few memoranda, but no.

By a Juryman: There was nothing said by me to elicit from Mrs. Manning the expression,
¢ Poer Mr. O’Connor.” - . . : . .

Ann Armes, residing in Greenwood-street, Mile-end- road, was next called : Mr. O’Connox
resided in, my house nearllv] five years. He occupied two rooms on the first floor, re:di{
farnished. : I recollect that he left my house on the morning ¢f the 9th of August, at balf~
past seven o’clock. There are two dogrs to my house—one to the shop, and one to Mr. O’Con-
nor’s rooms. He never returned after going out on the day I have mentioned. I know the
female prisoner. She was in the habit of vieiting M. O’Connor, particularly during the last
month before he disappeared. She generally came slone; but once or twice Mr. Manning
cqme with her, and .also Mr. Msssey, I saw Mra, Manning go up-stairs to Mr. O’Conxor’s
Foom at & quarter past six o’clock on the evening of.the 9th of August.. She remained till 8
ml)ast seven p'clock. No one else -callcd that evening. . On leaving the house, Mrs..

ing came through the shop. She usually went out by the private door. I saw her
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again next day, when she came about the same time, and went up-stairs to Mr. Q'Connor’s
room. She remained till a quarter past seven o’clock, and, on passing through the shop, she

half-a-crown, and bought some article. I thought there was oomethin& singular
about her ap nce. She trembled very much. I noticed that she gave the money
with her left hand. - On Frid‘KI, Mr. Flynn came to O’Counor’s lodgi On the Friday
before Mr. Q’Connor left, Mrs. Manning came alone, and went into Mr, O’Connor’s room. I
heard Mrs. Manning then say she wanted to purchase some railway shares. Mr. O’Connor
had his cash-box before him, and had taken out some papers, which lay on the table.

Cross-examined by Mr: Sergeant Wilkins: Mr. O’Connor always carried his keys on his
own person. When Mrs, Manning came she usually had tea with Mr. O’Connor. The key
of the tea-caddy, from which Mr. O’Connor took the tea, was on the bunch, among his other
keys. I have seen Mr. Manning along with Mrs. Manning, at Mr. O'Connor’s lodgings ;
Mr. Massey also. They all seemed 0a good terms. My parlour is under Mr. O’Connor’s
room. During business hours, I am sometimes in the shop, and sometimes in the parlour;
and I can hear any one passing up. When Mis. Manning paid the money with her left
hand, she seemed to have a parcel in her right. On the Friday evening, previous to Mr:
O’Connor’s going, I saw the cash-box lying on the table in Mrs ‘Manniog’s presence. I have
geen Mrs. Manning in O’Connor’s bed-room, but never when they were alone. .

By Mr. Ballantine: Did not hear Mrs. Manning say where she had got her money to buy
shares. When the cash-box was on the table, O’Connor seemed to be pointing out certain
8apers to Mrs, Manning. He pointed to particular papers, and said, “ These would be the best.”

"Connor had fodged with me about five years, and the Mannings had visited him for about
twelve months. Manning never slept in the house, to my knowledge. I never was

aid any sum for her by O'Connor. I never was paid nine shillings on ber ‘account by

‘Connor. Some boxes once came, with thename of Roux on. them ; but they were not

allowed to go up-stairs, I think Mrs. Manning came at the same time with the boxes. This
was about a year and three months ago.
- Emily Armes, examined by Mr. Clerk : Is sister to the preceding witness. Recollects the
time when Mr. O’Connor was missinf. Oa the Friday previous, heard a conversation between
Mr, O’Connor and Mrs. Manning. It was about railway shares. ‘She said she wished to buy
some. O’Connor was showing her some shares, and he said, pointing to a lot, “ No, not that.”
He then advised her to purchase some shares, the name of which I for et. On the Thursday
evening after Mr. O’Connor went away, Mrs. Manning came and asked if he was at home 2
She was told he was not, and she then passed on to his room. I observed her looking very
pale when she went out, as she was purchasing some biscuits in the shop. Next night
(Friday?( she again called, and went up-stairs into his room as before. ghe this night,
also, looked very pale and shaky as she passed ont. There was a difference in. her appear-
ance on Friday as compared with Thursday. She was more shaky, and her left hand trem-
bled very much. .

By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: Mrs, Manninsg was paler than usual. She bought some cake on
Thursday, and paid for it with coppers. She was dressed in a visitez. When she asked for
O’Connor, the witness did not say that he had been out all night, .

By Mr. Ballantine : Mrs, Manning, on going out, could have passed through the private
door, and not come near the shop at all. On previous occasions she had done so, when Mr.
O’Connor let her out. I have let her out by the private door. Iam not a servant in the
house, but live with my sister. I recollect some bLoxes coming, with the address, “ Miss
Rouf” upon them. It was not % Roux ;” I am certain of that. Mrs. Manning came
with the boxes. She had a bed at our house that night. Mr, O'Connor asked whether
we could provide a bed for his friend and her husband.  The husband did not come.

‘By the Attorney-General : I have seen the letter now produced. It was brought to our
hot'xsp on Fri lay, the 10th, by a person who said he was from the Docks. I believe the

. writing inside to be that of the female prisoner. L L .
. 13’ yir Ballantine: Mr. O’Connor never paid 9s. on account of Mrs. Manning having slept
in the C

ouse. ‘ .
WILLIAM MASSEY’S. EVIDENCE.

William Massey, medical student, was examined by the. Attorney-General : I resided with
the _Mxnnin? for fourteen weeks. . They kept no servant, but a charwoman was occasjonally
employed. I left on the 28th of July, because they appeared anxious that I should do so.
They said they were going out of town on Monday, and I left on the Saturday. I have fre-
quently seen Mr. O'Connor there. The male prisoner has sometimes gpoken to me about
him. He once told me his wife had been to the Docks, where she had seen O'Connor in 2

state of intoxication, he having taken large quantities of brandy as a precaution against
cholera. He told me also that she had seen his 'will, and 'that he had left her all, or the
greater ant of his property, and that he was a man worth £20,000 L "

The Attorney-General: Has he on those occasions ever spoken to you of drugs that will
produce at?efaction ?—He has—he has spoken of laudanum. In the first place, he asked me
what would best produce stupefaction, or partial intoxication, so as to get a person to put his
hand to pager. . He asked whether chloroform or laudanum wou 1d produce stupefiction.
said those drugs had no doubt been used for such pyrposes.  When spéaking of theee things

ioes
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bh;%')mbdommﬂmdtho md(?o«m and had referred t0 bis having s seti-

amount of money. ‘He said very apprehensive of cholera; and the
oburv':gdtg 1‘130. “chlhg hhnllgbwttbebolca,ndpmhhtomm
asa c for it.

Did be ever ask you any questions about the head ?—Yes; .he once asked me what part -of
the head it would be most fatal to strike. I said I believed a blow behind the ear would
most likely be attended with fatal effects. He once asked me where the brain-wes placed,
sud I pointed out the part.

‘Was there anything said about an sir-gun ?—There was. e asked me-about the nature
of an air-gun, and I said I had heard of such & thing, but that I had never fired ome.

Dudyon ever talk about what wonld be the fate of a mmrderer?—We once .talked on that

was said about the wax figure of Rush at lladm'l‘u-nd’a,nlb
alked me if a murderer went to heaven. I said “No.”
bliiwe aevermmnlemhthhm?—lhnm.lawmm,dhm
r. nnor.
Sergeant Wilkins: You being & medical student, questions connected with your
prot{mon sometimes became the topic o%eouvmuﬁon? Yes.

Mary Wells : ‘My father carries on the business of & builder. I know the male prisoner,
and remember him coming to my father’s house to purchue lime some time at the end -of
July. He said he wanted it to kill slugs in the garden. I asked him which ke would have,
white or grey. He said he would have that kind which burmed quickest. We had me

white, and he then said he would takeﬁy and he wrote a direction on paper where
to send it to. I delivered that direction to Richard Welsh, who was the person sent with the

By Mr. Bergeant Wilkins: Our house is five minutes’ wilk from Minver-place. The
servant was preset at the time, and might hear all that passed. The lime was sent home
two days afterwards, and no inqmrv was made afger it in the mesntime,

RichardWelsh a boy in the mg)o'ymentofllr ‘Wells, was next called: I carried sesne
lime to vaer—plwe, on the 2 July. I saw the prisoner Hlnningl:gr the liwme.
When I took it to Minver-place I saw the female prisoner. There was a oflmo.  §
took it down to the kitchen by direction of Mr. Manning, where I shot it into & basket.
Manning asked me to call next dtv, and he would see if he could gvtnmph,of lnlfpanl.
for me. I called next ﬁ‘ﬁ got ‘three ce from Mrs.

By Mr. Sergeant W Im resent when the lime was The direction was
given to me, but I did not read it. 1had beard Manning give his address as well as write
it, and I knew where tofv

‘William Danby, examined by ‘Mr. Bodkin: I am in the moymt of Mr, Evans, an
jronmonger in ng William-street. On the 25th of July the ptisoner -ordered a crow-
bar, in all respects the same as that now produced, ceEt that it was ﬁve inches longer. He
directedittobeaenteoﬂo.ﬂ,ninnr-phce. Itooki ome on the 28th July. The prisoner
was told the price would be 2s. 6d. As I was going along, carring the crow-barin:my hand,
the male prisoner met. me on the bridge, and asked if "had & crow-ber forhim? He said
Iought to have wrapped it up in paper, as he did not wish body ‘to see what hs

{ rc¢hasing. He then went into a stationer’s shop anf ‘bought some brown paper,
which he put round the crow-bar and tied it with a string. He then went ‘to the ‘cornes
of the Maze, and showed me the way to his house, saying that some -one there woul pay
for the crow-bar. A stont lady (Mrs Manning) openedthadoor to me. The crow-barwas
at fhis time so covered u thntnoputohteonldbomn Manning- asked if T had
brought that from King William-street. I said “Yes,” f:” her the bill, when she
r;toompldnodthatit was charged rather more than was agreed rlttholhop. 1 got 8s. 64,

it.

By Mr. Ser Wilkins: There were three or four persons in the shop when the-crow-
bar was If Manning had not given-his.address; I should-not have'known where to
take it to, as I never aaw him before. aﬁ«::g to the st.monerubop,hesddwo might

have wnpped it up in paper; but he t say thatany.tespactable dealer would have

l(rBallmtme ‘When Mr. ltmning ordered the .crow-bar, he did not uywhuln
'lnbdnfo: Ido not know whether it was termed & “chisel,” a “ripping chisel,” or
& crow-bar,” in the bill. There was more than one foldofpsperover twhonltookith
ll‘lmver-plm. When Manning left me, we were not more than five minutes’ walk from lis

Mr. Lockwood, the surgeon, was recalled ; and, in answer to questions put the Attoraey-
Guenl,mdtlm,mhulxgnm, -such an wnmentu&ngnowpmdn or ene five or
six inches longer, would i ctthewonndshouw on the head of Mr. O*Connot.

By Mr. Sergeaut W. : The wonnds might have been infliated by = shotter s well as
byalougerinstrumentthmthum

By the Chief Baren: Yonmtod in your -evidence that some of the wonnds were incised
*Corna you, fron Arancn ofthe wounds, form any apinion as te fhe length of time

as to
whkhhzldmnddmm inﬂleuﬂ?—leonldm;bntlﬁmkﬂuymhmm
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dnflicted mweek oreo hefeve. I have o devht that when I saw the body it must have been
under the ground a week at least.

‘What grounds have you for thiaking 8e7~The bedy was in such 8 state of-extensive de-
composition as led me to thiok-so.

In forming yemr jndgnut.did you take into consideration the fact that lime had been
wsed p—I did. ’Phol-e omllymdwbodywdmm iclear,

By the Chief Bawen : Taking into ocensideration the quantity of lime md.«l .stifl
form an opinion as to whether the body had been under the ground for a week wb?ql
w‘.ﬁr mwﬁ?%ﬁ"“ﬁﬁ"ﬂ?fm from what you had previeusly

3 arrive.at on w
bo?!di—lfomndmyopmmn npmhemmthewyd-ym body wes nkonmofﬂh
un
smllad you previously heard that the body wu mmmg?—l had heard that, but I formed
]ndgment entmly from the :mnrm

iy the Jury : Would not the of the limahoto Mgmﬁe features very much?—

Yes; mdas mnghtnotben.bletotmeehm

Bythe Wm&emmddmdummh&dﬂmuhu-ﬁyuﬁo
b:g?-—;miymb&blg‘;.pm intimately acquainted with the person of the deceased

10 i

Would the external epplication of lime maks any difference lzoettoﬁndmn—
mdhmmchludmymwuywum&inlﬂ state?—The lime
might beabsorbed through the fractures of the skull, and so cause the decomposition of the

Did you examine the intestines, and did their appesrance throw any light upon the time
Mthcbdyhndlmnndumnd?—ldﬂd,nhng with Mr. Odling ; and they were founfl
umuehduompwduﬂnocberm ould have led me to expect.

William Cahill, examined b: Cleck: I-naho’nntol(r.hnghy irommonger
‘in Tooley~street. On the 8th of August'the female prisoner came tothe shop to purchase s
. shevel, and sbe usid she wished to have & sirong one. 1:recommended herto have a regular
‘wooden-handled long one, but she said a short one would do, md she purchased one; andiI
mﬁmﬂu :address she gave me—No. 3, Minver-place. The shovel produced is Mml

T
" Mr. Ballantine: This shovel cost 1s.3d. She might have purchased @ common spade
for

William Sopp proved that he obtained the showel referred to by the last witness from
Mr, m»mmm,mmmmm»u-nunm
Henry Barues, the policesconstable, recalled : I am sure the shovel was not in:the honsesn

ﬂntedmuwuhnhshtwnhmnho{lmooni >Itddilm-l.culdm 80, becanse
my hand was bad, and the prisoner then let the water run through the busket wntil it all
Zan away.

Do you see that woman here?—The witness looked round the whole court beforeshe
turned towards the dock, iand, immediately on her eyes resting on Mre. Manning, she om-
claimed, “ There she is” 1'heard a eonversation between Mr. ﬁamﬂngud wife,. Iwas
at the coal-cellar when I heasd the male prisoner stamp-with his foot, and tolmw&,
“szﬁodimly" Dbempﬁul that she aveuld, ‘and I heard no mere, 28 1 was:then in

the coal-hole.

Mr. Ballantine: The kitchen looked neither -dlean mor me
o B‘rmywuk.lmtlwunotmldndhtothawm oy ditty. They v
ahomed some sitakion, but on Sir. Blientioe Tepeacing the quesions she o L"‘a.-"".n."‘« o
some -,
@ir; I will tell the truth, fotitwrllgnfnm“

That’s right. Nw,uﬂuwhtyu&dhk.mq!—lmothﬂauythh‘ T otk
an egg from the larder.

And a rasor?—Yes, air.

: ’?hm?m?—-i‘ma&:x
ou took an egg from: lm!canlamﬁm&obo:. W-Muythhg-on?—
‘fcs, #iry & purse out of -the drawer.
ng beaides the purse?—I tdo-not remember.
yonnotnh pﬁd’mt—“lgdr mm;!w
o0k -one pairont ¢f the
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* 'Then you took some clothes belonging to Mrs. Manning—a dress and petticoat, did yow
not ?—I don’t recollect any more, sir.
* Nor a smelling-bottle ?—I don’t remember about the smelling-bottle.

Mr. Ballantine: Oh! you can’t recollect any more. You may go.

' The witness then left the court, having, by the confession of these various thefts, left an

impression on the minds of the audience very different from that which she had created du-

:ii:.g 11}19 first part of her evidence, which she gave with much clearness and appearance of
plicity.

Jame:yColeman, a builder, and landlord of No 8, Minver-place, proved that he let the
house to the Mannings, and that they left it without notice, though they were yearly tenants.
On the Tuesday evening succeeding the 9th of August, he found the house empty.

By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: No marble chimney-piece was put up by the Mannings.

MR. BAINBRIDGE'S EVIDENCE.

Charles Bainbridge said: I am a broker in Bermondsey-square. I had known the male
prisoner for about two months before July last. .He made me an offer to sell all bis furniture,
and I went over the house with the female prisoner, and agreed to give her £13 for the whole
of it. - Mrs. Manning wanted £16, and I refused to give it; and on the 13th of August I
-agreed to give £13 10s. The male prisoner wanted me to take the furniture on the following
-morning, at five o’clock, but I refused, saying it would look bad. The male prisoner afterwards

“told me that his “governor” was not going away for a fortnight, and he proposed to lodge
with me for that time; and he agreed to give 10s. per week. Shortly afier tgia he told me
that he had started his wite off into the country, and that night he slept at my house. There
was some linen 1n the house which was not included in my purchase, and he wished me to
take charge of it, and also a new.hat ; and he #aid he should be in the country about two.
‘months. Among the property which I removed from the prisoner's house, was the new shovel
Xhich has been produced. 1 last saw the male prisoner on the morning ot the 15th of
ugust. :
. By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: I am.sure the prisoner said that he had started his wife off into:
the country. IHe slept at my house on the Monday night and the Tuesday night, and be
:weat away on the following morning. There was no coalpick or axe ameng the articles I
purchased of the prisoner.
Mr. Bodkin : ‘There was no crow-bar among the articles. -

Mrs. Bainbridge, the wife of the last witness, deposed that, upon examining a dress, which

i was one of the articles purchased by her husband, she observed .a mark as:though there bad
‘been blood upon it, and it appeared to heras though it had been imperfectly wasbed and dried,
-and had tecome mildewed. The male prisoner left their house on the Wedneedasy morning,
-taking with him a carpet-bag and a trunk, and be told her he was going to sea-bathing. Om
the Monday before he went away he told her that he had sent his wife off into the country.
- At this time the goods were still in the house in Minver-place, and she asked the prisoner
whether he would sleep there, and he aaid, “ I would not sleep there for £20.”

By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: Witness would swesr the prisoner did not say that his wife had
started off into the country, but that he bad sent her there himself. .

The witness was cross-examined at some length as.to her reason for supposing that there
were marks of blood upon the dress, but she only repeated that the dress appeared to her to

-have been washed and imperfectly dried. The spots of blood, she thought, would not come
out without boiling. . - .

Matilda Wellden deposed that in August last she was living at Mr. Bainbridge’s as servant,
-and remembered the prisoner Fredrick M:nning coming there on the 18th of August. He
-sent her to Minver-place to fetch his wife, but she could not find the house, and the prisoner
‘then went himself. the evening before the goods were removed, he told her that. if any-
. body inquired for him, she was to say that she had not seen him for a fortnight.

By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins : Whenshg was first examined, she said she did not know whether
the prisoner said that his wife had Slone into the country, or whether he had sent her there.

Scholefield ‘deposed that she lived opposite the pritoners’ house in Minver-place.

About half-past 3 o’clock on Monday, the 13th of August, she saw the female prisoner go

‘away ina cab, with several boxes and other luggage. The male prisoner went to the house

lbo:gt haif-past 5, and knocked et the door and the window, and when he found he could not

get in, he came to her and asked if she had seen his wife go away. She told him she had;

and he then asked if she had nﬁ' luggage with her, and she said she had. Tbe prisoner then
thanked her and went over to Minver-place, and knocked at No. 2, and went io.

William Byford, the driver of a hackney-cab, depused that he drove the male prisoner to
the Southampton Railway station on the morning of the 14th.of August, and by his direc~
tion he went through Bermondsey-street, wh'ch was much further round.

William Kirk, cab-driver, said: On tbe 13th of August, the female prisoner came to the
stand where I was, and hired my cab. It was about half-past three o’clock. She asked me
to.take two boxes and other things from the house in Minver-place to the cab. She got out
on the 1ill, coming to Loncon-bridge, and went in to &.stationer’s.. I then drove to the
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London: bridge station, and there saw some cands attached to the boxes. -Shs left two baxes,
there, and 1 then drove her to the Euston station., - ) )
- 'W. Day, porter at the London-bridge terminus: Oa the 13th of August I recollect the fe-.
male prisoner leaving two boxes at the station. She gave me two cards, on which were
written either “ Mys.” or % Miss Smith, , Paris.” I placed them on the boxes, .
and took the latter to the cloak-room, to be left till called for.

MR. RICHARD J. MOXHAY'S EVIDENCE.

Richard J. Moxhay, superintendent of police, Edinburgh: On the 21st of August, I went "
with a Mr. Dobson to a lodging-house in Leith-walk. 1 left Mr. Dobson at the door, and,
foing intoa room, saw a lady. I said, “ Mrs. Smith, I presume?” and then I added, « May"

be allowed to ask if yon are a married lady?” She said she was, and that her husband’s
name had been Smith, but that he was dead. She stated that she came to town on the
Tuesday or Wednesday previously, and that there was no person in Edinburgh to whom she
could refer but Mr. Shaw, a gentleman over the way, who had recommended her to the lodg-
ings in which I found ber. She further stated that she had last come from Newcastle, and
that her object was to improve her health, adding that she had bathed at Portobello. I asked
if she had any scrip? when she said, “ What do you mean by scrip?” I replied, * Any
railway shares?” when she said she had not, nor had she been offering any for sale. I then
looked very intently at her, and said, “ My impiession is that you are the wife of Frederick
George Manning.” I then directed an oflicer who accompanied me to ask Mr. Dobson to
comein. That gentleman accordingly entered, and said, “ That is the lady who offered me
scrip for sale.” I asked her if she had any objection to let me see her luggage, and she said,
<Certaialy not.” I got her keys from her, on opening a truok, the first thing found was
a tavera bill-head, with the name “F. G. Manning, Taunton,” upon it. The moment I saw
that, I said, “ My suspicionsare confirmed ; put all these things up;” and then turning to Mrs.
Manning, I informed her that I was the superintendent of police, and, after cautioning her in -
the usual terms, I asked if she had any scrip? She replied—“Scrip? Oh yes, scrip of my
own.” She said she had no objection to my looking at it. In one of her trunks I found a
certain number of sovereigns, and scrip of the Sambre and Meuse Railway, numbered from
6460 to 6469 inclusive, and also of the same railway, numbered fromn 26,523 to 26,582 both”
inclusive. There was also scrip of the Boulogne and Amiens Railway, numbered from
48,665 to 48,674, both inclusive; a certificate of Spanish bonds, numbered 3620, and some '
other scrip. There was a purse containing 78 sovereigns; also a Bank of England note for
£50, numbered 11,037, and dated the 9th of November, 1848; six £10 Bank of Englahd’
Dotes, five of which were numbered from 67,372 to 67,376, and the remaining one 78,378 ; and-
one Bank of England note was numbered 20,051. There was, besides, a luggage-:
ticket, and a ticket for excess of luggage between London and Newcastle, having upon.
it the name of Smith, and a number of other articles. I asked her about her husband afier
taking her to the police-office. I asked her if she had any objection to tell me where he'
was? She said, “ Upon my honour, I do not know. I came off from London suddenly, when
he was out, on Monday afternoon. I took a cab and drove with my luggage to the London-
bridge terminus of the Brighton Railway. I there left part of my luggage, on which I put
the address, ¢ Mrs. Smith, passenger for France,” and then drove to the Euston station.” -She-
alluded to O’Connor, and said, “ Murder O’Connor! Certainly not; he was the kindest friend
I ever had in the world ! he acted the part of a father to me. I last saw him on Wednesday
night. He came the worse for liquor, and went away late. We expected him on Thursday
to dinner, but he did not come; and, as I was rather surprised at it, I went to his house to
inquire for him.” She then stated that when Friday came, he not making his appearance, she
again went to ask after Rim, but could get no-account of him.. She made reference to ber
husband, and complained of his bad usage of her. Shesaid he maltreated her, and once pur-
sued her with a knife, and threatened to cut off her head. One of their chief causes of quarget
was that he could not get the money she had. ,

By Mr. Sergeant Wilkins: Mrs. Manning stated that when she first started from home,
she did not know, up tothat moment, whether to go to Paris or to Scotland. .

By Mr. Ballantine : She aaid that part of the scrip found in her possession had been pur-
chased for her by Mr. O’Connor.

MR. EDWARD LANGLEY’S EVIDENCE.

Edward Langley, sergeant of police, deposed: I went to Jersey on the 25th of August
and reached Prgo:picb-hm on the 27th. When I, accompaniodyby several other peulg:ns,’
went into the room where Manning was, the latter exclaimed, “ Holloa, what are you all
about?” I made myself known to the prisoner, who then said, “Is that you, sergeant? [
am glad you ara come. I was going to London to explain it all.” . He then said, “Is the
wretch taken?’ I said, “I do not know.” He said, “I suppose they will find a great deal of
money upon t er—£1300 or £1400 at least.” I said I did not know, and that he ust con-
sider himself in custody for the shocking affair that had taken place in his house. His reply
was, “ Verv well—I can explain it all ; but surely you will not putthe handcaffs on me.” 'leha
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ﬁl:mrmmm dowrslabin  On going along he said; “Ble shot biny ; this cloth was:
on the table, and she asked him to go down-stairs'and wash his'bands. At the bettom of
the staire'she put one band on hiv shoulder, snd witlt the other sleet him in the baek of the
Head.” Captam Chevalier, who was one of thvlguty,uhdwht had beeoms of the A
and he said, % She had a-grave dug for him.” Ne other questions were put to him.. Oa

following morning the prisoner asited how long he would be kept, as he was anxious to go te-
London to explain everything. He was brought to Southampton in the packet, and on our
arrival there 1 met Inspector es, who accompanied us to town. During the journey
from Southampton, he asked whiether, if bis wife confessed, he woald - be set free. I taid he
mtust excase mé from answering such a question. He said, “ I am sure she will confess, when
slie sees me, ly if & clergyman is present.” 1 examined his clothes, aod in one of-
the pockets 1 found some tissue paper and seme gumpowder. The prisoner seemed very un-
gﬂ. hthonihnywﬂngchcbmn“lkingtoﬁpumﬂqu-,buﬂ. being very tired

MR. J. HAYNES'S. EVIDENCE.

J. Haynes, superintandent ef the detective foﬂce, said: In uence of information:
T received, I went te- London-bridge station, and found two boxes, with a direction on each.’
The address was “ Mrs. Smith, passenger to Paris; to lie' till called for.” I opened one of
those boxes, and found several articles. There were marks of blood on the skirt of a gown,
which appeared to have been recently washed. I found a piece of muslin also similarly
stained. W a8 at Southampton on the 31s¢ of Aufuat, and came up in the train with the
male prisoner. He asked me if I had seen his wife? Isaid I had not. He said, “ Do yon
think I shall see her to-morrow ?” I replied, “I don’t know; but I dont think it is Hkely
you will be allowed to see her.” I had previously said, * This is a serious affair, Man-"
ning, but you are not required to say anythiag to criminate yourself.” He said, 1 sm-
awaze of that. T was very foolish to go away, for I t to have. staid and expiained alt.™
He said if he could see his wife in the presence of a clergyman, he was sure she would ex~
plain all, for it was she who shot: O’Connor. She invited him to dimmer, and had laid the
cloth, and then shot him from behind when going down-stairs. He said she was a very
vaolent woman, and would think no more of killing a man than of killing a cat—that he had’
been frequently afraid of his own lifs, and that on one occasion she' followed him with &
drawn kpife. He said that she was determined to be revenged on O'Connor, for he it was
who bad induced them to take the house in Minver-place. He said it cost them £80 to farnisk
the house, and O’Connor had promised to come and lodge with them; that he was out of
town at the time, and that, on his return, his wife told him O’Connor hagd only slept there one:
night, and refused to remain longer.  When he said his wife shot him, I observed: that it ap-
peased by the papers there were other wounds on the head, but he made no reply to that.

The Attorney-General then put in as evidence the letter veferred to by him in bis openfn,
statement, written by Mrs. Manning to O’Connor, containing an invitation to dinner, and
which was found open at O’Cennor’s lodgings on the Thursday.

The Court adjourned, at a little after 6 o’clock, till 10 next morning,

The prigoners left the dock without taking the slightest notice of each other. Mrs. Man~
ning, before leaving,. curtsied. slightly towards the Bench, and was led out by a female

SECOND DAY.~—Fripaiy, OcroBEr 26.

The trial was resamed at ten o’clock, when Lord Chief Baron Pellock and Mr. Justice
Cresswell took their seats on the bench in the morning. Mr. Justice Maule was: absent.

Johw Haines, who was the last. witaess examined, and who then-produced some dresses and
a piece of muslin found in the boxes left by Mrs. Manning at the. South-Eastern Railway
stiation: at London bridge; was recalled, and stated that he delivered t¢ Mr., William Odling
one of those dresses-and the muslin collar.

Mr, Willism Odling, examined by Mn, Bedkin: I am a pmctising ofiemist. I have ex-
amined a part of this dress, which 1 have subjected to the usual chemical test; and I have.
arrived at the conclusion that the stains upon it were caused by blood. )

Cross-examined by Mr. Ballentine: The tests were. applied on Wednesday last. I was
not examined before the police-magistrates. No person but myself was present when I
applied the tests. 1 am twenty years old. X allowed the dsess to.stand in eold diatilled
water. I cannot say that the stain on the collar is blood. !

Re-examined by My, Bodkin: I am a son of Mr. Odling; surgeon. to the police force. I
Have been studyin cbanhtr{ for five years at least. I have studiedat Guy’s Hospital and
st mv&lkﬂ(ﬁeﬁuy. ere was very little of stain- on the eollar, compared with what
was on the Grom. The stain was. not iron-mould; nor amy vegetable mattar which I am

answer to questions put by the Lord-Chief Baron;.the witmss described the-usual ne
tive chemical mwwﬁ‘pl;’mwmm are subjected, and witich: he had apnﬁ



«

in the that thers was ne direet which. .

MR. FRANCIS WORRALL STEPHENS'S EVIDENCE:

Francis Wornll S?hms. examined by Mer. Clarkson: I am & stockbroker, carrying en
business at No. 3, Royal Exchange. I was ux}uinbed‘ with the late Patrick O"Connor. I
was in the habit of doing business with him, I delivered to him, on the 6th of Angust 1
‘thn.shares in the Sambre and Mense Railway. I had purchased them for him on the

of Angust. They were numbered 6460 to 6469 inclusive. 1 think they were ordered on the
4nd or 8rd of August. In May last I purchased for O°Commor ten shares in the Amiens snd
Boulogne Railway. They were ordered on or before the 11thof May. I delivered them ot
the 11th. They were nnm‘nred 48,665 to 48,674 inclusive. I recollect Mrs. Manning coming
o my office either on-the 1st, 2nd, or 3rd of August—but I rather think it was the 1st. She
introduced herself by saying that she had been recommended to me by Patrick O'Connor, as
she wunted to invest some money. She asked what shares or stock she could buy in England
that she could sell abroad. I asked where she was going to. After some hesitation, she
said to Paris. I said, “Pshq)sr& mé purchase French Rentes?” She asked
or the. F Railway List, and I showed it to her. She asked what shares she should buy,
an-she wished to sell the property again without the control of her husbani? She asked, i
she purchased Boulogne and Amiens shares, or Sambre and Meuse, whether she could
them- without her hushband’s control? She:said she would call again, and went away; but I
did: not see her 'wards, . '

Crose-examined by Mr. Ballautine : The Boulogne and Amiens shares came to £71 17s. 6d.
They have diminished in value since I ht them for O'Connor. In Aungust they would
have been worth about £7 per share. Connor never mentioned Mrs. Manning’s name
to me.

MR. ALEXANDER LAMOND’S BVIDENCE.

KAlexander Lamond, examined by Mr. Clerk: I am not a broker'on the Stock Exchange,
but I sm a-stockbroker. I was acquainted with O’Connor when-he-was alive. In April last
¥ pmrchased some sbares in the Eastern Counties Railway for him. I witnessed the trangfer
of those shares to- Mr. Patrick O’Connor. They were twenty shares, and amounted to £400
of the Consolidared Stock of the Kastarn Counties Railway. [The tsansfer-book of the rail-
‘way company was here produced, fromx which it appeared that the transfer was executed on
the 16th May last.] The shares were paid for on the same day. On the 27th of April, I
purchased for O'Connor ten shares in the Sambre and Meuse Railway. They are scrip shares,
which from hand to hand: without registration. I do mot know the numbers of those
shares. I received them from Mr. George Cooper Russell. Russell’s name was on them. [ Mr,
Moxhay, the u]nfetinﬁsndnt of police at Edinburgh, here produced the Sambre and
scrip found in Mrs. Manning’s trunk.] I ise these as the shares which passed thro
our hands with reference te that transaction. These shares were brought to our office by Mr.
Wenbam Russell’s clerk. They are numbered 26,523 to 26,532 inclusive.

Cross-~xamined by Mr. Ballantine: Mrs. Manning brought me a note of introduction
from O’Connor. She asked me some questions, but she had no dealings with me. -

John Hayward, examined by the Attorney-General: I am & clerk in the office of the
solicitor to the Treasury. I was. present at. the. police-office when a named John
Bassett was examined. I understand that he is now dead. He produced before the magis-
#rate. and I received from him, this scrip and assignment [ them]. They have been
in my ion ever since. i

Mr. Gre:n examined: I am clerk of the transfers tv the Eastern Counties Railway Come
rny. This is the original certificate of Eastern Couutles Railway Company’s shares' de-

vered to Patrick O'Connor. The other document. professes to be' an assignment of thoss

. Mr, Shillibeer examined: I know Fredesick George Manning. I do not believe that the
signature to this docament (the assignment) is in his handwriting. It does not bear the
i‘:‘t}u me_mb:l‘;aeo to it. [This unexpected statement from the witness excited a good

ol saurpnise. |

Richard Himmend,, examined by the Attorney-Genetal: I am & clerk in the employment
of Messra. Killick and Co., -hneb{okcn. I kxw the male prisoner. I did not see him
execute this transfer of stock, but it was brought to me wet by Mr. Bassett. At the time
when Bassett brought it to'me I saw the male prisoner in the osa. Wheun he came i, we
spoke about Eastern Counties shares, and I_introduced him to Mr. Bmettintlwnpﬂ
room. He said he had been there before, but I did not kriow what his name was.
et asked me for £110, and I gave him the money. I gave him a £100 Bank of
note, l;gr&bond‘ Mm,ﬂom,» and dated i.lie 56!;:1:‘ J'unal:w. T:oerta 'p‘:l.lo also & m nume

ve soversigns. I saw hi is thone! e tter,
oo, 1 o P Sl g e v
to me, and: on the blotti . ere was a Mr. torn, 4 sl

who was in the affice a$ the time. T G a5t hear the name of (*Counor mestioned. T touk:

vate
r. Bag<
England



ge m to‘f Of'gbnnoz f}om thet'o &nhnsfﬁrm Ar!l t&is occurred (;n Saturdsy, the 11th 'Anzut.
n the of August, I went to the for the purpose of* stoppi ent of the £100:
note. The name “ Charles James Baker” was on the note at the g?m?vl;g:‘l handed it over

to Mr.
The witness was cross-examined by Mr. Se t Wilkins, but nothing material was elicited.

George Lintorn examined by the Attorney-General: Iam & share-dealer. I have had deale

ings with Killick and Company. I was at their office about half-past eleven o’clock on the
morning of Saturday, the 11th August, when a person came to sell twenty Eastern Counties

shares. I went into the private room where the stranger and Mr. Bassett were. I did not "

take particular notice of the stranger, but I remember this transfer being executed by him.

I saw the stranger write it. I cannot say that I should know him again. There was nobody”

in the private room bat the stranger, Bassett, and myself. I saw the £100 note hand
over to the same person who signed the transfer.

Some questions were put in cross-examination to the witness by Mr. Sergeant Wilkins, but
they failed to shake the testimony given in the examination in chief.

MR. GRIFFIN'S EVIDENCE.

Mr. Griffin, examined by Mr. Bodkin: I am a clerk in the Bank of England. This £100
note was brought on Saturday, the 11th Aungust, to the Bank to be exchanged. The name
and address now on the back of it were on it when it was received there. I gave the bearer
of the note 50 sovereigns, and a ticket which would entitle him to get notes in another. de-
partment of the Bank. This is the ticket which I gave to the party. It is the practice of
the Bank to require the name and address of the party chan%ing a note. The name and ad-
dress given were Frederick Manning, 7, New Weston-street, Bermondsey.

Another witnessfrom the Bank of England proved that' be gave in exchange for the
ticket referred to by the last witness five £10 notes, numbered 67,872 to 67,376 inclusive.

John Blatchford, examined by the Attorney-General: I was for several years attorney to
the late Patrick Q’Connor. The signature to the transfer (of the Eastern Counties shares) is
not in his hmdwﬁtigﬁ.

Henry Barnes recalled: I walked from Minver-place to Greenwood-street, Mile-end-road,
and I also went there in'an omnibus and in a cab. It took me forty-two minutes to walk
there, thirty-five minutes to go in an omnibus, and twenty-five minutes in a cab.

Cross-examined by Mr. Ballantine: I have not measured the distance.

James King, examined by the Attorney-General : On Friday, the 10th August, the postman
brought me, at the London Docks, the letter now shown to me. I gave it to Lackington to
take it to O'Connor’s house.

OI(:;ckington, a messenger of the London Docks, proved that he left the letter at 21, Green=
‘wood-street. :

Richard Welsh, who was examined yesterday, and who then stated that he delivered the
lime bought by Manning to the female prisoner, was now recalled, at the i of Ballan-
tine, and admitted that he might be mistaken in that respect, but he believed that it was the
female prisoner to whom he gave the lime. .

This closed the evidence for the prosecution. :

THE DEFENCE.

B Mr. Sergeant Wilkins then rose, and, addressini the Jury, said : I appear before you to-day
as the counsel for the male priscner, Manning. 1am here as his advocate, and therefore, no
doubt, you will watch with jealousy—and justly so—any observations which I may urge-upon
his behalf. I donot complain of that. “Every man who stands forward as the advocate in-any
such case ought to be watched carefully. But, at the same time, I need not remind you that
it is your duty, alsc, to weigh well any observations I may {»resent to yon, and to give them
that attention which they deserve. I ask no more. When I announce to you that I ap
before you as the advocate of the male prisoner, Manning, you will at once perceive that I
stand in a position unequalled in the history of criminal trials. M‘y difficulties are immense.
The mere accusation itself against ariy man argues a foregone.conclusion in nine cases out of
ten, and renders his defence a task which is always extremely arduous. What, then, is my
position? In the first place, I have to answer the first counsel of the land. In the next
place, I have to urge ugon you & line of defence which, at first sight, appears very odious;
and, in the next place, I am to be followed—strange as it may appear—by another defending
counsel, whose duty it will be to neut:alise, as far as in him lies, all that I may urge, and t6
destroy, if he can, the man whom I wish to sdve. Whatever topics he may urge upon you,
however, I shall not quarrel with them. However strenuously he may labour on behalf of
his client, and however painful I may feel my situation, ] must award to him that meed of
approbation which is due to a faithful discharge of duty. But my difficulties do not end here.
ow does it happen that, while, as a people, we are boasting of the liberties we possess, and
the securities which those liberties afford us—how does it happen, I ask, that a case of this
kind is never tried, but even the counsel for the Crown and the learned Judge on the bench
himself foel called upon to caution you against impressions previously made—to caution ydu
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against the efforts of those who set themselves up as the defenders of our liberties,
but wha, in such cas-a, do all they can to prejudice your miuds, to perve:t your path, to dam
up the streams of justice, and prejudyge the case by urging upon the public topics and circum-
stances which ought never to weigh with you for a moment, but which, nevertheless, have ah
effect upon your minds, whether you will or no? You were told by the Attorney-General,
who I am happy to say, in passing, has conducted this case in & manner which reflects the
greatest credit upon him—he tol | you (quoting the language of a celebrated Judge) to forget
all you had heard and read on this subject, and to come with your minds unprejudiced and
unbias-ed to the decision of a case which I may say involves at once the temporal and eternal
interests of two of our fullow-creatures. Who are they that render these precautions neces-
sary? Who are the rebels against i':;stice? Who are they that transgress the law? Who
are the men who dare to dictate to a Court and Jury, and who seek to intimidate you into
a particular verdict, bec wse it squares with prejudices resulting from an imperfect knowled
of the whole history of the case? I have read with deep interest that frightful event, the
Franch revolution —an event that did more at once to ennoble and to debase, to dignify and
to degrade the humnan race, than any other event with which I am acquainted ; and I have
found that what adds to the herrors of each stage of cruelty, as it presents itself to our view,
is, that .a depraved press prejudged every cise before its investigation, making the trial &
meaningless form and an empty pageant. I call upon you, as far as in you lies, to treat with
contempt the dicta to which I have referred ; to push them entirely from your sight, couched
though they be in good langiage, and aided by all the influence of a wide circulation
—to treat them with ignominy and English indignation, and come to the inquiry with a calm,
ummpassione |, and a peaceful mind. But [ fear that in asking this, I am asking you to un-
man yourselves—ior it is impossible for you to break asunder entirely the baud o frejndlqe
which h s been entwined around your minis from week to week. 1 implore you, I entreat
you, however, to give the case your most careful and unbiassed attention. I don’t dic ate to
ou wha. your vecdicr. ¢hall be. It would be arrogant in me to do so—it is no part of my duty.
y duty is to watch my alversary, to see that he take no unfair advantag: of my clieat; to
see thit whatever is attempted to be proved against him, if proved at all, is proved in a proper
maanner; and to urge upon you every topic which I may think entitled to your attention;
and, having done so, my duty ceases. You have thea your duty to discharge, and it is no
easy one. The problem before you is not one which can be solved in » moment. It is not
a problem that caa be solved by innPulse or strong feeling; neither can it be solved by im-
pressions made upon your minds before comiug into court. Considering, then, the import-
auce of the case, ani the s2cred obligation under which you have become bound, to give a
just verdict in it, 1 tru<t that it will not be regarded as affectation in me, or be thought that
am a-king too much, when I implare you to s ek light from more than human wisdom in
the solutien of the que-tion, and to exercise all the care, and caution, an-1 s:1f-possession, and
judgment which {ou can bring to bear upon it. I do not seek to set your feelings against
our juigment; I only desire to awaken your senses. that you may give a better judgment.
fask you to look at the co.1sequences of your verdic —to consider the result of the investiga-
tion—because it reiches from earth to futurity—to a futurity never ending. I ask you
to let nothing dissuade you from doing your duty; I do not seek to steai a verdict from your
cowardice; I'ask merely that you should act dispassionately and calmly—that you should
look and pause at every fact, and give it your mos s.lemn attention. Having said thus
much, let me now ask you to look at the case itself. What is the nature of the defence? It isthe
defence which he (Manning) himseif set up the moment he was apprehended—the defence in
which he has persevered up to the present time. That defence I shall seek to sub tantiate by
reason, argument, and evideuce, and leave you to form your own conclusions on it. I shall not
attempt to quarrel with the law as laid down by the Attorney-General. I shall not dispute
that his view of it '¥as a very correct one. The first question we have to consider is, was
O’Connor murdered at ali? I fear there is but little doubt on that point. I frar that no one
who has heard the evidencs can have the slightest doubt that the wretched man (’Connor—
who excites our sympathies only because he was hurried in so awful a maaner from tine into
eternity—I say there can be litile doubt that he was murdered by some on2. The questions
then arise—“ﬁxen? where? how? and by whom? The theory on the part of the prosecu-
tion is, that he was murdered on the afiernoon ot Thursday, the 9th of August, although that
is by no means proved. [ adwmit, however, that probability points to that time. Then, where
was he murdered? That is by no means 30 clear. It 13 8aid on the other side that he was
murdere { in the house of the two prisoners; and then comes the next question—How was he
murdered? That I think is proved beyond a doubt by the medical evidence. Then comes
the important question—Was he murdered Ly buth? If so, where is the evidence of their
concert? As far as the mule prisoner is concerned, there is not a single fact from beginning
t) ead to justify the hypothesis on the other side, that he premeditated the destruction of
O’Connor. It seems to me—and I have read the case with great interest and attention—that
the ouly circumstances tnat can be urged against the male prisoner, Man:iing, as arguing
anything like premelitation, are the purcnases of the lime and the crow-bar. Now, let me
invite your attention to these two facts My hypothesis is one which at first sight
may appear shocking and unmanly; but we must not allow the usual ur-
banities of life to interfere with our judgment on questions like the present. We are all
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in the habit «f associating the femsle character with the idea of mildness and obr dience,
and that of the ma'e with the idea of power and stre' gth. It is not necessary, however, to
come to the conclusion that this rule is an universal oue. History teaches us that the female
is cap-ble of reaching kigher in point of virtue than the male, but that when once she gives
way to vice, she sinks far lower than our sex. My hyp.thesie, then, is, that the female
Ensoner Manning prmeditated, p'anned, snd concocted the murder, and that she made her
ushand her dupe and instrument for that purpose. The le-rned sergeant then proceeded to
call the attention of the Jury to the fucts of the case in support of this hyjothesis, W ith
respect to the purchas: of the lime, he held that Mrs Manning had suggested to her husband
that lune was n cessary to destr y the slugs in the garden, and had got bim to piiciase it
for that pu p-se; that, in doing s0, he made no secret of the purchase, as he m ght earily
have done hud h+ entertained uny criminal intention, 1f he had wanted th~ lime s cretly he
micht easily have carried it home himself, or gone to a remote dis rict for it; instesd of
which he ob ained it in the neighb wheo', told the purpo-e for which he wanted it, snd
wrote with hisown hand the adidress to which it was to be sent. 1t was wort hy of notice,
too, tie thou ht, that although it was not taken home for two dayvs, ke manifested no imn-
patirnce tor it Was there any evider ce of mystery in all that? Then, with respect to the
crow-bar Where did the mal- prisoner po tor that? There were plenty of receive:s of atolen
goode, calling themselves “dealers in marive stores,” and living in daik pussages. where
such an in-t ument #s that for an unhallowed purpose might have been obtaived. But,
instead «f grou.g there, he went to one of the most respectable ironmongers in London, Mr.
Evans. in K ng Willian-street, and ordered it openty. before all the people in the shup,
described the rort of instrument he wanted, wrote his name and address, and waited two or
three d..ys t 1l one wa< made. When i1 was on its way home to him, L.e met the boy with it
onthe bLridge. ‘The pres:, by wny of an:using the public, had described Manning as a con-
ceited, cons quential gort o man. It might be so  These things were the r-sult of accident
and censtitut onal conformation  \Whet was more likelv thsn that this sume feeling of
conceir had prompted Manning to say to the boy that surely paper was a scarce thing in his
shop, and th- 1 to go to a staticn: r's el opand Lry the paper to wrap it in? He begged the Jury
10 obgerve that Mrs. Minnirg knew the crow-bar w s coming, that ske recrived it at the
house, +nd showed that she knew where it was bought, what was to be paid for it, and that
she paid avotrer shilling, becau e it bappened to be Luger than was expected. What was
that bought fir? It wus absurd to supposs that it was purchased for the purpose of the
murder, becau e, with a poker and a pistel in the house, it was not recessary to have it to
‘deprive hiw of life. It wax «qually unnccessary to litt the stones of the kitchen, for a meat-
chop er «1 a pair of tongs sharpined with wear would have done that equally well.  1f such
‘an ivstrwwent had been wented for the purpose of tie murder, it was impos:ible not to
suppose that it- purchase woult have been dflecied with much grrcater sccvecy.  ‘These were
the onty two cicumstances wh ch occuried Lefore theevent w hiich scemed to afford anything
like a case on the part of tl:e prosecution againg: M. nning.  Waus the murder, then, dove by
the two pri-oncrs?  The circumstances, both before and after the events seemed to lead an
opposite ¢ ndlusion,  There was nothing to show concert Lefore; there was ever)thing te
thow the «pp »ité of concert after. Both went off in dJifferent directions; they were never
seen to speak to each cther, or to be in each othei’s company afterwards.  Was the murder,
then, done by ene p-rson?  There was no doubt in the world that it could bave been; for,
supposing () Connor shot with the pistol, any one wi h the strength of ctildhood could have
completed the act.  The buryis g couid, with equal ease, have been effected by one person. If
it wa~ done by one persen, th:en what was the mot.ve for it? What motive could Mauning
have? The counsel for the pros cution | ad tried to make it appear that Mauning was jea-
lous of O'Connor.  In his ()i v. ~ergeant Wilkins's) « pinion, Munning was not the man to be
jealous. No mm who had read the history of the cas could doubt that Mannirg was only
too e.sy al.ont his honour as a hurband. Jt was evident that he allowed his wite night after
night to visi: 0*Coni:or alone—that he received him upon every occasion with the greatest
“cor.liality a: d friendship. No one had proved that even un angry word had taken place be-
tween them, or that he was unwillidg 10 receive his visits. Ou the very last occ~ion they
weie reen in company with cach other, they appeared to be on the most friendly terms.
" Where wus Manning’s motive for murdering him, then? Coula it be said that
Man ing wa- influenced by the Jove of lucre—that he did it in order to possess himself of
O'Counar’s property 2 Let fa:ts apeak for themselves. It did not appear that Manning pos-
sessed himse f of a »hilling that belonged to O’'Connor, or the slightest tittle « f his property.
With respect to the £100 note, he w uld show, hy-and by, that he was in that case the mere
dupe o his wife. a3 he had been throughout the whole aftiir. He was uware that with regard
* 0 Mlunuing’s defence there mighe be a great deal of de:lamation. !t might be said, as it had
been eaid, taat be was crowning himsel with in:amy by throwing the blame upon the wife.
That wus eusily said; but if the blame was justly due to his wife—if it was she alone who
committed the murder, had not the hustand suffered erough from her already, without
standing coolty and allowing himself to be sacrificed by the wick«d woman who had entiapped
hin.? He would show from the evidence, as he proceeded, that she was not only abuudauly
capable of doin;g such an act. but of facing it vut in & m:.nner that he was happy tv say few
pevjle could umitate,  Me called the Jury's attention to the fact that it was Mrs, Mauuing
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who wrote the notes inviting O'Connor to dinner, who was constantly with him at his lodg-
ings, and who had access to his secrers. Accurding to the testi nony of Mr Kearing, O'Councr
‘wus seen, about a quarter to five o'clock, on Thursday, . n Lond.n-bridge, going in the direction
of Minver-place. The Jury would be ahle to form their own opinivn, frnn the evidence,
as to the time it would he hikely to vecupy the deceased in walking trom the Sarrey side
of the bridgze to Manning’s house. © On Friday, the 12th of August, Keuting called
at Manning’s house. At that time O'Connor wa: dead. Whom did Keating -ee ?
Let the Jury mark that. e -aw Mr. Manning. Let the Jury obs-rve her hypucrisy—her
falsehond—her te wickelness. Keating asked Mrs. Manning if she had seen*
Q’Connor.  She replied that sh+ had not reen him since Wedn+sday night. Keating ».id it
was a very strange thing. ¢ Very strange,” repeated the female prisoner, “for | invited him
to dinner on ths Tharsday, and Mr. Maun ng thought it a most ungent.emanly thing that
he did not cone at the appointed time. [ went to his ludmnus to ascertain the reon why
he did not come.” On that occasion—the only tims woen her lip was noti ed to quiv: r and
her cheek o blanch—she made us: of an expression which had struck him, as he saw it nad
done 3 me of the Jury. She said, “ Poor Mr. O’ Connor! ne was the b-st fri-nd I had in the
world.” «Poor Mr, O’Conuor!” (vontinued th- learned sergeant). Why “ Poor Mr. O Con~
nor?”  You (apparently addressing the female prisoner) kn-w his body was mouldesing {n
our kitchen. You knew you were at that moment in posses ion of his property. You knew
{is voice would never be heard again.  You knew thit he had Leen hurried out. of time into
eternity.  Well migat you say, “ Poor Mr O’Counor,” thrown off your guard at the moment.
If you believed merely that he had gone out of town in soms rreak of fancy—for you describe
him as a fitiul and fanciful person—why exclaim ¢ Poor Mr. O’C.mnor?” Was it true that
the woman who exclairned ¢ Poor Mr. O’Connor”—who affected to b astonished tbat he ha
not kept an appointment to dine w th her on Thursday—had at that inomeut p.ssession

O'Couinor’s property? Had she his shares, monev, und scrip in her possession? How - of
she become pissessed of them? His box was licked; he always carried his keys in did
pocket; how did she yget those keys? tHow did she urt those keys but from O’Con - his.

pocket ; and, if from his pocket, huw diil she get access to his pocker? The Attorney-G .oor's
seemed to think that the female prisoner did not possess her-elrof O Connor’s property . eueral -

Thursday. Why, then, should she hive been at )’C.noor’s lodgings for an hour on the
day ? Why did she come down pale and tr-mbling? It might be that there was more on that
than she could take away that day. It might be that she thought it more pradent to t roperty
tion on Thursday and a portion on Friday. One thing, however, i3 clear—shu k € & por=
O'Connor kept his property ; and it is.e;jually clear that she was atterwards foun: Aew where,

sion of it. The ¢vidence of David Gruham agreed almost to the letter with 4in po-seser
Keating, and he (Mr. Sergeant Wilkins) therefore thuught it unnecessary ¢ that of Mr.,.
James Coleman had stated that he saw O’Connor on the 9ih of August, abor .0 refer to it.
after five o’clock, within 150 yards of Minver-place, and going towards M 4t ten miuutes
He (Mr. Sergeant Wilkins) thought, therefore, thut the witne~s Younghu: .anning’s house,,
been mistaken when he auid lie saw O'Connor at a quarter past five on Lo . sband muxt have
towands the City. It \'Conunor hid gone to the house of the prisoners to . Adou-bridge going
he had done, why had he turred away ?  If Mrs. Manuing, us she repre dinner, as no douut,
O'Connor’s lodgings to fet:h him, she must have lett 1.er own house bef  Sented, had gone to
was clear that, within a few minutes of that hour, O’Connor was al-  ore tive o’clock ; for it

door. There was 1o evidence who let O’Connor into the house in Mi- . 0st at the priconer’s
but it was clear that, if Mvs. Mauning was at home, he would mot | - 4Ver-place «n that day;
and it was evident, from her own statement, that she was at home : . /@ turned fiom the duor;

that at that hour she left her house 1o go to O'Connor’s lodgmgs . At BiX o'cluck ; for she said
next witness was Sophia Payne, who had proved that on Thursd . i1 Greenwood-strect. The
quarter before seven o'clock in the evening, ~he saw Mauning si 4% the 9.h of August, at a-
his house. Now, he (Mr. Sergeant Wilkins) would not say + , C0g on the garden-wall of
not, after the commission of the murder, have aided and assiz’ - _’h“? the male prisoner might
would not say that, after the de d was done, Manning m’  “X In secrcting the budy. He.
E:mly, perhaps, from some regard for the woman—have assi ‘& dt Dot—pardy from fear, and.
ut he contended there was nothing to show that Manuin: +3%d her in disposing of the Lody ;.
murder, or that he participated in the act. It might be ,5h"“ aware of the contemplated
thereabouts, Manning was at the place, and that he had '/t:k‘t’ a3 early as seven o cluck, or
if bronght to light, would have hazarded hisown life, le' /- el steps to conceal a deed which,
Houw did Manuing appear at that time, according to the "'u:m be innocent as the most innocent,
hisordinary dress, and presented, in all re<pects, hisus 'l fme""’ of the witnesses? He wore
upon his clothing—nothing to indicate that be had 4 a‘pect.  No blood or stains were seen -
deed. It appeared that Manning sat on the wall fo £ h:" tensa}ged in the commission of the
and drivking, and then got down, saying that h é‘mnﬂtj ¥ mingtes or half-un-hour, suioking.
ment. He (Mr. Sergeant Wilkius) thought b o "ehet 80 to drvas as he had an engage-
had, from the beginning to the end, taken as £ "7 ¢ te abie to show that Mrs, Mauuning
band as to cheat any one else. There seemed t', /po Iitt];:l:i" 8 '('L‘P"“ upon aud cheat ber hus-
on the Toursday, and on tue Monday afie” 4 urds the m:i" ¢ that the murder was committed
broker’s, and about five o’clock in the af /.0 requeswg Pprigoner was at Bainvridge’s, the
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wife to . Gould the Jury have A1Y ” goq) v that Manning at that thme s veer L
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his wife was af horme? Thessrvant came back, sad eaid ehe could riot find the place. Men-
niog thea went himself-wand how did bhe act? When he got te thie house he knocked at thé
door, but got no answer. He them, not knowiag that any one was looking at him, knocked
at the window. Could they have amy doubt that he expect:d his wife would answer him ?
She did not answer. Mumning then asked 3 woman whom lie saw standing at a door opposite
whether she bad seen his wife? Thewoman replied that she bad gone away in a cab, taking
with ber a great deal of luggage. It was clear there oould have been mo concert betweea
Mr. M g and her husband as to where she should go, for +he told Mr. Moxhay, when he
-apprehended her in Edinburgh, and asked her where her husband was, that she d'd not know,
for she- leit him in l.ondon on a suddem, without his knowledge. It would probably be ats
tempted to be shown, on the part of Mre. Manning, that she was upon terms of peculiar inti~
macy with O'Conn.r—that he was what was commonly called “a very gnod friend” to her.
Experieuce had shown them that the man who forgot the obligations of life, as the mh‘m
dereased appeared to have done, might count upon the hollowness and deceitfulness of
wicked woman with whom he was associated. He (Mr. Sergeant Wilkins) had no doubt that
. the female prisoner and O'Connor were-upon terms of endearment—that she might have put
< de Cologne upon his head~—that she might have said he was to her as afather. When
\the 'Y Were together, there were, no doubt, all those outward manifestatinns of regard; but
.com» ( any one suppuee that Mra, Manuing entertained any real affection for O’Connor? Thig
«quest. fon naturally ocourred to every mind :—* What! you love O'Connor? Why, then, did
ou ro. " his pockets? Why did you steal his property? Why did you conceal his death ?*
:If Mam 1ing still entertained any regard or affectiun for his wife, b~ (Mr. Sergeant Wilkins)
aodald un avrstand why he might have concesled O’Connor’s death. But if O Covnor were
Wrs. Mun ving’s friend—if she loved him better than her husband—though it might have
‘Ween.an an: 10y love—she would not have been the person to conceal his death. If she had
%ally loved O’Connor, and had seén him stiuck down by the hand of him whom sheé
I ‘apised, she Would without hesitation have given up the murde-er to justice, and would not
& ‘yecrept iily” to the dead mun’s rucm, have posse-sed herrelf of his property, and have gone
hay *dinburgh; te endeavour to convert it into money. It might be supposed that there had
tk ‘jaalousy of LCounor on the part of Manning. = He (Mr. Sergeant Wilkins) was not there
Been ‘i that wirie'h no man of proper principle could countenance, and he was afraid that
tod. *  agumight have deserved contempt for baving lent himselt to his own dishonour, and
Manni. od.intimaeie- and al‘lxrmhu which every good man would scout. The next wit+
sanction ec Anne apa Emily Armes—two young women whose characters, he believed, ,
aeBses’ W Yeut a stain, but against whom his learned friend (Mr. Ballantine) had beea
were wih toiinsinuate that they were reaping the wages of shame, and letting out their
instructed . 'proper purposes.  On the Friday evening previous to the murder, Mrs. Manning
house for im “omnor at his bodgings, where a quantity of serip was laid upen the table, and he
was with O'C  erii1s character and objects. It appeared that she was at that time wheedlin,
dosc:ibed to by ‘Cannor to give her an account of the scrip, and the best mode of disposing of i
and coaxing O waages from the evidence of the two witnesses Anne and Emily Armes, Mr,
After reading-p ‘& luding to the visit paid by Mrs. Manting to O'Connor’s lodgings oa
Sergeant Wilkins, f Augunt, acked why she had stayed there for an hour, when, according te
Thiuwsday, the Sth - \ud reason to suppose that O’Connor was at her house? The next witness
fidr own'story.shel - and he asked the particular attention of the Jury to the evidence of
-yras Willamn Masse) ‘vey-General, and the community, seemed to have been led to suppoes
.thiA man. The Attor  rove romething very wondertul, while he (Mr. Sergeant Wilkins)
,that Massey wasto |~ {be of opinion that bis evidence really amounted to nothing. Massey
thought the Jury woule  ‘\md the statements which had been mentioned by the Attorney-
was a medical student, ¢ e .convereation, turned out to have been ecraps and fragments of
@enéral as the result of OL 4t various times; and thoss observations natarally and necessarily
. différent conversarions held  ggpened to be the subjects of conversation. For instance, it
arose out of topics whiclt b vigoner asked Massey whether he thought murderers went
appeured that the mule P.  wed an odd question'to ask ; but it appaared that a conversation
to Yeaveni. ' That certainly 8e€l ¢ ghe exhibirion of a wax figureof Kush at Madame Tasssud’s,
had previously taken placé abou " pquiry. He(Mr. Bergeant Wilkins) could not help thinking,
which had sugeested hissineul T Ygadawmp Tuseaud, that her exhibition, in immortabeiog
. though he had'no wish to injute ¢, \uisaice. Massoy stated that, being a medical student;
. gich vil ams as Rush, was 2 g-885 ) gegi,n had frequently taken plade between Manning and
~conversations com\s_:ted with his pro. . gioy agked him where he thought the seat of the haman
‘Rimself, and that Mauning on l‘:lmo be pthinking it a very abdurd thing for any man whe
‘pram was. One cercaiuly could nat tiow, *.t0 ask such a questivn. [ At this observation the
Enbw anything of the animal '°":‘° had . préviously maintained a serions and rather melsn.
fentiives of the femaly prisoner—w relax 1 into a smile, which she, however, quickly
choly expression of countensnce— tatem 0% he and Manning were one day talking about
feptessed.] Aécording to M"‘*{" e if 1 \e had ever fired an air-gun? and at another sime
fire-arms, wherr'the latter asked m\mo} who was very rich. to put his name to a pro-
Minning said he would like to get het best wayto get himinto a good-humoured
rano £500, anid that he thought the%. =
missory note for 5?03» o to take brandy-ancl \vaw; Xﬁh@ﬂ s man v::: ia:c\md s:‘f crlm:
d would be to mau inow-but .fo.* the ousneas vestigation—!
T this nature, it would really be amsuaing—but fou




53

was displayed in raking wp every tsifling et as evidence-of hiy -
ﬁ . Why, every one of thess observations was just as. kkely tv be made by axy men ia,
ning’s situation as by Man himself, that with the most innocent intentions..
The witness William Cahill proved that a shovel was bought by Mrs, Maaning-an the 8th.
of August, the very day en which she had invited OConnor to dime. They them had
the evivence of the poor child Hunnah Firman, wheas testimony bad mot been impugnedg
and he thought the only effoct of the creswexaminativn to which she had beeu ‘suhjected
ought to be to excite the sympathies of those who heard it to endeavour to snatch her
from sin and ruin. The learn d Sergeant then proceeded to refer to the evidence of Mr.
aud Mrs. Bainbridge, observing that it was quite clear they had mistaken the ebser- .
vation Maoning made when he returned from lecking for his wife. Mr. Bainbridge
positively asserted that Manning ssid, “1 have sturted my wistress off into the
country.” Now, was it mot move probable that Maaning said his wife had sta ted
into the eonnu? ? Then Mrs. Buinbridge said she would ewear Manning’s ohser-
vation was, “ 1 have sent my mistress into the oeuntry ;” while Matiida Weldomy
the servant, would not swear whether Manning said he had sent his wide, or thas:
she had gone. It was clear Mr, and Mrs. Bainbrid:e were mistaken, because Manning had
not started his wife into the country; be did not koow that she had gone, or that she was
going. Was it likely, if Manning had been a participator in the cnme, that be would bave
quietly allowed his wife to g1 off, he knew not where, taking with her all she could carry,
and that he would then have said he had sent ber into the ovuntry? The story Mrs. Mane
ning told herself showed that the Bainbridges were mistak :n ; for ~be said, on her appreuen=
sion, that she keft London without her husband’s kuewledge, and that she did not know at:
the time whether she was going to Edinburgh or France. It appeare:: to him (Mr. Servesat
Wilkins) that the explanation of Manning’s present difficulty was afforded by bis own pbeer-.
vation to one of the police ofticers—* [ was a great fool that 1 did not stop and explein all.”
Now, it was no uncommon thing for i ¢ people, when dunger stared them in the fuce,
and whin they found themselves invilved in @ mesh from which it seemed impoasible for
them to extiica e themselves, to bave recourse to-conduct which might be considered as proef
of their gu It. Cases had occurred in this metropolis, where p of high reepectabi ity had-
been stopped by scoundrels, who had threateaed to accuse them of certaiu crimes wi loss
movey or valuables were given to them. If the person assailed were a2 mun of great energy
and of high moral courage he would at once seize his rutfianly assai'ant by the thicat, and-
deliver hun up to justice; but, if he were a nervous and excituble man, rather than labour
. under the imputation of such a charge, he would take his watch from his pocket, and give it
to the scoundrel. Now the all-charitable, deep-reflecting world would say that the fact
of 8 man’s givinﬁl up his watch under such circumstances was a prouf of his guilt;.
but men who had had experience in investigations of this description would form a very dif~
ferent conclusion, for they knew that to the superficial, indocent men often appeared guilty,
whils the hardened, and wicked, and guilty were regarded as innocent Now, he would put
the present case to the Jury in this aspect :—Manning might have been siiting up-staire in
the dining-room, while his wife went down-stairs and elot O’Connor through the head.
Mauning would be horsor-stricken ; he weuld say, “ At the very bottom of the etair« of thig
room the woman has destroyed a tellow- creature; what sma I to do? If 1 go out end pro=
claim ber guiit, I shall be her destruction The world nay accuse me of committing the di
or it may Le said that as I was in the heuse when it was done it may be fairly presume
that 1 had the opportunity of preventing it.” The unfortunate man might yield to bad rea=
soning, by which hundreds had been enineshed, and might determine not to give the crimins®
up to justice. He (Mr. Sergeant Wilkins) did not know what the truth was, but. it migl.$
be that Manoing had assisted in disposing of the body ; bat thut would not make him guilty
of the crime with wh:ch he was now charged. It might be that Manning’s fears had led himx
to adopt a line of conduct which bad involved him in difficulties ; but the explanation seemed
to be afforded in the few words he had uttered to the officess, * I am rfml,‘y innocent ; X amy
a great fool that I came away without explaning it.” It appeared from Manning's cunduct
that be had been inclined to lingzer abous the spot, with-the view, probably, of telliug whas
he knew, for be did not quit Loudon till the Wednesday, aithough inquiries were made after
him o the Sunday, and a stil more eager seamch on the Mouday and Tuesday.
It appeared that he hud entertained some intention of returning, for he had left.
with a friend a new hat, which he might easily have taken with him. Mr. Svrga:nt-
Wiikins then bricfly alladed to the evidence o» Mary Schiolefield, William Kirk, William Da:y
and Mr. Moxbay, the superintendent of police at Esinburgh, observing, that he might con-
gratulate that aty l:ron po-nom& 80 exosllent an officer. Never ris.ce be had been in the
prof-ssion had he (Mr. Sergeant Wilkins) Leard 2 man in his capacity give his evideugein
20 intelligent a manner, and 80 creditably to bimself. Mr. Moxhay told them that Mrs.
Manning had been a consistent sharacter throughout. That woman certeinly must have
the most extraordinary coutrol over herself of any persen of whom he (Mr. dengesnd
Wilkins) had ever heard. She treated My Moxhay with all the courtesy ot the drawing-
room. hen he vbserved that hus impressio.. was that she was Mrs. Mauning, she still re-
tained the utmost selt-porsession. Mr. Mouxhay asked if she had any objection to her lug=
@ege being searched? She said, “ Certainly not.” She was asked if she bad .any »crip?
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“Berip? what is sérip? said ‘she, a8 if it were the first time she had ever heard it mene
tioned ; while it was proved that. she had recei: ed fiom Q’Cennor a full and accurate descrip-
tion of it.- Mr. Moxhny opened one ¢f her box:s, and the first thing he fiund was a bill
with the name of “ F. G. Manning ” upon it. Still she retained her se'f-possession. “ Now
have you any scrip? ” she was asked.  “Oh yes,” said +he, “ to he sure—scrip o1 my own,”
She_was told that she was apyprehended on the charge of murdering Mr. O’Connor. % Mur-
der Mr. O'Connor! ” she exclaimed; “No, indeed ; he was the best fricend 1 had in the world.
He was like a father to me.” If Mr. O’Cennor had been like a father to her. she certainly
bad behaved very unlike a child towards him. Mr. Moxhay a<ked where her hus-
band was? She replied, “ Upon my honour, I don’t krow. He -ill-treated me, and
once attempted to kill me. I came away friom London suddenly, without his
knowing it, and I had not msde up my mind where to go to”  Then, if her
busband bad treated her so ill, and if she was so fond of Mr. O'C.nnor, why did she
not, from love of him, or from hatred of her hushand, dencunce Manning as O'Connor’s
murderer? The learned sergeant then read the evidence of po'ice-s: rzeant Langley, who
apprehended the male prioner, and who stated that Manning remaiked, “1 ruppose they will
fird a great deal of money upon my wife— £1300 or £1400 ar least.” The sum f.una upon
her, it appeared, was only about £150, =0 that it was clexr Manning knew nothing of the
amount of the money. The male prisoner gaid, en his apprehension, that “his wife shot
Q’Connor; she i vited him to dinner; and when he came the sugyested to him that he
shiould go down to wash his hands; and, when at the bottom of tte stairs, she put one hand
on his shoulder and shot him at the l:ack of the he-d with the other.” Now, who could say
that #ll this was not pos ible? Much a« Manning might detest the crime, yet his feelings as
a husband and as a man might prompt him to seek to screcn his wife. Captain Chevalier
asked hum, in Jerser, what had beome of the body, and he s4id, “She had a grave dug for
bim.” Manning a-ked, if his wife were 10 confess, would he be tree? and to that giestion
the officer guve a very proper answer. Manning then obzerved, “I am sure she wouid con-
fess in the pres-nce of a clergyman.” A shooting-coat of Mannirg's bad te:n produced, in
which there was round some tirsue paper and loose gunpowder; but it was not known how
lo g it might have been since he had worn that coat ; and if, when he kept an hatel at Taun-
ton, he had been a sportsman, it was not at all surprising that he should bave a few
grains of ginpowder in his pocket. If he had really been a murderer. one of the first
things he was Iikel?' to do would have been to empty his po.kets, and get rid of every
eviden.e of his guilt. The learned sergeant proceeded to refer to the evidence of Inspector
Haynes, and of Mr Stcphens, the stocktroker, directing the attention of the Jury to the
inquiries made by the female prisoner of the latter witness, whether she could sell Sambre
aoa Meuse serip without the knowledge of her husbind. He (Mr. Sergeant Wilkins)
thought, then. that he was justified in saying that she was secking to cheat her husband, as
well as every body else. Could there be any doubt that, at the very time she made these in-
quiries, she was cor-templating stealing the Sambre and Meuse and Amiens and Boulogne
shares belonging to O’Connor, and that she had fitmed the intention of quitting England
and abandoning her husband? Mr. Sergeant Wilkins then called attention to the evidence
of Mr. Green, cleik of the transfers to the Eastern Counties Railway Company, snd said he
thought he was justified in expressing an opinion that Mrs. Manning had, throughout the
whole transactions, scught to avoid ti e vigilance of her hu-band, and to use' him as her in-
strument. ‘He would ask the Jury, on looking at the male prisoner, whether they thought
any person who had ever seen him was likely to forget him? Well, it had been proved
that some person had gone to the office of Messrs. Killick and Co., and had di~pused of
some scrip wnich bad belenged to O'Connor, for which he had signed the transfer paper.
Mr. Shillibeer had stated that he knew Manning’s bandwriting well, but that the signature
to that paper was rot his, and did not resemble it in the slightest degree. Mr. Shillibeer

also said that he thought the signature was in the handwriting of the ferson who had filled *

up the bedy of the paper, but that an endvavour had been made to render the
wiiting different in appearance. The witness, however, would not swear that it
was Manning who signed the tramsfer, ‘but he said that he gave in payment
to the person who did sign it a £100 Bank of England note, a note for £5, and five sove-
reigns. The £100 note was; afterwards presented at the Bunk of Englund, but there was no
evidence that Manning was the person by whom it was presented, although his name was
upon it. Could there'be any doubt that his wite had irduced him to write his name ou it?
It was clear that if Manning was the person who had forged O’Connor’s name to the transfer,
be ~culd not have gone to the Bink ot England, or have written his name upon the note,
: ad -1 have placed upon the proceeds of his forgery the clue to his detection. “But, with all
1L e fia-lcssness of a-man who had nothing to dread, he had written his name and address on
the vack of the note. Where were the proceeds of that note afterwardsfound? -In the yos-
session of Mra. Marning, when she was upprehended at Edinburgh, He (Mr. Sergeant Wil-
kins) had now gone tt rough all the evidence, and if he had omitted to notice anything, he
maust ask the Jury to supp’y his deficiencies. He had been called upon to discharge a duty
frem which, had he consuited his own feelingzs, he would have shrunk. Not that he was op-
Pressed by a gonsciousness of the guilt of hia client, or bowed down by the real ditticulties of
the case, but that he felc he had to fight against a mass of prejudice which had been created
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by those who ought to have known better; that he kzew the interest which attached to the
esse from the manner in which it had Leen written up; and that he feit it most
lacerating and agonizing to stand there as the repre-eitative of the husband, crimi-
nating and sseking to convict the wife. This was to him such a tisk that it had
almost unfitted him for the important duties which devolved upon him. The Jury
had, however, listened to him with the greatest attention, and he was sure they would weigh
what he had sai | with care, diligenc, and caution. He prayed them by all they held sacred,
as they valued the trust whic.i their country had repos:d in thein, as they respected its laws,
as they wi-hetl to maintain the proper admi.iistration of ju tice, as they loved our common
manhood, and as they expecied to be judged, that, whatever their verdict might te—and
what it should be he presumed not to dictite to them—it might be a verdict of reason. He
callsd upon the.n not to allow those common impulses—good,diving, as they were—which in-
fluenced them in private life, and induced them to yield aff ction, protection, and respect to
woman, to step in between them and truth, but to treat the matter as i pure abstract question
of reasoning, as between two human beings. Ile would only add, that his client placed him-
seld upon his coun ry with conndence, knowing that his con .uct would be weighed by upright
men, and that, whatever the verdict might be, it would be 1n consonance with that honesty
and truth which formed the bulwark and protection of English liverties.

A short adjournment took place at the termination of Mr. Sergeant Wilkins's address,
when the Judge, the Lord Mayor, and several cf the more distioguis ied persons on the
beuch, retired to luncheon. During their absence the priso ers were removed from the dock.
After an interval of about 20 minutes the le wned Judges raiurnzd, and, ths prisvners having
been aguin placed at the bar,

MR. BALLANTINE'S DEFENCE OF MRS. MANNING.

Mr. Ballantine pro :eeded to address the Jur. on L:half of the female priscner. He com.
menced by complimenting the Attorney-Geaeral on the fiir and temperate manner in which
he had opened the case for the prosecution. He could not ask the Jury to dismiss from
their minds all that they had heard with reference to this cas», fur he knew they could not
avoil remembering such things; and, when the evidence adduced on tha part of the prosecu-
tion was concluded, they must have wondered how it was thiat many allegations relating to
this unhappy woman whi.h had found their way into the public prints, and had been op nly
talked of, hai not been proved. It was clear that those allezitions could have little founda-
tion nr.ality, because, as this case had been conducted by able an‘ intelligent officers, who
had discharged their duiy with g eat propriety, intelligence, and zeal, they might ve certain
that the evidence which had been brought forward was all that had any bearing on the sub-
ject. He need not ref-r to the exaggerated reports and calumnies which had been circulated
with regard to his client ; for he was not surprised at them, after the mode in which the case
had been conducted on the part of the other prisoner, and after the attempts which bad been
made, even ucfore his client came into a court of justice, on the part of one who cuzht to have
cherished and protec:ed her, to place her in such a position as to render it impossible that she
could b3 rescuel from the tomb prophesiei for her by many. TaeJury would not,
thetefore, be surprised at his (Mr. Ballantine’s) attempt to obtain a separate trial
for the woman at the bar. He would have been ‘glad to avoid certain observations which
he felt bound to mike—but which he would endeavour to make temperately—upon
the course pursued by his learned friend, Sergeant Wilkine. He (Mr. Bullantine)
woull have been glud if they could have escaped the spectacle, unparalleled in -a
criminal court, of finding an advocate, either for the prosecution or for the defeuce, in the
presence of a perso: who was undergoing a tri .l for her lite, denounciny her in terms that,
to say the least, were utterly unnecessary—terms which be could hardly help calling some-
what coarse. He considered that the presence of the person: against whom those obs-rva-
tions were made, ought, at all events, to have preven ed his learned friend from using them,
whatever might be the necessities of his case. Far be it from him to say that his learned
friend had not exercised the best judgment that he could apply to this matter—that he had
not conzcientiously followed the instructions he had receiveds for he wou d do his learned
friend the credit to believe that he had acted contrary to his own taste and feeling in per-
forming wh .t he Lelieved to be bis duty to his client. ~flis learned friend appeared to anti-
cipate that he (Mr. Ballantisie) would follow his example, and endeavour to throw upon the
male Hriwnrr the burden of this miserable, this unhappy transaction. God forbid that he
should pursue that course! e would fir rather never enter that court, or any other, than, .
4dn the presence of a fellow creature awaiting his doom—who might be led from that court
to the scaffil1, and might soon have to appear betore his Creator—he would use such terms
as had bLeen applied by his learned friend to the female prisoner. He (Mr. Ballantine) would
do that which was his duty a3 an advocite; but, it his duty as an advocate required
that he should cast upon the male prizoner the sort of ,observations and accusations
which had been made against the woman, he would feel that his pro‘ession was
4 disgrace, and that ths sooner he abandoned it for oue somewhat more cre-
ditavle, the sconer he would be a respected, an h t, an h able, and an
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upright man, and placed in a tion better to respect himsell Every advoe
éate who was called upon to defond”.‘m must take the evidence that had been sube
mitted to the Jury. He must show how that evidence weighed, and, as far as his humbls
abilities enabled him, point out to the Jury the mode in which he desired them to view it H
that evidence inculpated others, it might neoua:z to apply some observations to the sub-
Joct ; but when this painful duty was cast upon an_advocate, it ought to be performed in &
calm and temperate manner. He (Mr. Ballantine) would now proceed to the attention
of the Jury to the facts of this case, attaching no guilt to any one, and would ask them to
coneider the issue they were called upon to determine with regard to the female prisoner. and
whether they could conclude that she was guilty in either of those points of view which had
been freunud to them in the fair, temperate, and proper opening of the Attorney-General.
The Jury had been told that the female prisoner might be found guilty either as & princ
or as an accessory before the fict. He thought, when they considered the circumstanees of
the case, that they would hesitate before they found her guilty as an accessory.
acts, a8 between husband and wife, were extremely vague. It was very difficult to under~
stand, in the rehtionahig existing between husband ‘and wife, and in the absence of d
snd positive testimony, how far the one might be accessory to what was done by the other.
He could not help thinking, then, that, unless they weére clearly of epinion that the woman
was present at the murder, they would find it almost impossible to come to a sa~
tisfactory verdict that she was guilty as an accessory befora the fact. He would ask
them to consider whether the facts which had bemiscloeed did not show that, at the
time the murder was committed, the female prisoner was not present. le wished
first to dispose of that which could alone support the count charging the woman as
& principal, present, and aiding and abetting, at the murder ; and, it he did tbat, it
would materially assist him in getting them to the conclusion that she might not have been
a party acting accessorily in the matter. He hoped tbe Jury would come to the conclusion
that this woman did not forget her sex, and do that which few women were recorded to have
done—commit a cold-blooded and atrocious murder, under circumstances of cold-blooded and
atrocious violence. What were the circumstances of the'case? Mr. O’Connor teemedto have
formed a connexion with Mrs. Manning, of the nature of which no onecoulden'ertainany doubt.
It appeared from the statement of Mrs. Manning herself that ber husband had ill-used her, and
that ill-usage was not likely to strengthen any feclings of virtue she might possexs. He (Mr.
Ballantine) would ask the Jury whether it was likely thut a woman in the situation of the
female prisoner, who had formed a connexion of this nature with O'Connor, would lend her-
slf to the violence imputed to her? It seemed that O’Connor was past the middle age, and
it was almost proverbial that at that time of life men were weak enougl:l to yield anything to
the women with whom they were connected. Mrs. Manning could have no neces-ity for
eommittin&an act of violence, for there would, no doubt, be moments when she dould find her
way to 0’Connor’s coffers without contracting any other guilt than that which attuched to
the impure and illegal connexion she was maintaining. What motive, then, could there be
on the part of Mra. Manning for engaging in a design for the murder of O'Connor? He
thought he had a right to assume either that Mrs. Manning was a woman of abandoned
character, ready to resort to any mears to attain her ends—and, in that case, she
would have had no need to commit murder in order to get possession of O’Con-
Bor's property—for she might, undoubtedly, had she chosen, have been taken into
comparatively wealthy ke:ring—or she was a woman of kindly feeling and disposition
and in that case her connexion with O’Connor would make it most unlikeq that she would
lend herself to such a transaction as that with which she wasnow charzed. It appeared that,
on the 9th of August, the deceased was seen on London-bridge about five o'clock, in Weston-
street at ten minutes afier five, and again on London-bridge at a quarter-past five. He
appeared then to be vacillating in opinion as to whether he should go to the Mannings or
not; but he sMr. Ballantine) thought the Jury would probably agree with him in believins
that this vacillation ended by his tumning back and going to Minver-place, here he
not arrive until later than he had been expected. The dinner-hour of the Mannings was
generally five o’clock, and, as O'Connor was seen on London-bridge at a quarter-past five, he
eould not have arrived at Minver-place unt.l considerably after the usual dinner-hour. This
would, then, be consistent wjth the statement of Mrs. Manning, that, finding he did not
come at the expected time, she went to look for him at bis house in Greenwood-street.
According to the statements of the Misses Armes, who were evidently not very iavourably
disposed towards the female prisoner, she arrived at their house on that evening at a quarter
before six, and remained till a v;wurm saven. The distance from Minver-plsce to
Greenwood-street appeared to be about miles, g0 that it would probably take Mra
Manning nearly three-quarters of an hour te go from one place to the other. ~ If she had
irom her own house about a quarter-past five o’clock, she might bave arrived in
Greenwood-street at about a quarter to six. If, thex, the murder was committed between
half-past five and a qaarter to eight o'cluck, it was quite impossible that the female prisoner
could have been a party to it, for duriigthat time she was absent from ber own house.
Then, was the murder committed during trat period7 He thought the evidence for the
prosecution was open to no other hypothesis than that it was committed before Manning was
#oen on the wall smoking his pipe, at a quarter-past seven o'clock. He submitted tbat all
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- the evidence tended to show that when Mrs. Manning returned home—vwhich, according te
e evidence of the Misses Armes, could not be much before a quarter to eight o'tlock, the
mander hiad been effected. The next question was, whether Mrs. Manning was an accessory
o the murder before the fact. She was charged in the indictment as an accessory before the
fact, the supposition on the part of the Crcwn undoubtedly being, that the probability was,
that a murder of this kind was much more likely to have been committed by a man than by
& woman. Mr, Sergeant Wilkins had conteaded that this was a murder which must. have
Been committed by one person, and in that proposition he (Mr. Bal'antine) entirely agrved ;
but it was for the Jury to consider whether it was most probable that such a murder had
bren committed by a man or a w.man. There were three points alleged on the part of the
Grown a8 showing that the woman was an accessory before the fact; namely, that she had
been a party to the purchase or order of the crow-bar, the lime, and the shovel. As to the
shovel, it was an ordinary coal-shovel, and entirely unfit for the purposs to which it was
glleged it was intended to be applied; and, as the prisoners had a garden, why should net
Mrs. Manning at once have hased a spade, which would have been much more service=-
able in digging a hole, had she required it for such a pu ? With regard to the lime,
Mrs, Mannineﬁ might bave supposed that it was intended for the destruction of the  slugs”
whi h infested the gnnden; and the woman who paid 13d. to the boy who took it to the
house was not identified by him as the female prisoner. Then as to the crow bar, which had
been ordered by the male prisoner, it had no doubt been paid fur by Mrs. Manning, under her
Busband’s directions; and what was a more usual occurrence than for such a payment to be
made by the wife in any family in ordinary lite? The crow-bar was no doubt brought home
wrapped up, fold in fold, in brown paper, and the bill was handed to Mrs. Manning, though
Bow the article was name: in the bill did not appear in the evidence.” There was nothing
whatever in the transaction but might have occurred in the case of any one present ; and no
man’s wife, having been previously informed of the price of an article by her husbaud, would
fail to find fanlt when she found a higher price charged for the article than had at first
been agreed upon. As to the efforts made to throw the whole blame connected with this
murd:r upon the woman, was it to be imagined that thi originated with the learned
ocounvel ‘on the other side ? It had originat-d rather in the attempt made by the male
prisuner to shift the crime from his own shoulders, if there it rested, to those of the
woman he was bound to have protected. It was a mere afterthought, the -creation of a
feeble mind yielding to the influence of cowardice and fear, and ready, as a poltroon ever
was, to preserve his own life at whatever might be the sacrifice. He said this without
reference to his gwilt or innocence of the crime, and entirely upon the ground of the
statements he had himself mas'e, and because of the charge which the learned rergeant had
preferred against the wife, and the terms in which that charge was made. He could not
understand how any man in the position of a husband, were his wife ever 8o culpable, even if
her guilt was of the deepest dye, could bring himself with so much readiness to cast all blame
upon her in the manner which had been exhibited.in this instance. He would now come to
another point of the case, that which related to the stains o: blood said to have been seen on
Mrs. Manning's dress. It was very remarkable that the only marks deposed to with respect
to one dress were marks upon the cape, and all upon the back of the cape. This he con-
sidered inconsistent with the notion that such spots, whatever they were, had been received
during the commission of a murder. But so far #s the evidence went, these marks were not
shown to be blood at all; indeed, he thought they had better evidence than that of the
chemist, which led them to believe that the marks were not blood, but iron-mould. There were
some other articles besides the cape produccd on which the marks of blood were said to be
seen  They had toilet covers brought befure them of a very handsome deserig:ion—articles .
which she had probably obtained possession of in the houses where she had been employed

as an upper-servaut, houses which indicated that she had been hi%hly respected, and con-
sidered us a Eerson altogether unlikely to be mixed up in a transaction of this kind. Now,
there were a hundred ways in which toilet covers might get drops of blood upon them. Pos=
sibly the person who committed the murder might go to the bed-room after the deed was
done, and in this way the marks might be made; or they might be le t while taking linen
from the drawers, and in a variety of other ways: but afl this was nothing to the purron
a8 implying guilt against the woman at the bar. Then it was said, there was blood
on the inside of & dress; but he thought the Jury would have no_difficulty in
finding an explanation of the fact of there being marks of blood inside the dress of a wo-
man, and that there was nothing in these appearances which could show that the dress was
stained at the time of the murder. Therefore, both as regarded the shovel and the stains of
blo.d, he thought 1he Jury could rest nothing in considering their verdict. Another point to
which he would refer was the evidence given by Mr. Massey. That witness secmed to have
liad some curious conversations with Maoning, thouch they did not affect the case of his
dient. and these chiefiy related to the use of laudanum and chloroforn: as the means of getting
something out of U'Connor. As to the observations with reference to the will of O'Connor
Baving been made in favour of Mrs. Manning, these sesm to have taken place in her presence,
and nothing was thén said but what she might with the greatest propriety listen to. With
regard to landanum, chloroform, the softest parts of the, m and the like—these converea-
tions did not take place when the woman was present, as it was probable they would have



58

éxcited attention and enquiry on her part. He would not say whether they ought to have
excited inquiry on the put of Mr. Massey, but this he woul { observe, that, having had such
conversations from time to time with the male prisoner, it would at least have b-en discreet
on his prt to mention them, and then probably this awful tragedy would not have occurred,
and they woulit not. have been that day sitting to make inquiry into the fate of poor Patrick
O’Connor. There was one remarkable circumstance to which he would briefly call th- atten-
tion of the Jury. The evening of Wednesday the 8th of August was a very important one
as regarded this transaction.” By that day every one of the articles suposed to have been
used in the murder had been guwhased. The crow-bar and the lime had been purchas-d, the
conversation with M4ssev had taken place, and other circumstances had occurred. all going
toshow that the designofthe murder, as laid down in the case for tha pr :secution, had been com-
. ¥leted on the 8thof August. Then what was the conduct of Mrs. Manning on that day? They
ound that O’Connor had been invited to dinner on that day ; and a letter of invitation to him
was found in the handwriting of the female prisoner. He would just 81y, in passing, that, if
Manning had intended any evil to O’Connor that night, they could quite understand that he
migl.t get arother p. rson to write a letter asking him to dinner, and that just in the way she
had been made to pay for the crow-bar, Mrs. Manuing m'ght have be n led to write the
letter. On the 8th, however, O'Cimnor did not - ome to dinner; but he came in the evening
accompanied by a pers'm named Wa'she. Now, if at that mom+nt Mrs. Manning had made up
her mind to commit « murder, let them recollect what was her demeanour. In the presence
of Walshe she asked O’Connor why he had not come, e tered into conversition on the sub-
ject, and, from beginning to end, exhibited the utmost openness before Walshe, and the most
perfect freedotn from all concealment. The same evening, when he became faint, what did
she do? He would ask if even the worst prostitute could have bit -ed the temples of a
man suffering from giddinessafter smoking, with a murderous intent in her heart? ~ At such
a moment the heart of even the basest woman would speak out, and she w-uld shrink from
going near the man whos» murder she had contemplated, and with whom she had livel on
terms of the closest intimacy. 1here was another view to be taken of this matter. Both
Manning and his wife were considerably benefited from their acquuintance with O'Connor.
Mrs. Manning certainly was greatly b nefited and, in conseq ence, she would wish to keep
up her friendship with him, and t» b a3 much as possible in his company. ‘Throwing aside
affection, there was interest in the welfare of O'Cunnor, and interest of that kind th.t most
affected a weman, and which would lead her to repudiate the notion of murder, He would
next ask the Jury to consider the con:duct of Mr+. Maininz at the house of Miss Armnes.
Fiuding that O'Connor did not come to dinner, as she expected, on the 8th, she went to his
lodgings to inquire after him, and not to possess herself of his propeity, as was attem ted to
be shown. Now, if the hypothesis of the prosecution was correct, the mind of the w. man
was at that time under influence of the mostawful kind that could affl ct a human being,
With the dreadful weight upon her mind, that she was a party to the mur‘er of a mn
who bad been the friend of her youth, and who, from time to time, had helped her
with money, and whose corpsc, on her return, she might find buried in her own. house—
with this awful Joad pressing upon her mind, she went to the lodgings of O'Comuor;
and all that the Mis-es Armes could say of her nppearance was, that she looked a little
pale. Was such a thing compatible with their ideas of human nature? On the foliowing
night, he wou'd a'lm.t, it was not improbable that ner appearance might indicate that some-
thing dreadful had occvrred, for it was not impossible that she had then come to the conclu-
sion that some fiul dead bad been perpetrated ; and, accordingly, it was oberved that on that
occasion she greatly trembled. He would now shortly consider her conduct after the murder
had undoubtedly been committed. He would not attempt to deny thet at rome period or
another the woman became acquainted with the murder before she left her house. Whether
it was on the Thursday night, or on the Friday, or sume days afterwards, it was useless to
#peculate about; but his impression was, that she learned it previous to her departure for the
country. Having learned it, he believed her conduct was consistent and recoucileable with
her entire innocence. He had shown why he came to the conclusion that she could not have
been present at the murder; he had also shown why he thought it impossible that
she could have been accessory before the murder; and he would now endeavour to show that
her conduct after it was ju-t such a3 might have been expected. 1f she heard of the murder
fivst from her hucband, how m ny views might not be tuken of the probable courss which she
would be inclined to pursue? The criminality which she had cleirly indulged in wih
O'Cunnor would operate powerfully upon her; she might believe that jealousy was the tfvound-
work on which the conception of the murder had becn raised; and the Jury could easil
conceive how a woman who bad acted sinfully and criminally towards her husband, would
shrink from making known a crime which she had good reason to believe hal been com-
mitted by bim on account of the course of life which she herself had pursued. Certain it was
that, on the day following the murder, she went to the lodgings of O’Connor, and that there
she was seen to exhibit that want of nerve and that shaking of the hand which attracted the
notice of the Misres Armes. With reference to the property of O’Connor found in her posses-
sion, he was not able tosugysest any other reasonable proposition than that, in all probahility, he
had purchased shar« 8 for her in the Sambre and Meu-e Railway ; ana that she thought herself
Jjustified in taking them away ; aud that, in duing 8o, she took other property, to which perhaps
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she thought she was entitled. "There was every reason to belleve that she wanted to invest
mnney without the knowledze of her hushand ; : nd, from conversations overheard between
her and O'Conn-'r, he had, no doubt, been emplcyed by her to invest that money in railway
shares. I’laced in such circumstances, and learning that O'Connor was murdered, whar was
awoman likely to do? - Taking the moat innocent and virtuons woman in the world, or the
most profligate and abandoued, the course which they would adupt on finding that a husband
bad murdered their iriend would cepend very much on the temnerament of the parties. In
the present instance, the woman res lvel to get away from her husband, and, while duing so,
she poss-ssed herself of a consilerable amount o! property. He hoped it would be borne in
mind that he was not putting this woman before the Jar- as a person of pure mind or of pure
habits; nor did he rega:d her as a person guided by bigh moral feelings. Knowing that
O'Counor was murdered, it was not improbable that she immediately resolved upon her cour-e,
and went to the house of the deceased to possess hers:If of ner property, and that she took
other pro: ertv, without knowing whether it belonged to her or not.  Nothing but scrip was
taken away—none of the 1.0 U.’s which lay in the cash-box of the deceased. But it was not
to be doubted that the husband atterwar.is got po-session of part of the property, and, as he
said, s'nt his wife off to the country. The truth s-emed to be, that she resolved to leave him
altogether, and that she touk the nam: of Smith in order the better to effict that purpose.
There were some smaller matters to which he did not think it necessary to reter; but he
trusted that he had rhown enough to convince them that the wuman at the bar was not
accessory before the fact to the murder of this man. In conciusion, the learned counsel
thanked the Jury for the attention with which they hat bstened to his address, and
expresse ] the fullest confidence tha the case of his chent, though a foreiguer, would receive
from un English Jury the most patient, carcful, and impuartial consideration.

The Attorney-General was abou to reply, when

Mer. Parry interposed. and «aid that, although, perhaps, in strictness, the Attorney-General
would have the right of rep y, yet it was not customary to exercise this power in a case where
not a tittle of evidence bad -wen adduced vy the prisiners.

The Chicf Biron ~aid the Attorney-G neral clearly had the right.

Mr. Parry theu put it to the Attorncy-General whether he would exercise the right ina
case where the lives of two of his fellow-creatures were at stake?

THE ATTORNEY-GENERAL'S REPLY.

The Attorney-General said he had undoubtedly, as the representative of the Crown, the right
to bave the last word on an inquiry of this description. It vas a right which had been usually
exercired with great cautiou, and he should not in this case have exercised it, though he and
many other Attorney-Generals had on other occisions done 8+, but that he thought it his duty
to endeavour to hold as evenly as posible the scales of justice between the parties whose
interests were now tefore the Court. He thouyht that Mr. Ball-ntine was justified in con-
glaining of the course that had been adopted by the learned sergeant. He considered he

ad only done his dury as an advocate to his client, and he must say that it appeared to him
to be the more manly course boldly to state a charge against a party, and the grounds upon
which the charge was sipported, than to insinuate it, and uot have the boldness to openly
make the accusation. He red entirely in what had been said by both of his l-arned
frieuds asto the propriety of the Jury dismissing from their minds any impression but such
a8 was legitimately derived from the evidence lawd before them. Both of his learned friends
admitted that the unfortunate man O’Connor was muriercd by somebody in the house in
Minver-place, and that he w+s murdered either by a shot or by blows, or that death was pro-
daced by both jointly, On this point, therefore, there need be no difficulty to the Jury—
that in the house occupied by both prisoners, there being no servant to take part in the trans-
action, Patrick O’Cunnor was murdered on the 9th of August, either by means
of a pistol, or by a crow-bar, or by both. Now, there was, then, one thing on
which the learned counsel who had addressed the C.urt wers entirely agreed,
and that was that the marder kad been committed by one psrson only. That he
thought highly improbatle. He did not think that one person could have raised
the stones in the kitchen, dug the grave, covered it over, and, above all, could have thrust the
body into the grave in the manner which had heen.deseribed. He did not see any reason
why Manning shoull have committed the murder alone, Uecause, unless he perpetrated it
with the concurrence of her whose presence in O'Connor's roomn would not create suspicion,
and ther-by obtain the property sought for, he woull have no motive for commitiing the
dped. It was not suggested that jealousy was the motive, and they were shut up to the alter-
mative that he was acrusted by a desire to get possession of the property of the deceased.
How, then, was Manning to g 't access to the property? Had he goue hims-If to the ldgings
of O'Connor, suspicion might have been excited ; but there was one who had been constantly
in the habit of going th-re, whose preseace would excite no suspicion wh tever. With regard
to the time when the murder was alleed to have been committed, there did not appear to be
any evid-nce whew it was actually conunitt d; and it was very possible that the act might
have been committed af er the return of the female prisoner from the house of the deceascd.
A little after five o’clock O'Connor wus seen near Minver-plice. After that time he was
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2080 0D thbdd.c,lppnnt:lﬁh ahdudnﬁ and uneertain ‘mood, very like.s pevson whe
'was looking for some one. e probability, then, was, that, not fiuding the female prison er
at home, soon after five o’clock, he had left Minver-place, but afterwards retumed—whether
with the female prisoner or not could not be ascertained ; and iu all likelihood the morder was
commitied then. Manning said he was in the house when it was done, but be did not ssy at
what timre. He did not say it was committed at five o’clock, or any other hour, baving coa=
tented himselt with saying that he was present, and then attrivuting the murde: to his wife.
Was the murder perpetrated, then, before scven o’clock? They bad evidence to the effect
that the husband was seen smoking his pipe on the garden wall; was it when he was seen to

ﬁ:np_;mm the wall that he went and opened the door to O'Connor, perbaps accompanied by
wife

Mr. Ballantine: It was half: past seven o’clock when he was seen smoking.

The Attorney-General could only say, from what had come out in evidence, that the
mourder was not committed at five o’clock, and he had endeavoured to come as near as
possible to the time when it wasin reality perpetrated. A good deul had been said about the
purchase of the chisel, the lime, and the shovel ; and it sh.uld be borne in mind that before
the 8th the chisel and the lime were purchased, and that the shovel was bought on :hat very
day. But then the Mannings were before the 8th in treaty fur the sale of their furniture,
and they sold it two days after. Why, then, did they buy a shovel on the very day of the
murder, when they were actually discussing with a broker whether they should get £13 or
£13 10x. for their furniture? No doubt it was used for the removal of the earth from the
floor. Mr. Bullantine asked whether the conduct of the woman on the night of the 8tb, in
the presence of the witness Walshe, was like that of & guilty person. But he did not regard
this as a correct view of the matter. On the contrary, she would tiud that there was no use
in atrtempting concealment, because the fact of a letter huvinﬁ been sint to O’Conner was
made known to Walshe. Then, it did 10t appear that she asked O’Connor, in Walehe’s ore-
sence, to come to dioner on the Thursday, but she wrote bim a letter of invitation after
twelve that very night.

Mr. Bullantine: There’s no evidence to that effect.

The Attorney- General : He was asked to dim er on the Thursday, but he was not asked in
‘Walshe’s presence. Not a word was then said about it; and there was little doubt that an
invitation had been sent. It wasstrange that she should have been so anxious about ti.e mat-
ter as to go and fetch him to dinner. But she had not onls &)’ne that night, but went also the
following, when she, without doult, opened the boxes of O’Connor by means of the k ys that
had been taken from his person. It was 1n evidence that tne feuale prisoner stated that she
had herselt’ cleaned the vack kitcben on the day of the murder, and therefore she must have
been aware of the condition of the kitchen at that time. ‘Then they found her in th: custody
of Mr. Moxhay at K.inburgh, having in h-r possession the propeity of the murlered mas.
With respect to the man, wbat was his conduct? He did not deny that he was p- sent at
the murder, though he endeavoured to cast the blame upon his wife. He wished it to be im-
plied that he was present when the murder was comwitted, but that be was present iine~
cently. Was it possible for & man to be present at the ¢ mmission of murder innocently
in-such circumstances? Why, only the day after the muider, ke went with a pait of the
prope ity of the murdered man, torged the name of that man, and by this means prooured &
sam of £110. He then absconded, and, when taken, endeavoured 1o cast the blume of the
whole transaction upon his wife, It was impossible, then, not te come to the conclusion that
both prisoucrs were concerned in this atrocicus case. Both were conocerned in the purchase
of the instruments used in procuring the d ath and burial « f their victim. Both resuited to
concealment, and both took part in the distribution of QConnor’s properiy. He did net
complain of his lcarned friends acting upon their instructions. 1t was their caty to de all
that properly lay within their power for the clients on whose bebalf they appeared ; but it
was equully bis duty to endeavour to apply the evidence farrly snd impartially,and equallyte
both parties, without considering wuat might be the re ult of 1be inqu.ry. He did not intend,
when he rose, to trouble them with any minute «xamination of the dificrent parts of the evi-
dence, nor had he done s0; and he would now leave this distreasing case in the hands of the
Bench and the Jury.

THE JUDGE’S CHARGE.

The Lord Chief Baron then proceeded to deliver his charge to the Jury. The prisoners &%
the bar, he said, were charged with the awful crime of murder. They bad respuctively
pleaded “ Not guilty ;” and, when the Jury had considered all the evidence,and heard what
the law was upon tbe subject, they would bave to determine with respect to each of ti.em
whether guilt was applicable 10 either, or to buth, according to the evidence uced. The
1aw, av luid down by the learied Atturuey-Geseral in the opening spetch, had been ucquiesced
in by both of the learned counsel who appeared for the two prisoners, and he did not think it
necossary, therelore, to say more than this—that what 1he Juiy Lad to connider was,
firet, whether the deceased came :{ his death by vivlence—whether, in short, he wus mur-
dered ; secundly, whether either of the prisouers, or both, were participators in that violence




whether they both were directly or immediately parties to the violence, of whether either of
them committed the violence, with the knowl and previonsassent and connivance of tle
other. If they believed that they were both directly particip in the violence, then thejr
wverdict should be against both, As, also, if 1t was the vivient act of either of them, with the
previous consent and concurrence of the other, then thoy must bring in a verdict of
“Guulty ” aguinst both. But if they believed that the act was known to one only, and that
no previous consent w s given by the other, then the verdict saould be against that person.
If they thought ncither of them bad 10 do with it, or if it should turn out that there were no
means before them of casting the blame upon one more than the other, it was possible that
they migar acquit both. These were the points which the Jury were called upon to discover in
this case, and he did not think it necessary further to occupy their attention with laying down
any technical rules, or occupying their time by adverting to the counts in the indictment.
The crime in question was, perhaps, oue of the most unexampled ever recorded in the h.story
of this country ; but he did not mean to make any comments on its enormity. It was the
duty of the Jury to enter upon the inquiry with as much calmness as possible, dismissing
from their recollections everything they had heard before they eutered the court, and to
consider carstully everything founded on truth that could ultimately lead them to a just con-
clusion. The first questi in they had to consider was, had the crime been committed at all by
anyb.dy; and the next was, whether either of the prisoners, or one or both of them, were
guilty of that crime. With res ect to the first, it was admitted, on all hauds, that Patrick
O’Counoi, the deceased, was murdered some time on ['nurs ay, the 9th day of August; and
his budy was fouud in the state described by the surgeon, the skull having been perforated
by a bullet, and the back of it fractured so as t» preseut no fewer than 16 pieces of broken
bone If a body so circumstanced had been found anywhere, the conclusion that the person
had been :1.urdered would not, probably, have bren irresistible. Had the body, however,
been found burieds as it was, in the back kitchen, with wounds of an equivocal kind, leaving
it amviguous whether the inividual had caused his own death, or whether death Lad been
caused by murder, still, tinding a body thus concealed and thus strangely buried from ali ha-
man sight, in all probability they would have considi red it as murdered, though the signs of
violence lefc it doubtful whether nis own hands or the hands of o.hers inflicted the wou..ds ;
because some one must have besn there to bury the body, and it would not bavg been placed
in that condition unless some one had deprived the individual of life. When, ther«fore, they
found the two circuinstances united, viz. that the body was strangely concealed ; and, when
broughttoligit, preseated a spectaclesuch usthesurgeon had described—there could be no duubt
whatever that a murder had been committed. Neither did there appear to be any douut that
Patrick O’Conuor was murdered on the 9th of August. Thequestivn then arose, by whom
was he murdered? The question then very uaturally arose, who were the parties living in
the house, in the back kitchen of which the body was found, and what was t.e bhistury of
those parties during the days that elapsed between the time when O’Counor was last seenand
the tine when his body was found on the 17th of “August? The only two persons at that
time living in the h use were the prisoners at the bar. It had not been suggested by eituer
of the learued counscl for the prisoners that the murder could have been committed by any
other than the inmates of the house, nor had it been rcpresented that anybody out
of the house committed the murder, and brought the ly and deposited it in the
kitchen. There could be no doubt, :hen, that very grave suspicion must exist
agaiust the persons living in the house. L'he surgeon who examined the body was asked how
long he thought it had been uried, and he replied, that it must have been buried ab ut a
week. That was on Friday, the 17th of August; aud Thursday, the 9th of August, was the
day on which the deceased disappea-ed. Ho had been seeu ut halt-past se\en tha. morning
by the persons at whose house he lodged; he had been seea on London-bridge by more than
one person at two different times; ne had been seen,also, within 100 or 150 yards of the bouse
of the prisoners some tew miuutes arter five o’clock ; but from that time he had not been
seen till his body was dug up in the back kitchen, on the 17¢th.  The two prisoners at the bar
appeared by ditferent counsel, and they had attempted to throw the blame of this trans-
action, this dreadful crime, the one upun the other. Une of the learned geutle-
men directly and openly repudisted, on ihe part of the mun, all shave in the crime,
and threw the guilt upon the woman ; while the other leari:ed gentieman, not quite 8o openly,
but still distinctly eoough, endeavoured to exculpite the wowan, ana throw tne
guilt upon the man. The Jury, however, must attend to the evidence, as well as to the
observations of counsel, and, by the.r own expeiicnce and sound judgment, come to a con-
clusion as to where the guilt rested, and whether it belunged tv the one or the other, or both.
In taking a review of tne whole trausaction, it appeared to him - hat it would be very unsafe
to rely upon small minate circumnstances, as to which there might be no sure sources of infor-
mation. They were to take a bruad, general, comprehenswve view of the case, not stopping
to inquire, just at one particular' moment, what would be the expressions of & man or wuman
in the circumstances that might actach to tuat particular occ sion; but to cinsider what was
the resalt of all the circumsta..ces brought out in tue evidence laid before them. Thers were
some things that it would w<ll become them to consider with respect to the joint intentions
.of the two pr'woneru at the bar, and to thes: he would endeavour to call their attention when
considering the prominent facts brought out in the evidence which they ltad heard in detail.
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With respect to the male prironer, he stated that he was present at the murder; that he saw
his wife tire a pistol at the head of the duceased. Now thi< was conclusive evidence that he
was present at that moment, and it was & natural inquiry whether he knew a: yth ng of it
before. Was it a matter of which he h.d not the slight st anticipation, or was it one that
he had reason to expect? It appesred that, when he gave an account (f the transaction to
the sergeant of police, he #-id he was *‘ anxious to go to town, as he wished to explain all”
But had he ex lamed anything? There wais an allusion made to there beinyg other
wounds besides that produc d by a shot, but he gave no expl -na‘ion relative to them. He
was told there were other wound , but he gave no »nswer. Now, assuming that the male
prisoner was preseat when smnebuody fired the pistol—he (the Chief Baron) used that expres-
sion because it was no evidence nagainst the other prisoner—assaming that he was present
when some person put one hand on the man’s rh.ulder, and with the other hand fircd the
pistol, then the question came 1o be, who inflicted the wound« on the back «f the head ufter-
wards? What course did he here take? Did he endeavour to prevent any further violence?
These were ques'ions which the:Jury must put to them-clves, a: d  ndeavour to answer, As
against the male prisover, this seemed to he the casve; h: aditted 1 e was present at the
murder, but he gave no account of the rest of the tran<action, or of the concealment of the
body. It appeared that, after the murder, buth the male and female pri-one:s quitted the
house, and went off in diflferent directio: 8. Mrs. Manning, it appeared, went on Monday, the
13th of August; while the male prisoner left on the Wednesaay moining fillowing. [ His
Lordship then proceeded to direct the uttention of the Jury 10 the otlier mure prominent fucts
of the case, a8 brought outin evidence. In conclusion, he said:—] I be‘ieve that these are all
the facts of the case on the part of the prosecution, No evicence has been called on the other
side. It will be your duty to :ay to what conclusion your mindshave been brought as to the
participation in the murder by one or both of the prisoners If vou think that the oe is guilty,
and the other innocent, but cannot possibly decide which is the guilty party, you may be re-
duced 10 the alternative of returning a vertict of “ Not guilty” as rezards both. But, if you con-
sider that one of them was guilty, it will be for you to consider whet: er, seeing that the mur-~
der was committed in the bouse where Loth tire prison:is lived, it could pos<ibly
be undertaken by the one without -the knowledge of the other. If you thiuk it
possible thgt, ia the ordinary comse of human nature, this could have happened, you
will, of courst, act upon your judgment ; but I trust your judgment will be well weig{xcd
before you pronounce it. If, irdeed, yon seriously believe that one of the parties alone
has been guilty ot the de:d, und that the other had no p-ivate knowledge of the transaction,
it will be for you to cousider to which of the persons the guilt and innocence respectively
applies. But if, looking at the hole transaction, you come to the conclusion that both
must, according to the ordinary course of human atiaire, have been concerned in the murder,
then it will be your duty to fiud both prisoners guilty. With respect to any question of
doubt—if, indeed, this be a case where uny of the fucts can be doubted—it will be for you to
decide what part of the evidence you thi. i true, and what ycu think objrctionable. ~With
respect to the doubte, 1 appretend that your duty is calmly and gravily to investigate the
cas», to see what is the conclusion impressed upon your minds, as men of the world, as men
of sense, and men of solid jusrice. 1f the conclusion to which you are conducted be that
there is that degree of certainty in the case that you would act upon it in your own gr.ve
and important concerns, that is the degree of cerwainty which the law requires, aud which
will justify you in returning a verd:ct of guilty against one or both of the prisoners. It is
not necessary that a crime shoul.i be ertavlished beyond the possibility of doubt. There are
crimes committed in darkness a d secrecy which can only be traced aud brought to light by
a comparison of circumstances, wh:ch press upon the mind moie and more as they are in-
creased in number. - These are duubts more or less involved in every human transaction. We
are frequently mistaken as 10 what we suppose we have seen—still vitener as to what we sup-
pose we have heard. In all thetr nsactions oflife there is a certaindegree of doubt mixed up, but
these are not the doubts upon which you act in deviding upon a case so in;portant as this for the
public, on the one hand, and the prisvners ou the other. Idoub' not that you will discharge your
duty most faithfully. You will con=ider that you have on the one hand a duty to the public
—namely, to take care that the guilty shall not escape; a::d that, on the other, you haye a
duty to the prisoners—to take care that they shall nut be convicted upon any mere suriises o
suspicioa—upon rash or light grounds, but upou grave and solid ress: s presenting themselves
to your understandings, and leading you to a satistactory conclusion that one or both are
gulty of the crime. With these 1emarks I dizmiss you to (he performance of your importuut
duty, and I pray that your decision may be four.ded up-n justice and truth.

The Jury retired exactly at six o'clock, and remained absent for three-quarters of an hour.
During their absence the prisouers were allowed to reiir:, and the audience occupied them-
selves in eager conversation on the merits of the cass wnd the probable verdict that would
g: r;tn:xid. The dock, which was by this time nearly filled with spectators, was ordered to

clear

On the return of the Jury, at a quarter to seven o'clock, the prisoners were again placed
:itk the bar. The loud buzz of conversation in the court ut ouce gave way to soiema
nce. ' : : )
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. . THE VERDICT.

M. Streight (Clerk of the Arraigns)said: Gentlemen of the Jury, do you fnd the prisoner
Frederick Georgn Manning Guilty or Not Gutuy 2 :

Korewnan: GUILTY. - . . . . .

Mr. St,reighé U Ror,vou find the prisoner Maria Maaning Guilty or Not Guilty 2

Foreman : LY.

ll‘drm Streight: Frederick Georgs Manning and Maria Manning, you severally stind con-
victed of the murder of Pa rick O'Conunor; what have you, or either of you, to say why the
Court should uot proceed to pas: judgment upon yoa according to law?

MRS. MANNING’S ADDRESS TO THE COURT.

Mra. Manning, in a state of great excitement, addressed the Crurt as follows. She spoke
with a strong toreign accent, and with re-narkablq vehemence, h.er ex :ltemgnt appearing to
supply her with fluency ot apeech :—There 18 nv justice (she said) and no rig¢ tor a forcign
subject in th's country.” Tnere is no law for me 1 have had no prut-ction—neither from the
Judges, nor from the prosecutors, nor from my husban i, I am u.justly condemned by this
Court. If [ ware in my own country, I could prove that I had money sent frum abroad,
which is now in the Bank o England. My soticitors and counsel coul { havs called witaesses
to identify shares that were bou :ht with my own mouney. Mr. O'Connor wais more to me
than my husband. IIe was a friend and brother to me ever since I came to this country. I
knew him for seven years, He want d to marry me, and [ vaght to have been married to
him. I have letters which would prove his re<pect and regard for me ; and I think, consi-
dering that 1 am a womnan and alone, that 1 have to fizht against my bus and’s s atements,
that 1 hav+ to fight against the prosecutors, and that even the Judge himself is
again:t me—I think that 1 am not treated hke a Chrisiian, but like a wild beast
of the forest; and the Judges and Jury will have it upon their consciences for

.giving a verdict against me. [ am not guilty of the murder of Mr. Y’Coanor.
ffl had wisbe i to commit murder, I would not have attempted the lite of the only friend I
had in the world—a man who would have made e his wits in a week, it I had beena widow.
I have lived in respectable families, and can produce testimonials of haracter for probity in
every respect, if inquiry is made. I can account for more money tian was equul to the
trifling shares that were found upon me. It my hu:-baud, through jealou~y, and a re-
vengeful teeling agairst O'Connor, close to murder vim, 1 con’t see why I should be
puni-hed for it. I wish 1 could have expressed myself better in the English language. That is
all I have to say. .

Manning said nothing.

THE SENTENCE.

Mr. Justice Cresswell (who, in the absence of the Chief Baron, delivered judgment) then
put on ti.e black cap and addrersed the prisoners as follows: —Frederick George Mannirg
and Maria Manning, you have heen convicted of the crune of murder:

Mrs. Manuing (vehemently): No. no; I wont stand here to hear that said, You ought
to be ashamed of yourselves.  ‘There is neither law nor justice here [ She then turned round
;: gf 13 leave the dock, but was prevented by Mr. Cope, the Governor of Newgate, who stood

ind her.

Mr. J usu?:e Cresswell : You have been defended by ab'e counsel.

Mrs. Manning: They did not pro.uce any withesses for me,

Mr. Justice Cresswell . Lvery topic which ingenuity or experience had taught them would
be at all available for your defence, has been urged by them. You have been found guilty by
a Jury upon evidence which, I will venture to say, cculd leave no rational doubt upon tte
mind of any human being who heard it. A verd ct of guilty is the only one which the Jury
coult conscientiously return. llad they failed to return that verdict, it would have been very
difficult inleed to convince me that they had not shrunk from their duty, so completely
was I satisfied, by the evidence which I heard detailed by the uifferent witncsses, of the guilt
of both of you. .

Mrs, Manning: The witnesses in my favour were not called.

Mr. Justice Cresswell: Murder is the highest crime that one individual can commit against
anotner in this couatry. It is at a.l times a horrivle offence; but the piesent murder was one
of tire mnost coid-blooded and deliberately calculated [ ever rememer to have heard or read of.
Under the pret: nce of friendship, or rather affect:on—for such was the description of the
invitation of tue 8th—under that preteace, you unhappily deluded him to a place where his
grave was probably then prepared, and where the deed was afterwa:ds committed which had,
no doubt, been fur days contemplated. It is oue of the most appalli:g iostances of human
wickedness which the annals of this court cun furnish It has been suggested that the
deceased led a vicious course ot lite with one of you pri:oners; but whetber that was so or
not, I profess not 10 judge; that rests with )our owa conscience. But, whatever
was his course of lite, without a moment’s warning or preparation, without the
slightest opportunity of thinking of tuturicy, or endeavounng to seck pardon for
aoy offences be had committed, that wnbappy man was hurried into eternity. The
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law, more merciful, allows to yeu #pace of time for preparation. It reau tha
on & former occasion, a conversation passed between one of yola’l and the witm‘p nssey n’tg
where the soul of ‘a person” who had committed a murder wou!d go. The time bas arrived
when you should ask that question again. As I cannot hald out the slightest hope of a com-
mutation of the sentence which I am about to pr y T am bound to tell you
that, as far as my judgment goes, your doom is irretrieva.ly fixed when that sentence
is I advise you, therefore, to resort, with all humility, and all contrition,
g the advice and counsel of the minister of the (ospel appointed to attend you,

rom him you will receive all the consolation which, in your unhappy condition, he
can, in the fuithful discharge of his duties, afford you. From him you wilr learn what you
havy to fear. He will no doubt point out to you, in strong terms, the full exten: of your

t; and I am sare he will rej iice if he can conscientiously bold out to you any hope of

at pardon bereafter which, in this world, is impossible. I consign you to his advice, and
pray you to profit by it. Whatever sorrow, or even indignatiin, you may really feel, or
affect’ to feel, a8 to the courss of procesding this day, depend upon it that others will judge
different'y ; and I doubt whether everv one who bas heard the trial will not be as weil
sati~fied as I am that the result i» the only one consistent with justice. Having given yot
this warning and advice, which I pray you once more to receive in all humility, it remains
for me only to pr the dre-d se of the law, which is, that you be taken hence to
her Majesty’s gaol for the county of Surrey, and thence to the place of execution, and there
be severally hanged by the neck until you be dead; and that afterwards your dead bodies be.
baried within the precincts of the gaol in which you shall be coufined after this sentence;
and may the Lord have mercy upon your guilty souls! :

Mr. Streight: Amen, :

Mrs. Manning was again proceeding to address the Court, when she was ordered to be re.
moved. 8he exclaimed that it was shameful to pass such a sentence upon her, and added,
« Base and shametul England!” According to custom, the bench in front of the dock was
strewn with rue. Taking some of this in her hand, she threw it into the body of the court,.
as if by that contempruous act she coul | find some relief from the excitem:nt under which
she laboured. She was immediately removed by Mr. Cope and a remale turnkey.

Manuning merely bowed to the Court and retired. He seemed very subdued, but retained
his self-p ssession. ‘

The proceed.ngs closed shortly after seven o’clock.

‘The following letter, which led to the renewal of the intimacy between the prisoner Maria
Manning and the unfortunate deceased, will doubtless be perused witlr interest by the publies

It proceeded as follows :— .
* #Cus oms, St. Katterine’s Docks, June 11th, 1847.
“ My dear Mrs, ——,—Not knowing your real name, I have addressed this note as usual.
X hope it will find you. I cannut describe to you my feelings, and what T suffired siiice T saw
you last evening. If you were to know halr you woul| have compassion for me, if I was the
test enemy ycu ever had. 1 have spent a solitary and dreary winter and 4 dull and me~
E::huly spriog, in anticipation of baving a jovial and ple sant autumn. | had given u
going into all rociety—cut the acquaintance of every friend I had on your acco.nr, beiné
anxious to economise and secure for ourselves the means of m ‘king-us happy and comforiab
the rest of our lives, I had my montt’s leave of absence settled to commence on the 6th of
August, when I thought yeu might be afier returning from the Continent, and intevded to get
married on the 7th, leave Londun for Boulogne on the 8th. and there spend the honey-month ;
but, alas! these arrangements are now blighted. You have all those comforts that your
heart can wish for, and I sm glad of it. For poor me there is nune of. these consotations left,
but the sad reflection of being disappoinied. Ah, Maria! You have acted cruel to me.
‘Why not, like a true professor of what you avo.ed, write and say what you intended
before \u acted so—then, at the risk of loxing my situation, I would go every step to
Erkine House and get manied to the onl being on the face of God’s earth ' who
could make me happy; and, Maria dear, if you coud only read the feelings of my heart
ou wuuld not do as you did. However, it 18 too late to be speaking of these things Low.
&e must be reconciled with the will of God, and hope all things are regulated by Him for a
wise and benevolent purpose. Enough now of this sad and melancholy affair, fir so it is to
me However, I hope we will always entertain the same kindly feelings towards each other
that is due to old friends. I can speak for myself, and am sure I will. - When shall I have
the plearure of seeing you here? Bring your husband, ‘and any others you like; 1 will be
able to show them the docks and the vaulis; but, mind, ladies are not admitted into the
. vaults after one o'clock ; I wish you could come soon. There is a ship from Chius, alongside
my station in the docks—the Viscount Sandon; she leaves on Sunday. There are th ee
Chinese on board, and it would be a novelty for you to see them with their long tails. You
said you would call on me on Sunday. 1 wish you would. If you do, write and say whdt
time, that | may be sure to meet you. You may be able to give some explanations on the
matter, which may smooth it down a little. ' | wish I could acquityou of infi lelity on the ot-
casion. I hope that the blessing of God may rest on- all your proceedings, and’ belicve me,
- waader any circumstances, till death,—Yours.verv-affe-tivnately, Parrick O’Coxnor.”

London: W. M. Crarx, Warwick-lane, Paternoster-row,



" APPENDIX TO CLARK’S EDITION.

THE ONLY CORRECT ACCOUNT

OF THE

CONFESSION AND EXECUTION

FREDERICK GEORGE MANNING

AND

MARIA MANNING,

FOR

- THE MURDER OF PATRICK O’CONNOR.

" Late on Saturday nifht (the 8rd November) Mrs. Manning’s attorney, Mr. Solomon, re-
ceived an anonymous letter couched in the following terms:—

“1 beg to state that I think Mrs. Manning had a right to be tried by a jury de medistate

¥ on account of her being a foreigner in the first place; secondly, if you will take the

trouble to ﬁo to St. Marylebone Church and look at the books, you will find that George
Frederick Manning, now under sentenos of death, is the same person who was married n
1832 to Mary Roberts, and that his bfother, Richard Manning, was witneas to it; but if yon
should not find it so, u{ou had better apply at No. 28, Camden-cottages, where you may
obtain further particulars.”

This statement, which appeared, as is said, to be written in a female hand, induced Mr.
Solomon to go the next day ;Sundly) to Marylebone Church for the purpose of examining
he marriage F:gmt:{ The following was the result of his search :— “ March 9, 1832.

“QGeorge erick Manning, bachelor, and Mary Roberts, spinster, were married by banns.

“ BrRYANT BURGEss, B.A., Curate.” “SARAH LAWRENCE, LE witnesses,
¢

e Times, from

& RicHARD MANNING,

On Tuesday, the 6th, the following letter, addressed to the editor of
Edmund Manning, brother to the prisoner, set that point at rest .—

“ Sir,—Feeling your readiness at all times to correct any erroneous impressions calculated
to prejudice the public mind, especially in the case to which I allude, as a brother to the un-
fortunate Frederick George Munning, 1 feel I should not be doing justice to myself, brothers,
and the rest of the family, should I not contradict a statement set forth in your columns of
yesterday with respect to a previous marriuﬂe having taken place between my brother and a
certain Mary Roberts in the year 1832, at Marylebone Church, which statemeat would impl
that he had been guilty of the crime of bigamy. I beg to state that he was born on the 20t
of March, 1820, which will show the utter impossibility of such bhaving taken place, as he
could n?t ha'\’re been, at the period of the marriage named by your correspondent, thirteen

rs of a
ye;t will E:.seeu that the Registry gives the name of George Frederick instead of Frederiok
George, and thatthe prisoner has no brother named “Richard,” the witness.

APPEAL ON THE PART OF MARIA MANNING.—THE

JURY POINT.

The point reserved in this case, as to the right of the prisoner to be tried as an alien, by a
jury consisting of an equal number of aliens and natural subjects, or, in legal language, de
medictate lingue, came on for argument, on Wednesday, Nov. 7,

The Learned Judges who formed the Court were—the Lord Chief Justice Wilde, the Lord
Chief Baron, Mr. Justice Coleridge, Mr. Justice Cresswell, Mr. Baron Rolfe, and Mr. Baron Platt.

PRICE ONE PENNY.
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Mr. Ballantiné and Mr. Parry appeared for the prisorier ; Mr. Satnders attesidsd for her hus-
band ; and the case of the Crown was conducted by the Attorney-General, with the assistance
of Mr. Bodkin and Mr. Clarkson. ’ :

.. Every part of the small and extremely inconvenient chamber was cxawded.

Mr. Ballantine, after briefly stating the reservation of the point at the trial, said that the
prisoner alleged that she was an alien, having been born in Switzerland ; and claimed, under
the statute of 28 Edw. 3, cap. 13, to be tried by a jury de medietate lingue. By the 2d sec-
tion of that statute it was enacted, “ That in all mauner of inquests and proofs which be to
be taken or made gmongst aliens and denizens, be they merchants or others, as well before
the mayor of the staple as bgfore any other justices or my

the one-half f ‘thd inquest or proof shall be-dénigens, a

not in the same words. By that section it was ted, “That nothing herein contained
shall extend, or be construed to extend, to deprive any alien indicted or impeached of any
felony or misdemeanour of the right of being tried by a iury de medietate, but that, on the

prayer of every alien go indieted pt.ilppeag;;l,» ¢ sherif}, or o%xgg g{:fe{ EW’% IHKJ
half of ¢ a scompetént- r iof gl ]

comufand of the Colrt, refurn’ for oné. the jul q
the- alien's’ Hght,
f

&c. The latter statate was only declaratory of the cofitinuanch b
and he thought their Lordships would consider that this case was by no means o
slight importance, whether with regard ‘to -the prisoner—who did not appear be-
fore the Cout to take advantage of a mere technicality, but to complain of
of not having had a fair yrial, a’tfipl before such & tripunal ag t! l& ~pointed out—or as
regarded the law geneFally ; for ¥ thé statute’ which “the!Aftordby- zeral quoted at the
trial, the 7 and 8 Victoria, c. 66, was to operate in cases of this kind, it would not matter whether
an alien woman was married before or after the passing of that act ; but, although she married
with the presumption that her rights and privileges as an alien were to be retained by her, yet by
a subsequent statute, without any act of her own, without any warning to her, those rights and
privileges were faked away. = Another vlew of fhis bvazt‘lﬁ(;, a gorf of “§ide ptovision,
the jury process and arrangements, which were considered as part of the constitation of the
country, were interfered with, and that by an act in which the term “jury” was not even
mentioned. If the Legislature could have supposed that the statute would have affected
those arrangements. which were viewed withy the igrestest. care by all who were angiops-to
preserve the liberties of the country, it could not be doybted that meye vigilance wonld- have
been shown in passing it. - Now the: language of the statute of Edward 3 was certainly
pecaliar; it spoke both of aliens and denizens, and differedt. constructions had been put
1t by different authiorities. Mr. Chitty, in the 1st vol. of his “Criminal Law,” said; * Besifles
the ordinary special jury, thiere is another description of persons, as aliens and dg¢njzens arg
by the singular humauvity of the law entitled to demand .4 trial de medietate lingug; and af
the time the.statute was passed, there was not probably a very' cledy distinction batween
fersons naturalised by letters of denization and persons naturalised by act of Parlianént.®
t'was true the word “denizen ” w, p%t uged in- the subsequent act :'but he contended that
the statute should be construed as Mr.. Chilty had construed it, and that the intention of
Legislature was to give to all persons born abroad, under another allegiance, habituated
other customs, and probably speaking another tongue, a jury de medietate lingu, some. of
whom might .comprehené those customs, and ynderstand the Janguage jn which the
prisoner ‘might snesk. : Now, in consequence of 'the ‘statute of Edward ‘8, foreigners
had been in the habit of claiming -a jury -de sedietate lingue, and it was pot
unimportant to observe the mode in which it was done.” By the statufe, no meang we!
f‘oinmd out to settle the issue whether the party was eér was mnot an aliep, but the words, o
ord Hale on this subject were: “If any person allege he is an alicn, he shall be trigd by 3
jury de medietate lingug;” and if from the name in the indictment the prisoner appeared ta be
a foreigner, he was :asked whether or not he wonld have a foreign jury. He: was not gsked
whether he was an alien, or naturalised, but his claim, his allegation, was sufficient. He wap
awarded such a jury as & matter of course.. - The Attorney-General, before'the Court below,
gaid, if ho had allowed the prisoper such a jury, and was wrong, it would have been & mistrial;
but,if so, thers must bave been many mistrials, as prizoners were allowed such a Jury. on t’b‘éq-
mere allegation. The question, then, was, whether that privilege was taken from the pns_'bn'eg‘
in this case by the statute of Victoria, and, if not, whether si:e was entitled to 1.;, being‘ ‘in-
dicted with her husband? As to the latter peint, the Attorney-General had relied on Harié’s
case, Moore's Reports, 557, and cited in Bacon’s “Abridgment,” vol. iv., p. 568; but if ?
person was to be ousted of his right by being connected with another in the indictrnent,” it
would be'a virtual abolition of the statute of Kdward, and, render that of Georgedy. an ab-
surdity. It might be convenient to try prisoners together, but in law tHete wa$ no inconve-
nience in trying them separately, and, as that might have been done here, the case of Barre
ought to be overruled as contrary to the statute of Edward. After observing that this was
4 joint and several indictment, upon which either party miglt have been found guilty or
acquitted, the learned counsel satd he now came t6 the more important question, whether the
statute of Victoria took away-the privilége as an alien of a womah' mdrried to a watural-
bYorn subject. By the 16th section it was enacted, « That any woran married, or who shall
be married, to a natural-born subject, or perscn naturaliséd, shall -be'deemed and taken
to be herself naturalised, and have all the rights and privileges of a natural-born sub-

4

althdugliDdhe Kitigbe ey >
[ t gbtke:ﬁ '_aligflﬁc.} 4 .
. statate was référred to by the-Jury Act, the 6 Geo. 4,c: 60} 4n Rhe 47th wection, thoukk -.
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ect 3 but it was clear she could not be sup) to take all such rtights and privileges; for,
icoking tothe6th sactior, ‘her husbuny," if'“a’ maturalised sitbject;, was mot cagmb‘le
of * becoming & Privy Counciler or member of  Parlisment, or “enjoying otber fght

excepted in the certifica‘e to be granted to iim by the Secretary of State; and it coul ﬁ

be tontenued thatshe took greater privileges than her husband. ' He submitted that
correct eonstruction of the 16th clause was, that, althvugh she was to be deemed a nagural~
born sabject as to'her rights and privileges, she was not ‘to be deprived of any that be}
to her by law before that statute; that, in fact, the statute was to enable allens, at a smaller
expense, and in a moreiconvenient manner, to become citizens of this country, but xjét to
deprive them of - their previous rights and privileges, and place them under disabilitlés which
did not previously exist.'A:man:who was naturalised urrder the statute was assumed to Khow
the law, and to give up his privileges as an alien voluntarily ; but that was dot'ge, with
woman who might have married previously to the statate, and, without any option of her
own, was by it :to be deprived of the Erivileges which, at the time of her marriage, she
thought she should re ain. The learned gentieman then referred to Molidre’s case, mekis
tioned in.Comyn’s * Digest,” vol. i, title “ Alien,” c. 8, to show the care with which the Co
regarded any municipal provisions which affected the interests of foreigners; and concluded,
by expressing his hope that -their Lordships would be of opinion, that, even if he had hot
made out a perfect case of denaturalisation on'the part of the prisoner, the Attorney-General
had not:made out, on'the part- of :the -Crown, a sufficient case to deprive her of her rights
which previously exiated. ° C oMt : R i
Mr. Saunders said he should not trouble their Lordships with any observations on the
part of the prisoner’s husband. Co L B R
. The Astorncy-Generdl eaid he appeared in support of the conviction. and he concurred
with his-learned fiiend ‘that it was a matter of impdrtance, ded, although.
his learned friend: comtradicted the: proposition, that if tt 5-entitléd to a
jury de medietate lingue, had been trted by such a tribunal, it would have bRen a mistrial as
to her; for &b wonsemt:-on her part would have bound her. He'would now notice fhe. argu-
ments.of his Jearned friend in:the order which he had followed, dnd in the first instante he
would contend that;'accerdini to thie true ¢onstruction of the statute of Edward, the "case-of
Bame was ‘rightly decidled: - The- book from which his learned friend Had quoted 'it, Bacon’s
¢ Abridgement;'i<did ot give the whole of it, for there was'an omission of an importan) geh~
tence, which-was given ‘in -the ‘original report of it by Moore.. It was a case in th¢ Exche~
quer against Barre and othér merchants,” some of - Whom were aliche, and others” English :
afterissue joined, she aliens prayell a jury de medietate lingu, but the Court'hald that they
codild not have it, *fér (this was the omitted sentence) some of the defendants Were English;
and-icould ‘not bave “that “tridl,” but ‘the - aliefis could have -such ‘& tgial as "they
would’ have had “befote the 'statute,- and' as they would have had if they had .not
prayed - a  jury ‘de ‘medistate ' lingue.” Now, the statute of 27 Fdward 3., statut
2, 1¢.-8, after prowiding for all :suits affecting property by the law of st.atple, conclude
thus: %and if the plea or debate be'made before the mayor of the staple, betwixt the mer<
chants or ministbrs ofthe-same, and thereupon to try thereof the truth an inquest on proof is
to .be tdken, we will that if the one" partg' and the other be a stranger, it shall be tried hy
strangers; and if the oneparty and the other be denizens, it shall be tried by demizens; ‘ah
if the.one party be dénizens and-the other an alien, the one-half of the hique'st"shal‘l’bq'd
denizens and-the other ‘half of aliens.” - The statute applied, then, only to' the .case wheré
the parties were.sele plaintiff or defenidant, and did not’ contemplate mixed plaintiffs or'de-
feadants The next statute, that to which his learned friend referred, the 28 Edwsard 3.,
¢. 18, followed the:same reasontng ; 'it' wasboth in French and English, and it'was impbtf.g
ant4o them that in the French the word which in the English was translated « amonﬂ:'é
was enire, or “ betweon” dliens andl denizes, being the constructivn put upon it in Bart’s
The:wbrd “depizen ” clearly meant' not merely a denizen by letters patent, but by birt‘)y,_jﬁ
person residing within and holding allegiance within the United Kingdond, and that was so Jaid-
down in e’s *“ Abrid t.”  If, then, thiey had an alien plaintiff and " ‘defendap|
the stataute: was mot sppgzz?w The ‘issue. must be between an alfen plai ;
defendant, or an alien defendant and a denizen plaintiff only;’ but either
the jary.de medietate linpuc, and that was the meunitig of ‘the p ‘in Chif
by hid learned: friend. - The statute of Edward IIT. was, moréov ,"n‘%)eded, by v
1V, emcept so far ‘as the provisions were re-énacted by tlie 47th section,’ in which the
word “denizen” did not oecur. Again, it was a niistake to suppose, that, from’the term
de medietate tingue, half of the jury must be persons fiom the same countty as the prisoner;
it wag-sufficient if they were foreigners. The guestion, then, upon the Jury Act was, whether
the rightto:havd a jury de medietate lngux was a personal right, or the right of statius only"
His learned friend said there wus nothing about jury in the statute of Victoria, and that tHe
privilegesdin question could not be taken away by statute ;- but what was given b{ statuts,
comdd «be taken ‘away by statute,and there were many cises in Which persons wete d*prived of
certain- rights by act of-Parliamenit, without reférence’being made te those rightd. “Tn thig.
case} 100, the enattment by the:¥6th siction was clear, that an alien married td a hat: ¢ -boydl
subjectshould bé deemed-and taken to be hersélf haturalized, and should have qﬂﬁg
m enjoyed by a-mnatufal-born subﬁct.‘" “There was no “uhlification-—it Wak'
] %0 all intents -and - putpores. ' Thi quéation then was, wheftier a persin
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ralized was analien ? In Comyn’s “ Digest,” under the title “ Who isnot an alien,” he found
this for which the authority of Lord Coke was quoted :— If an alien is naturalized,
he n‘:ﬁ be, to all intents, a natural subject, gnd shall take an inheritance -as if bomn in the
ﬂpg’s sllegiance.” That was an answer to the question, “ Who is not an alien?” Andan

en only was entitled to the benefit of the 47th section in the act of George IV. He would
only refer to one other matter to which his learned friend adverted—that it was enough for a
party to allege his allegiance, to be entitled to a jury de medistate lingua. S :

e Lord Chief Baron intimated that there was nothing in that point,

Mr. Baron Platt said Mr. Ballantine had referred tothe words in the 16th section, “and have
ofl the rights and privileges of a natural-born subject;” and perhaps the learned Attorney-
General would explain why, if his argument were correct, thuse words were added to the
words “shall be deemed and taken to be of herself naturalised.”

(ATlhe ,Ii]osd Chief Baron thought the same question might be asked of all modern statutes.
augh. ) . :

Mr. Justice Cresswellsaid they might have been introduced to prevent confusion as to the wife
being naturalized or having the same privileges as her husband.

The Attorney-General submitted, that acts of Parliament must be construed according to
the words used. The words in question might have been added for greater cantion, and, so
far from weakening his argument, they only strengthened it. In conclusion he submitted
that the conviction was right, and that the prisoner was not entitled to a trial by jury de me-

dietate li ,

Mr. mﬁne, in reply, contended, that, as a natural-born subject could not get rid of his
allegiance, 50 an alien could not get rid of his allegiance to the country of his birth, and that
he ought not to be deprived of any privilege incident to his state of alienage. With respect
to Barre’s case, he observed that the prayer was made after issue was joined, which might
po'sibl{ be the ground upon which the case was decided. . . )

The learned Judges then retired, and were absent for abont half an hour. On their return,

Lotd Chief Justice Wilde delivered the judgment of the Court. He said he need hardly
say, that from the time this case came from the Central Criminal Court into thé hands of the
Judges, it had received their anxious attention ; who, although not for the purpose of forming
an opjhion, had {et paid considerable attention to it, in order to Etepm tl‘:em to appreciate
the arguments they would hear, and be the better able to apply those -arguments to the facts
of the case, Each'and all of them having considered the matter beforeband, and having
attended to what he thought the able arionmentn that had been urged on the part of the
prisorer by Mr. Ballantine, who he (the Lord Chief Justice) thought had omitted no(hin‘s
that talont and ipgenuity could bring to bear om the snl&ecf, they were unanimousl

nion that the objection could not be sustained, and that the * was properly trietr
the jury which was empanelled on the recent occasion. = It ap) to all'the Judges—and
he was warranted in expressing that opinion—that it was unnecessary, for the purposes .of a
{ust_‘md proper conclusion on the question submitted tg them, to enter into many of the topics
ntroduced in the course of the argument. The question was simply—Was the prisoner, Mrs.
Manning, an alien or not at the time of this trial? If she was, she would be entitled to that
which she prayed—to be tried by a jury de medictate lingue. If she was a British subject,
she was not so entitled. Now, the effect of a bill of naturalisation had not been questioned,
sod one could hardly expect it should be, for the authority of text writers was so clear, so -
uniform, and 8o consistent, that one would not expect an advocate of the ability and learning
of Mr. Bullantine, who supported the case of the prisoner, would question it. By Lord Coke, b:
Lord Bacon, by Sir Matthew Hale, and by every text writer, in all the editions of « Blackstone
by the various learned editors, it was & proposition universally ;doghu:l, that a person natu-
ralised became to all intents and purposes a British-born subject. t proposition was not
at all impugned, nor its correctness in any degree impeached, by the circumstance that, in
naturalisation acts of Parliament, certain disqualifications were introduced ; because
it was competent for the Legislature to impose disqualifications individually on
British subjects ‘which did not "generally apply to the subject of the country.
The Royal 'Marriage Acts im disqﬁ:]iﬁcauons in regard to marriage on Bri-
tish subjects: and various other acts of Parliament disqualified subjects in particular situa-
tions from holding certain offices and exercising certain rights. In the “ King v. Molidre
the question arose whether a naturalisation bill of the party disqualified him from performing
the office of constable. It there appeared perfectly clear that the naturalisation was not a qua-
lified naturalisation, but the party had become a British subject, and was qualified to exerci
an office of trust, which the office of constable was; but, by virtue of a disqualifying provision
in the Naturalisation Act, although the party had become a British subject, he ‘was held tobe
incapacitated for exercising the office of constable. The guestion in this case, therefore,
seemed to be, what was the status or political or civil character attaching to the prisoner at
the time of the trial? The section of the act that had been 80 much relied on in the argu-
ment stated that “the Eﬁy should be taken and deemed to be naturalised.” Then came
the inquiry, what were the circumstances, status, and political character and rights of a Bri~
tish subject? A British subject might be subject to certain disqualifications, but he (the Lord
Chief Justice) knew of no instance in which the character of an alien and a British subject
were united. ~ The disqualification imposed was not a disqualification that resulted from .
age after naturalisation by the Legislature, but was a d‘squalification imposed by the autho-
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rity of Parliament on & particular individual. If the effect of nstunﬁuﬁmgmdlgnt:uo-
fore was to make the party to all intents and purposes a British subject, as would be d in
the authorities to which he had referred, and also in the vory learned judgment in which the
whole subject was gone into, which was to be found in 1 Ventris, was there anything in this
act of Parliament which at all qualified that act of Parliament which said that “ the party
should be taken and deemed to be naturalised? ” What was the ordinary effect of every
naturalisation bill? The argument was, that this statute was to ﬁl;e certain rights,
and not to take them away. The argument that had been urged in the present case
might be urged in every case of naturalisation, because in none of those cases was
it said that it was intended to operate on the trial by jury, but that it waa
intended to give certain specified hta,. Not at all ; but rather that, by
the naturalisation, the party be, an sheuld be taken and deemed to be, a
British subject. What did it give ? It gave all that belonged to the cliaracter
of a British subject. What did it take away? It took away all that did not belong to a
British subject, for it made the naturalised party ipso facto a British subject to all intents and
pu . The argument attempted to be g:wn in this case from the other of the act
of Parliament appeared to be, that a woman married to & husband naturalised in a particular
way might, by the construction contended for en the part of the Crown, acquire a different
status, and be entitled to different rights beyond those which her husband was entitled to.
Very likely. If the husband had been naturalised, subjoct to certain disqualifications applied.
to him by the legislative authority, he was not less a British subject becausé he was under
these disqualifications; but that could not be takeu to qualify a distinct substantive enact-
ment that the wife should be naturalised without regard to such disqualification at all. ' The
section mhlch that depended was in fneral terms, that the party shonld be deeraed to
be naturalised and have all the rights of a British subject ; and it surely was not & correct con-
struction to take words intended to enlarge the operation of the act, and argue that they were
elsewhere used with the intention of restriction. That was not a just conclusion, for those
words were introduced in pursuance of a general practice adof‘teed by the ordinary phraseology
which belonged to 1 ive grants. The intention of the Legislature in every act of Par-
liament was to be col not by travellinﬁeout of the act, but from looking to the whole of .
the act itself; and it appeared to him that the general intention of the Legislature in this act:
of Victoria was to' make the woman a British sabject ; and he found no words, from the begin-
ning to the end of this act of Parliament, which would at all warrant any conclasion - that it:
was intended to oi)emtze at all by enlarging or limitinglall that belonged to the statis of a.
British subject. 1t no more [referred to the Ju:{ Act than every naturalisation bill referred:
to the Jury Act. With respect, therefore, to the prisoner, they eould discover no intention.
whatever in this act of Parliament, more or Iess, than to make her a British sug’eet; and, if:
that were s0, the whole question was at an end, and she was not an alien at the: she was:
tried; and, being a British subject, she wad not. entitled to a jury such as she claimed. It:
did not seem necessary to refer to the other points which had been noticed. The Judges
limited their view to the construction of the statute of Victoria as combined with the former
acts; and were of opinion that the prisoner, by that statute, became a British subject, with
all the incidents that attached to that statxs, and that therefore she was not entitled fo a jary
de medictate Kngue, but had been properly tried, and that thére was no ground for the objection.
This decision destroys any hope that Thight have been entertained by the relatives of Mrs
Manning that she might evade the sentence of the law. , .. o S

THE CONDEMNED MURDERESS. R
Shortly after the decision of the Judges was known as to the reserved point, information
was forwarded to the Governor and Chaplain of Horsemonger-lane Gaol, so that Maria Man-
ning might be made acquainted with the fact, as she had, since her condemnation, confidently
relied on being successful, which had materially buoyed up her spirits. These functionaries
accordingly had an interview with her in her cell, and the rev. Chaplain -inforined her that“
she must prepare herself to meet her Maker, as the sentence pronounced upon her by the-
Judge at her trial would be carried into effect on the Tuesday inorning next. -8he seemed éx--
tremely surprised at the announcement, and exclaimed that she had been unjustly triéd and
convicted, which her unfeeling husband could prove. He could unravel the whole-of the cir- *
cumstances relative to the murder, and if he told the truth it would excnlpate her from any
K:rniciplhon' in the dreadful crime. She scemed rather excited at first, but afterwards pat
hands to her face and cried bitterly. The Chaplain exhorted her to employ the few re-
maining hours she had to live in prayer and repentance, and implored her to make 4 fall con-
fession of the crime for which she was convicted. She asserted that she was not the party who
committed the murder, and she had nothing to confess. .° . -~ e T
Her husband several times expressed his anxiety to sse her, which was communicated to
her. He still continued in a very depressed state, eating hardly anything, although everythin
he wished for consistent. with the regulations of the gaol was afforded him. He occupi
all his time in rndinﬁ religious works and writing. ) e
The authorities of Horsemonger-lane Gaol, fearing that Maria Manning might do sotae-
violence to herself after hearing her fats on Wednesday mominﬁ,.;hoxfht it advisable to have
an extra woman in attendance upon her. Accordingly, Mrs. Randall, the female searcher of
the Sonthwark police-station, was sent for that night to assist the two other women in watch -



6
[P b w ezt G et T P L N IS S O I ) I )

z Her.. MB%M tenided upori, her during the several lengthy examipations at the
bjjce-cqurt, dnd fﬁ'l&ﬁﬁngmm d v mnl:g attachedptoher.v - As_soon as she was in-
roduced fo her in' the cell, she seemed much please:l.and conversed freely with her on several
h%ecta.; The unfortunate waman still asgerted that she was innocent, and wguld net be executed,
ah some influential ladies would intercede for her in high quarters. On Tugsday: (the 6th)
she wiote two letters, and beliéved that the contents would have the effect of.saying hierlifs. On
Being told that her legal advisers had: done all they could far her, she stamped har foot on the.
floor, and exclaimed in a violent manner, “Done all they .could!, Why, they have:done
Bothing ; they and everybody else in the court decided ujon hanging me befure ] wasitried.”
In dlluding to her husband, & few minutes afterwards, she said, “ Ab, be is 8 vagabpud. I
never said anything about him.- He knows. who murdered poor O’Connory. and gan felt all??
8he still réfused all religious consolation, and paid, little attentjon to the/Rev.Mr. Roe, the
chaptdin. She was visited by a charitable.lady, who attempted o ipstil into her mind
mayful Pogition in which she stood, end implored her.to offer up prayers to hex Makers
ut she listened with a deaf ear, and as soon as the lady had lgft the cgll she entered into-
coitversation with her atténdants, 38 unconcernedly as if_she was free from crime. - She ate
eartily, and slept well, but if any of her attendants would, conversa with her;all night she
wanld sit up and join them. Upon some allusion to her attorney (Mr, Solemon) and sha

conpsel who defended her, she became much excited, and; .clenching: hen fists, exclaimedy

“()h, if I only had them here I'd serve them out.. They might bave got ma acquitted if they.

higd’ done their duty.” . She, however, seemed confident that she would be set at liberty, and-
liad no idea that the sentence of the law would be carried info effect. o -

' MANNING’S LAST INTERVIEW WITH HI§ SOLICITOE..
« Un Friday morninig (ths 9th), at the special request of Manning, Mr. Binns, his Kolicitot

veaited upon Litm in this cordemned cell in Horsemonger-lane Gaol. ~The intérview took place
in the presence of the Hev. Mr. Roe, the chaplain ; Mr. Keene, the' governor; and two tumn-

keys. " He 'was i much-better spirits than on the day preceding, and as soon as Mr. Binns'
entered -his. ‘cell he shook hands with him cordially, aud thanked him for his kindness, ,gs,
told him he was quite prepared to mest hisunhappy faté, and could die happy if his wife’

would " only tell the ‘truth. He informed Mr. Binns that he took with him some railway
shares to Jersest, which’ he,delm-oﬁd in & water-closet before his apprehension, a description
of which -he' handed him -for the benefit of O’Connor's family. They will, it Ig ::gpose’d, be

restored by the esmpatiies who issued them. This will clearly show that,the murdered nfan
of arable ’pr‘m in railway shares, which were nseless to any oné except’
w

was possessed ¢
the vesl owner, - On’'being ask: ere the crowbar was, he stated that it could be found a¢
arcortain wailway station (naming the place). He directed Mr. Binns to dispose of all his

mpetty, and; after paying all demands for ‘légal expenses, to hand over the surplus to his

r Edmusd. *Priot to Mr. Binns leaving him, he handed hith the following letters,
giving him permission to publish them if he pteased : — ) o o
IR R A A T . :l..,v o B ,,'., '. ..) a e o ‘
CORRESPONDENCE BETWEEN ' MANNING AND HIS “WIFE.
e : . .MANNING TO HIS: WIFE. A .
«T address you as a fellow-sinner and-a fellow-sufferer, and not as my ‘wife, since the
contract must be considered as cqncalled, rexvtmding, a8 it does, only until death, and not
beyond it, and both of dsstanding; &s we do, on the brink of eternity. We may already
ider onrschves as cut, off from the world. - The consciousness of this truth dees not, how-
evex, prevent me from expressing my earnest solicitude for the happiness o zcm soudas well'

ap;my own. 1 do, th beseech and implore of you to be trathful in -all you utter; and-
that you may not be tempted to yield to any evil suggestions of -the enemy .of our soul’s:

welfare to question fon an instant the ‘solemn trath that we shall shortly: appear befe¥é our
God: in judgment-r-thas his eye is.apon us now. The time, though not, 50 far as' I can learn,
P!Wmﬁxedv;lhe&we,m to be launched into’ eternity, but. we may be quite sure' and
Certajm that it:is close-athand. And now, by all kindly Yeelings we have at time enter-
taimed tpwards each other, I earnestly pray thatiyou will look to (God for the parden. you need,
and of whioh. I fegl my own' need-aldo, beliavé me, through the:merits of a crucified mer;

being satisfied that his -albsnfficiens atonement and intercession cannot benefit- us wiess e :

repent, and give proofs of that repentance. Believe me, I upbraid you not, but trust you will
e assared thes 1 forgive every.one, as I pray and hops to be forgiver by God; and now I
close, as my foelings are too: aoute itowrite more. May the Lord be merciful, and may He'be
80 consistent with his promises. Let us be truthful and sincere in all we' say and do. This
isshe last lotter you will ever receive-from me.. Now let me beg of ‘to 'imt mé an
interview. this day, if possible: I have a great wish to have one before d?art is world. - -
IR N it B . [ e ’ ) “ e G. MANI’!!!‘G.” .
“Written on the 29th of October, 1849, in the condemmed cell, Horsemoénger-lane Gaol.—
Feamoerick G, Manxme.” . . . : : ’

o i o LA SANNING O TR HUSBAND. o ool o
‘1 address you as my husband.. 1antfar away from my happy native land, en,aeaount of
contract :'nd this T:nd, which you have made to me a captivity. The peace and well-
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. ‘.

R A R IR oo, s . .
fiig 6f society; the Hwiiol trijth, wh%h you %ave biokert, have altke dethandsl my banish-
Jiént, from the couritry which gave me birfh. ' But I am not going away from God ; He'il
eryihere alike pregtnt, and at all times gracious to those that seek his mércy and his
vour.  What has brotght me ioto this eternal consequence? If you live ard die unforgiven
God, though those sihs will Be punistied by the laws of man, they are still all registered
y the only God; Allthat 1have to say is this—I never made any statement of any kind to
ire of, tondénin you in, this matter—that you well know—from first to last. I am here
cyndernned ﬂﬁby youf statement. If it had proved beneficial to you, I should have been
#atisfied with' dlk-yoiir do%s; and tle gﬂﬁt expense of your learried counsellors, that did not
anbftt you, bt phinged me unetcifully with you to this horrid fate. Al I have to beg of
o ngw 15,£3 state facts ; as y6il know that T was riot in-the house when O'Connor met with
bis death ; butT was 'gpe';% stlp for him; and during that time he called, in my gbsence, and
W ‘sljot’.ﬁj"thdt younp man from Guerngey who was with dyou in the back parlour smokitig ;
buy, that I did not know anything about it until the Saturday, and that it was all settled 1h
e Mitchewr,” I'was i Wopes that you would hiye brought thit youngiman forward or the
fridl; dut that foh did not do, but only Blang me, 48 you did, from the first day. . But, my
qu;;(ux,youhﬁy‘l?ﬁb# thit you c'n;iibp save yourself, I implore of you to state the facts,
which are trijth] atid endéabonr to sl?(v‘e“your wife. 7 36 doing, it would be satisfaction to

your own Hoart afid Eoul, to Xnow tHat y&ﬁ are doing right and good towards me before ybu

degqn, fegth this’ world “THe Lord God will’ forgive you and comfort you.. Believe mid,
fipbrhid you tiot, bat trist ybu will be assared that' I furigive ybu, and every one, as I pray
and hope I mav be forgiven by God. If you comply with this true statement, I shall be

happy to lay... My hope and life i3, ig your hands. You.can, if you
will?Zave ca{ﬁét a)nswgre forour’ silgi n frén'w'greésions,' when all our
saqret gin: sht of bjs.countenance, and when the wicked who carelesply
nggd-dt:‘dn; ut the fear oy favour of God, shall doubtless perish everlagt-
ulz]g‘}ly R mscience shall proclaim a failing heart, and an angry judge
shall poip

bl T.humuwy 1vus b suve, o aord, | Thou hast set forth asa [;iopi{iation for the rexﬂiéqipu of
ips that are payt, through ’i:i)y forbearance. I cannot write any longen = God bless you, and
bave mercy on us both. . .. .. S . .

;‘) R:geived by F. g Marning on the 30th of O%tc]wlber, 18&{12.” Fdmundcis th
+ Onjthe yamd days Matisig BRAUN interview with his beother Edmundisi the preseride of
the Rev. Mr. Roe,”the chaplain of the gaol ; M&eene, the governor; and the o cer?{)f the
gol appointed to be c6h££n with-him. . Manning wak seafed in the condemned cell, at a
small table, and so altered and mentally prostrated that his brother scarcely knew him. He
#hook hith Yérvéntly by the band, ard held his hand in his grasp for some ntomlents; duiring
#hichtime nefther was-ablé to utter a word. - - : . o -
‘i AW length: the brother said, *Surel, Fredetick, you are mot guilty of tiis horvible
ehhrge?” Mauning immediately replied, “No, I am innocent. - I htive fold:Mr. Roé' everf-
thing. I have confessed all t6 hi,  Have I noty Mkl Rée? (Mr. Roe nodded assent ) Edd
hh_mﬁ;‘ ( Tivas up-stairs dressiag myself at the time shy-shot him.  THid
116t Kmow v do s6. I hadno hand:in-the murder. Mr. Roe kvows 1 am_in-
hveent” » assert his innocence:with much vehemence, affd-fidded, in congse-
gluénee of s brother havihg asked:him if he hud not' written to his wife urgitg her tomake 4
1}-confedsion, « Yes, and I have authorized you, Mr. Roe, have I not? over and over ariri;
oA her tosee'me, becauge I'eonld put suth-qudations to' Her that she could net - evade!
MY: Roe replied that he'liad dofté as hié said, Unt that shehad déclined to see hini;: Marintng
i Liandéd to his brother'a’ opy of'the letter given above. ST
'~ Mbinhing’s brothier, aftér Be Hadl perused the'letters, exolainted; « Frederick, she excubphites
nme‘ffoﬁ the charge, and acchses a:third party; wlhio does she mean?” He replied, « Her
atenient is: a!tbgetﬁ'e’r fAlsé ; no one atcompanied me to Jerdey. I know, Edmiwhd; }‘(m'wﬂl
believe me when I asgert that I am innocent, for you have always been my best friend; and I'
#lfould riever liave married that yoman if I'had listeried to yodr adviee.” ™~ .. . o
- After ailong pause the protHér urgéd- his unhappy relative to miake his peace-With!God;
hb woild receivé his'soul'if he was! as He -shid, intocent of the awful crime. Ho imitedi-
ately xclained dgain, ¢ My dear Ednlund; T am innocent,: as'Mr. Roe knows perfettfy well.-
Fhope God AMtighty will commit mry'soul to hell flames if-1 amt guilty of this murdefii Mk
Roe is in-%; 6 of the whole of my statement. I have told him ‘all. - I décldre mhist
;d:d nly'tHatT sRall 31¢ innocent of M O’Connor’s murder. I mever hurt a hair of his-
iead.” ¢ . Lo K . . . . ', .
= Thigse 1tters; and someé dlsclosures which it is said Manning offered‘to thake with referenée
§6'some robberies in which he had Been concerned, were made the ground of an application’
to thd Home Secretary to frant him a respite, which was refused.

- :MANNING’S LAST - INTERVIEW WITH HIS BROTHER.

_i{t:? PORTE o e o s L L R : e )
¢ f04Y o'cloc on,Sat) v afternoon (the 10th), thie conviet’s brother, Edmund Mannin
iég‘ @%&ﬁ“ﬁ% y’ﬁgql'%ve of the '\yr’ett:hed mhn. He “'a’s,fntroddped to ¢ 4
dentire 3 'and' MF Kecne, the governor. On:observing his brother entér,
the convict rose, and advancing towards him, said, “ How do you do, Edmund? I am glad

“ M. MANNING.”
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to see you.” In reply to his brother’s inquiries, he said that he felt perfectly I::ﬁpy and re-

ed to his fate. -He added that he slept well, and was not at disturbed
during the night, in Eroof of which he appealed to the turnkeys in attendance upon him.
He asked his brother if he had seen Mr. Binns, and whether he was aware of
the unfavourable result which had attended the applications made in his favour to
the Home Secretary. He then told his brother that he had written another letter to his
wife, solicitins an interview, but he feared she was as hardened as ever, and would not
urant it. Referring to the subject of the murder, he produced a pencil sketch of the back
kitchen, showing the postion of O'Connor's body when (as he alleges) he first saw it.
He took evpecial care to explain this sketch to his brother, and evinced great anxiety to
satisfy him th.t he was not a participator in the actual murder. After some other conversa-
tien. he reauested. his brother to give his love and l1st bleasing to bis relative., especially the
sister who. visited him on the previous Tuesday, after whom he inquired most par-
ticularly. He also desired his respects to his former master, Mr Reeves, a coach-builder, of
Taunton. and requested that his best thanks should be given to that gentleman for all his
kinduess to him when a boy. His brother being about to leave, Manning requested Mr. Roe
to offer up n prayer before they pa.ted, which the reverend chaplain did in a very impressive
mnner, #ll present kneeling and joining in this act of devotion. After. the chaplain had
concluded the praver, his brother asked him if he should come and see him again. Maunning
replied that he thought it would be of no use for him to do so; in fact, he would rather that
he did not. The final separation then took place, the convict remarking to his brother that
ll:: was onlﬁl going a short time before him, and hoped he should meet him in ancther and &

tter wor

MARIA MANNING'S APPEAL TO HER MAJESTY.

On Mondsay, November 5, the female convict drew up a memorial to the Queen, imploring
her Majesty to save her from the scaffuld, and reiterated her mnnocence of O’Connor’s death.
This memoria) she enclosed in a let:er addressed to the Duchess of Sutherland, in which her
Grace was asked to lay it before the Queen. The letter was duly posted, it appears, but, being
unpaid, was rejeeted on presentation at Stafford House, and on the Saturday it was opened
. e conrse at the Dead Letter Office, in St. Martin’s-le-Grand. The wretched woman,
impatient «f a reply, bad written on the pievious day to Sir George Grey, requesting his
interce sion. .

PREPARATIONS FOR WITNESSING THE EXECUTION—THE
PRISON LOCALITY DE-~CRIBED.

If 1t would be superfluous to describe the exterior of Newgate at the spot where executions
for capital crimes take place, it is not so respecting the exterior of Horsemonger-lane Prison,
for, being situated in a remote district orfafaondon, beyond the Thames, and almost in one of
the southern suburbs, its precise locality is by no means generally known amongst the
hundreds of thousands dwelling on the Middlesex side of the river. .

The great thoroughfare'leading through the borough of Southwark from London Bridge to
the Elephant and Chstle begins on the north side with High-street, which terminates at St.
George’s Church, and then the line is taken up by Blackman-street, which runs southward
as fur as the Borough-road. Almost at the east end of this is the Queen’s Prison, an edifice,
we fancy, pretty generally known. The road abuts on the. top of Blackman-street, or at
Stone’s End. Almost opp-site the spot on which it abuts is Horsemonger-lane, a narrow
street, leading to the area in which the prison and its outward walls are situated. Man,
persons confound the Surrey Sessions court, which is built in a court-yard, a little higher
on the left than the southern ending of Blackman street. Before one arrives at this judi
edifice. if coming from London Bridge, he must take the first.turning before it, and advancing
:;stwur(ll.e down Horsemonger-lane, for about 150 yards, he will find himself in front of

e 4aol

It is comparatively a small one. It forms an irregular square, of greater length than
width. The roof would be flat, were it not for several large lanthorns or skylights projecting
upwards from it. There was a general notion abroad that it was on the summit of this roof that

e gibbet for the execution of the Mannings would be erected. This was not the case.
The prison is, surrounded by an outward wall, separated from the building by the
yards. In the middle of the outward wall that bounds the prison on the north or London
side is erected the entrance-lodge, a small square edifice, about thirt{-ﬁve or forty feet high.
Its roof was once perfectly flat; but since the original erection, a low small, square tower
bas b en raised in the middle of it. On this roof, at its western end, between the tower and
a stack of chimneys at the extreme western end of the tower, the scaffold was erected. The
scaffold, with its suspens-on-beam, was several feet higher than the tower.The faces of the cul-
prits were turned to the north, towards Londor.

The ntrance, or reception lodge, is built over the gateway lesding into the prison
On stepping throug" the gate, immediately on the right, is a doorway leading to the clerks’
offices; tiiese are in the right wing of the lodge, and immedinelg‘om them the condemned
were executed. Theleft wing of thelodge contains the rooms and baths to which the prisoners
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are introduced before they are received into the body of the prison. 1t isby a door in the left
wing, leading inta the yard, and by ta of steps leading from this door to the roof of the
lodge that the prisoners ascended to the spot on which, in pursuance of the sentence of the
1aw, the culprits had to fortfeit, for their unparalleled crimes, the breath which gave them life.
Th';{ were led from the chapel to the lodge, and in their progress had to pass by their graves.
. The prison and its roof are higher than the summit of the lodge, and shut out on the
south side all view of the execution, which could not be seen except from the area and houses
frongmg the prison wall and lodge on the north side. This area is very wide, the thoroughfare
portion of it on the prisen side extendin&in width forty feet or more, and in length beyond
either end of the prison wall. On theother side of the thoraughfare, opposite to, and parallel
with the prison wall, is a long row of gardens about as wide.gnd as long as the thorougnfare
at this end, looking towards the prison, is built & new row of houses. e gardens are fenced
by slight and low iron rails, and within them are planted several stunted poplars. The
windows and roofs of this row of houses, called Winter-terrace, were let to spectators.
.For a place at the windows of the houses directly in front ef the prison entrance-lodge the
sum demanded was £1. In the gardens in front of some of the houses of Winter-terrace
-were elevated a succession of seats, like thosc one sees 1n front of the lesser.booths on Epsom
Race-course. The price for these seats was five shillings a head. They were not erected b(
the owners of the houses, but by parties wio rented the ground for the occasion, paying, -
ing to the extent of the superfices, from £20 to £7 for their temporary holding. The specu-
lators were chiefly costermongers and the lowest frequenters of the prize ring. At each end of
the area, already described, is a large public-honse. That on the west end is called the Ma-
sons’ Arms, and from it a close view could be obtained of the scaffold. In front of it, reaching
up to the first floor, is a wide terrace, and the charge for a place on it was £2. This house is
situated at the end of Swan-street, which abuts on the area fronting the prison, and outhouse
premises belonging to the inn run down the left side of the street, and here were erected high
and long scaffoldings with seats, with awnings over them, the price of each being half-a-
guinea. From the roof; of mearly all the houses in Swan-street the execution could be wit-
nessed. At the east end of the area is another public-house, the Albion, with an extensive
frontage in the direction of the prison entrance lodge, and upon and around this frontage was
erected an amphitheatre, seats in which were charged at 5s. each. There are several othér
streets, from the houses of which the place of execution could be seen at a distance. From
the tops of the houses in Bridge House- place, Stone’s End, and from the- tope of some of the
houses in Blackman-street a distant view could also be obtain«d of the awful exhibition.

A portion of the area next to the pri-on wall was barricaded off from the ordinary thorough-
fare, to prevent the crowd from congregating close beneath the entrance lodge, and under the
scaffold. Within this fence were also stationed a 1 body of police. -

The place in front of Horsemonger-lane Gaol wa::%euring the whole of Saturday (the 10th)
largely frequented by persons who were anxious to-witness the locality which could excite so
much attention on Tuesday. At times the largeuuca fronting the building had the appear-
ance of a fair, and the public-houses in the neighbourhood were crowded to an extent they
had never known before. The work of erecting scaffolds, whence could be commanded a near
view of the execution, was being busily ed with during the greater part of the day.
The prices- dharged for permission to view the tragedy varied, of course, with the sitnation.
In a good many of the windows of the opposite and adjoining houses the words were to be
seen in prominent characters—“To Let.” - -,

Much speculation was indulged in by the crowds assembled as to whether the two convicts
would he brought out for execution at the same time, and as to which of the two would be
gxecuted first. It was stated by some of the parties connected with the prison that an
interval of an hour would take place between the execution of the prisoners. It was also
mentioned that the one would be brought out at eight in the morning and the other at nine.
Great disappointment was expressed at;this by the pop: , because the spectacle, according
to their views, would lose much of its interest if ggth parties were not brought out at the
same time. - | . .

In the afternoon of Saturday, Nov. 10, the Rev. Mr. Roe, the ch?lain of 'Horsemonger-
lane Gaol, waited upon Mr. Secker at the Southwark police-court, and informed him of the
state of Horsemonger-lane, especially that part facing the gaol. He statéd to the .m¥lshaw
that pearly all the inhabitants had nmesa a number of slender scaffold-poles in front of
their houses, to which they bad tied side pieces, and placed planks over them, for the pur-
poseof accommodating persons to witness tﬁe awful spectacle on Tyesday morning. He was

certain, from the manner in which these platforms were erected, that some serious accident
would occur, unless the msgistrate at that court interfered. So gredt was the curiosity
of the public, that many persons had paid as much as a guinea to witness the execution;
and other places were gublicly let 80 low as half a crown. In fact, the state of Horse-
menger-lane was of so disgusting a nature, that he hoped the magistrate would exercise his
authority, and order the stands to be pulled down. ) o
Mr. ker asked the reverend gentleman whether the stands were erected on public

g |
r. Roe replied in the negative. The houses in front of the gaol had long gardens, and
the occupiers of them bad erected the_stands for gain. .

. Mr. Secker said that if such was the case he conld not interfere, He was, however, sorry
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to heai Mn} ble should eét in‘ench Ldiagmﬁng mdnc Ho hopedme public
would have more mgam:r morsfls, and nat patronise sueh people: -

. Mr. Roe observed that if accidents of & fatal nsture occarred in any of tliose places, woul&
vnobtheownenbelmblowbemd:md for manslaughter? @ . ..

- Mr, Secker replied that he had no doubt they would: He, homer, lioped t»he pnblic would
*not en r their lives to witness the executien of their fellow-ereatures. - -

Mr. Secker. said he h:lt‘dno:z‘:gto dohw:ut their pﬂval:: .hm w!;w;s dated wme
mMgpmjocMon e pul o:tfpn;eomequn [ er it to be: rem
Guest was ordered to tako a number of constables with to removethe wuisance.

. During the whole of Batuirdeya wumber of applications were made:-to Mesers. Abbotﬂ tﬁe
Under-Sheriffs, for admission inte the’chapet of the gaol on Sunday, te hear thie conde!
u#mon.w'!"?e Secretary of States” ordera were so perempfmy, tlue to- ‘attention could be
-to any them. .
, afternoon & Roman - Cathoko prelm from Taun(xm had - juterviews wlth
both ynionera. Mo had -known them while living at that place, and- hearing of Mrs.

Igh stabbern éonduct, he felt an anxiety to see-her; and endeavour to soften h
heart. e paid 1o attention to his remarke, and was-rather rough in.her manner tow:
-Trim. - Thie tev. guﬁemau afterwards -visited the male convict; who seemed pleaged to ses
him, ‘but refaed an'j' tel!g!ous consolauon at hxs hand& .
S L C’y (1')!

- MANNING’S LAST APPEAL TO HIS WIFE
i The m.ch ‘plnnofthg yolv ,Mannmg atan wly bquxonFndsymnmog (the ch),for

the WW: the wretched man all the canselation in bis | .. Manpiggreceived
the rev. gentlemap’s exhortations in.a very becoming, mannsr, and unng them&e:vmg
considerably; to t-be statwgnt be prevw mag te Mr. Roe pu tha subjegt of theapur-

dar. 'I;hlp m;gatgymt. wh}c‘lz’ 5ot be e p{:blm uut&:cfmr ;:q death of. 7t;e coaviet,
avers twenty-five pages of faelscap, paper. exal qircusstances. of a, very, exfraopdinary
pature are duplosed in, this doﬁngw. Durm&he canyictls interview. with' she ahaplain be
l%ﬂn .urged the rey. gentlsman u;e his. utmoat. endesyours- tomxa hig: wifs 40, see him,
ich Mr. Ros propused $o do, ,, At & later hous, he addressed the followmg letter to the
chaplain, rmerat.mg his uqnest on this. subjoct..—- E; IR A
TS P AP R AN o1 RIWAR ; avening i
., “ My DEAR, ik, Feeling ah earuspi desize f.be at; ‘pesce with sl nfmd‘mt.hf. sy /wife
it partieujar, befora the,clou of our.earthly coussey,.which.is.sa s, Ay 1
ask it of you as an act of kindness ¢0 lagan from her. whathgswmmwm nw mkﬂ BPlacs,
unt is truly ##ful o cantemplate the. wickednsss .of any anp who shall enter the, presepee—
pteﬁenee nﬂ God without being af with all men.. As such,an; uesview: wonldn d
“‘g‘a ring peace.qnd, aomm ws both jn, the next world, Sg, in the name
odrlet me mplm of yoia to: ask ber to gunt this last., uat for, the sake of her poor
soul. Sir, if you could venture to do th:q for nmi 1. hope you, w prowou i ;
- “ t?mam. my. deay, sir, YOS obeduptlyw
. “TheRewWSBoe,Chaplam. . w4 FREDERICK AEORGE MANNING
- This lotter was. handed te the female canwict the, same, night by Mr. Roe, b it had ;o
eﬂ‘ect, asshe persisted in her refusal to grant her husband an: interview upless, heﬁiﬁtcommwi
himself to the version of the gircamstances setforgh in har reply,to a previousJettere.
" M. Biuns, the solieitox,had an interview with Manning on Friday, momms Lthe. Q&h):md
Ty i o e e
pin 180 13 Sycgess ;. an e le
that all tho means wfuclf had been tried hadsﬁukd hge:ppeared greatly dispirited.

THE CONDEMNED $ERifON.

d his wnfe attended divine ica in the c] of Horsemonger-lafte Gab oh

Spmfdv for ‘ﬁe lask timé, when the Rev. W. 8. Roe, ¢k thﬁ i)rf preache t

ver  impressive sermon, in the course of which he mzde ﬁusmn to, the
unhappy criminals, and’ exhotted them, by all their h qpes of mtgrcy hexea , to. un%

thext consclencep and * truthfully , confess the enormity . ’of wh cﬁ
jeen conde ne The usual Qemce of the prison « chépel commences at 9 o’cl
in the mornin, and there was no deviation from the rale an (flls gtéasion.

p oners un d;zebt.m-s confined in'the gaol l,mvmg entered the chape] ah& ﬁken t eﬁ-
ectwe p e con emned _prisoners were introdyced, in chargé of the qtik'e male
2nd fanale o cers apppinted,fo attend upon them. ~ The culprits were s placed that.the.one

cBuI(T not observe the other, Mantﬁn seated ‘on the male pnsone;s side, and his wife

on thé opposite side, where the'female prisoners sit. The visitors’ gallery was excluslvety
confined to the visiting justices, of whom there were séveral present.” Mr. Keene, the

Eovernor, occapied hu usnal pew. Mr. Moore, the deputy-governor, and aHl the other officers

g'f the prison, we aatten nce. The conviets g entermg the cha,ne! Iook their
hu(ll: bte:':s}:l, rg a&ly iary e&lﬁxony but b serw?& mﬁ ej; y beca 9

much distre and dar mpns of the re c 8 0! w

The usidl fiomih ¢ mg ﬁ Jﬂgm

Pprayers of the conzreguhon on beha.lf of the two convxcta. The prsyen luvmg been oen-
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cluded and a hymn sung, the rev, chaplain entgred the it .and commenced his sermon,
selecting as his text for illustration the seednd verso -65th Psalm—* O Thou that
hearest prayer, unto Thee shall all flesh come.” The rev. gentleman opened his discourse by
remarking that if all his hearers knew how short a.period axisied bétween them and-eternity,
they would each feel the neeessity of so living as to be able toassist- eachs other, and thus
eutertain a weil-grounded hope of assistance hdreafter, through the heavenly. and divine graes-
which the blessed Redeemer had .graciously thrown in the way and placed at the disposal of
all who chose to embrace it. How much mare forcibly did:this apply to their A4
brother and sister, whose days were numbered, and wha had but  afew hours  tolive.
He implored them well to consider this, and so: to conform. ‘themselves that: they might hr
to be assisted and strengthcned to meet their roaching end; and, above all, he guou t
them  to banish every thought .. of this :and fix theit -minds - upon dteanityi’
The rev. gentleman then proceeded at some length, and in a ver{‘impressive ‘anner, to point:
out-the necessity of an energetic repentance; in which the wholé -heart showid be laid. bate,
contrasting’ this, the only proper course for the Christian, with that. adopted by hypocrites
and diasemblers, whose punishment hereafter would be everlasting misery.: If thep :
their hearts, how many sins would arise ixn the consciencas:of a& for be-sure that sin would
always find a voice-in the recesses of the human heart.: ‘The rev. g-ntlenmaﬁerillumuhg
the text in a general manner, again addressed the convicts, assuring: them that their liope of
salvation depended solely upon their repentance, and besceching them:to embrace the oppor-
tunity without delay of laying their hearts open befors God, whe then invited them, sad not
to:lose one,moment of.the short period atlotted tty them for-existemee:in this world. The rev.
preacher eoncluded discourse in these words, “ God be mereitul to-you both, and to-all of us
sinners, and teach us.te look to Jesus, the sinners’ friend, as the ouly true source of absolution
for our transgressions.” . . v e

- The two convicts were decply affeeted during the delivery of the sermon; and when the
rev. preacher addressed them persorallv. thev sobbed aloud. - - -

-.On Monday Mr. A’Beckett, ¢ Southwark Police Court, wasen-
nearly the whole of the ‘romn the:pgrish authorities respects

ing the stages erected in front nd the great nuisance they cansed
to the inhabitants. The cle f pavements for the Borough and -

Dover-10ad districts was in attendancs, with the respective surveyors. : - R

: The worthy magistratey after consuiting: the several Acts of Parliament supposed te confoer -
tpo power of procaring sn abatement of tliese nuisanoes, said, that, after a mature censidéra-
tion, he was of opinion that the New Building Act; could be put irt foice: Ha should, there-
fore, recommend the authorities ta serwe notices on :the owners of those bm)d!ngs,md inform
them that unless they immediately pulled themh déwn, they would be fined £200. He thought'
the parties would soan clear the ground of such disgusting places, S

- The su:;?iyom assisted by Mr. Superintemxiens: Haynes, left the court with a number of
officars ; ina short time all the stages were.rased to the groumd.. .. -~ .. - .. [

A meeting of the visiting jus'ices was held at the gaolat 10 o’clock on Monday, in order to

make the final arrangements for-the execution. - [ETTR _ - Co
. The “drop” was finally completed: belore foir o’clock on Monday aftermoon, and the neise’ of
itg.grection must have been plainly heard by the female convict, whose cefl was situated almost
opposite. ‘We may add that it was found absolutely. necessary to barricade the windéws of
her apartment in order to prevent the possibility of her seeing the men at work. - .- L

_The noise of the multitude whick -cmdad:tie vieinity of the gaol was also distinctly-au-
dible in the cell, and from a remark which she made to one.of the turnkeys during the aftep~
noon, it was quite evident that ‘she was perfectly certain as to her fate. She observed that'
when she was brought out she would not let the mob sge her face, for she would cover it over
wish: a handkerchief. R e S

The reverend chaplain had several interviews with- the convitts.on Monday. Manning is

said to have been perfectly resigned to his fate, and said hisonly regret was that his wife shoud '
be so hardened. ‘The female culprit, on the. contrary, was greatly excited 4t her impending
doom. She refased all spiritual consolatiom; but had wrote several latters, which she desired
should be forwarded to her friends. It has been ascertained beyond a doubt that the wretched -
woman made an attempt on her life in the early part of Sunday morning: - - - - K

. : SR T .

'DISCOVERY OF THE MISSING CROWBAR... . .

R LT e G ey Bas f i doHd

A crowbar has been found, and there is very little doubt, from the appearance; that itvas °
the instrument by which 0’Conuor’s death was finally effected.. Manning’s statement that it
would be found at a railway station turns out to be parfoctly corract, for.the instrumept . was
discovered on Monday attheLewes station, on the Brighton Rail wa;',)vhere 8 parcel had-been
lyiug for gome considerable time, addressed *Mrs. Smith, Lewes,”, sud had-been pat aside
amongst other things which were expected to e called for. The pgrcel 'was carefully wrapped

in brown r, and when opened it proved to contaii & crowbar, with human haic dnd spots-.

of blood p! mnlﬁdwcqniblqupon. it. Mr. Weathqrheady & elerk.on the Bri&htm.na.ilw;g, aﬁt i

@

Brighton, on O%day with the erowbar in his poseession,  which ited . wi
authorities in' London. ' he bl
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THE EXECUTION.

. 'The last scene of this gloomy tragedy was enacted on Tuesday morning, Nov. 18, on the
roof of Horsemonger-lane Gaol, in the nce of an immense assemblage, composed, for
the most part, as we anticipated, of the filth and scum, “ the cankers of & long peace and hard
times,” with which the population of this vast metropolis is infested.

Throughout the entire of Monday, and during the evening, the street in front of the gaol,
and the various avenues leading to it, whence a glimpse of the preparations in progress for
the erection of the scaffold upon which the perpetrators of one of the most atrocious murders
contained in the annals of crime have now suffered the penalty of the law to their guilt, were
w by.a dense crowd, whose numbers, as night set in, diminished far less than might

ve been

Notwithstanding the interference of the magistrates of the district, and the efforts of the
police authorities to remove the frail platforms and scaffoldings which have been hastily
.thrown up during the last fov;bd':fu in the vicinity of the gaol, a large amount of accommo-
dation of this kind was to be ned by such as were willing to pay exorbitant sums to pro-
cure the gratification of a morbid propensity to witness, if not to gloat over, the dying strug-
gles of their fellow-creatures. The proprietors of these stands were busily and incessan
occupied throughout the night in soliciting the patronage of every decently-dressed person
whom they encountered, clamorously soliciting attention to thestrength, security, and cheapness
of their structures, and chaunting praises of the ¢splendid view ” of the scene which was to
be had from them. For two or three hours after midnight the crowd was not so dense as to

event freedom - of motion, and the gin-shops and night houses in the neighbourhood were

led to overflowing, and, doubtless, reaped a rich harvest.

In the méanwhile the masses who had determined to “rough it” sub dio, relieved the
t diam of their night-watch with rude mirth, coarse pleasantries, and the most repulsive
description of vulgar facetiousness, with speculations respecting the hour at which the execu-
cation was fixed to take place—the appearance of the culprits together or separately upon
the gallows—the chances of their being reprieved, and similar topics. Conversation, how-
ever, contributes but little to a comfortable circulation of the blood on a cold winter’s night ;
and many groups becoming aware of the fact, resolved themselves into dancing parties, and
executed quadrilles, polkas, or jigs, weordig to their respective tastes or capabilities. Nor was
the demeanour of their % betters,” who crowded the windowsand platforms, such as indicated any
sense of those grave and admonitory conceptions which, from a middle-aged idea of the ten-
dencies of human nature, our system has endeavoured to eliminate by the display of
wretched malefactors under the hands of the hangman. Shortly after six o’clock immense
numbers of persons poured from all directions into the circamscribed space in front of the
prison; and soon the screaming of women and the cries of persons upon whom the legion of
pickpockets in attendance plied their trade, gave significant tokens, both of the tremendous
pressure which began to be experienced in the crowd, and of the materials of which it was
composed. In that pressed, lw:ﬁ?d, and fluctuating multitude, there was no evidence of any
appreciatiou of the “ moral lesson” about to be inculcated—no display of any feeling beyond

at-of the excitement supplied by the hideous proofs of the law’s intended fulfilment. We
are convinced that, from that exhibition and its brutalising concomitants, few, if any, could -
have departed impressed with an increased detestation of crime, or with a deeper reverence
for the power of the law ; while, on the other hand, no small number of the spectators left
the scene more prone to, because more familiarised with, vice and the lat;guage and habits of
its votaries, and some doubtless much delighted with the facilities afforded under the gallows
for its unpunished indulgence, Several hundreds of the city and metropolitan police were
posted at the various points where the crowding was greatest, and rendered most efficient
service by occasionally distributing themselves among the mob, and on several occasions
th'e{ succeeded in extricating ns in a fainting state.

he gsrdens in front of the houses opposite the prison, and from which the.best view of
the proceedings was commanded, were occupied by persons of apparent respectability, and
amongst them we observed many well dressed females.

Shortly after seven o'clock the executioner and several assistants made their appearance
on the gallows, and minutely tested the efficiency of the apparrtus. Their appearance elicited
1o manifestation from the crowd, which at that time was in a state of unrestrained hilarity,
provoked by the efforts of several luckless individuals to escape from the tremendous pressure
which they were enduring, by scrambling over the heads of the compact mass by which they
had been surrounded. . .

Precisely at nine o'clock, after some necessary preliminary arrangements had been made by
the hangman'’s assistant, the Rev. Mr. Roe (chaplain) ascended the pletform, accompanied by
one of the sheriffs, the governor of the and executioner. As Manning ascended the ste|
leading to the drop, his limbs tottered under him, and he appeared scarcely able to move. He
first tarned his face to the east, apparently reluctant to eye the ga'ping crowds assembled to
watch his last mortal . A gleam of sunshine fell upon his features while in thig posi-
tion, and showed that the pallor of his countenance still continued. - When his wife ap-
proached the scaffold he-turmed more round, with his face towards the people, while

»
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proceeded to draw over his head the white nightcap, and to adjust the fatal rope. In the
meantime the female prisoner had reached the drop, mounting the steps which led to it with
a firm, but, owing to the bandage on her eyes, not a rapid step, and when at last placed under
the fatal beam, standing as fixed as a marble statue. The male prisoner had this time
recovered his firmness to a certain extent, and, turning to his wife, he shook hands with her
in token of a final farewell. The executioner then drew the nightcap over the female
prisoner’s head, and, all the necessary preparations having now been completed, the scaffold
was cleared of all its occupants except the two wretched beings who stood upon it, doomed
to die. The worthy chaplain of the gaol, at this last moment, still deeply solicitous for the
welfare of so great a criminal, standing on the brink of eternity without having contessed her
guilt, once more approached, and asked Mrs. Manning if she had anything that she wished to
say to him. She replied, “Nothing, but to thank you much for all your kindness.” -He
withdrew deepli disappointed ; and when he left, the husband and wife again approached each.
other, and shook hands; having done so, they finally resumed their rosutiona. In au instant
Calcraft withdrew the bolt, the drop fell, and the senterice of the law was fulfilled. They
died almost without a struggle, and the bodies having been allowed to hang for an hour,
were cut down, and in the evening buried within the Precincts of the gaol.

The mob during this terrible scene exhibited no fe:ling except one of heartless indifference
and levity. Not a sin,gle yell or cry of execration could be heard ; scarcely a hat or cap was
raised while the drop fell, and the bodies of the murderers had hardly ceased to oscillate with
the momentum [of their fall before the spectators were hurrying in large numbers from
the spot. :

Aﬁl:- hanging the usual time, the bodies were cut down, and the mob dispersed ; and thus
terminated a scene which we left convinced that no good can arise from familiarising the
populace with the revolting details of a capital punishment. :

he vicinity of Horsemonger-lane prison, and all the streets in the neighbourhood, pre-
sented a very extraordinary scene on the day preceding the execution. At an early hour in
the morning crowds of spectators, from all parts of the metropolis, began to assemble in the
locality, and before noon upwards of 10,000 persons had congregated In front of and near to
the gaol. The morbid curiosity, which had attracted them, found little, however, wherewith'
to gratify itself until after twelve o’clock, when the black timbers forming the dismal appa-’
ratus of death became visible on the summit of the prison roof, '

A number of workmen were employed at an early hour in erecting strong barricades along
the front of the prison, leaving a space of about twelve feet, to be kept clear for the officers
on duty. Barricades were also thrown up at short intervals across the main thoroughfare,
and in several of tl:e streets leading thereto, in order to lessen the pressure of the crowd, and
prevent the occurrence of accidents, ‘ ‘ e

The sale and hire of seats was carried on with great activity throughout the whole of
Monday by the occupants of the houses in Winter terrace; a row of lu:sl tenements facing
the gaol. The prices rose as the demand increased, and durini the afternoon large premiums
were offered for places in favourable situations overlooking the gallows,

MANNING'S CONFESSION.

The following is a complete account of the confession made by the male prisoner to the
Rev. Mr. Roe. He said :— : .

On or about the 15th of March I left my residence, No. 41, Castle-street, Regent-street,
for Jersey, and I remained there three weeks, and returned about the 5th of April; and,
during my absence, I found that my wife had engaged the house No. 3, Minver-place. The
landlord, Mr. Coleman, required a reference, and she referred him to Mr. O’Connor. On the
Sunday night after entering upon the house O’Connor slept there, and promised to return on
the following night, with his boxes, but did not keep his promise. On the following Thurs-
day he came and told her that he had altered his mind, as he thought that Manning and he
would not agree, as he (Manning) might one night return home drunk, and make a disturb~
ance with him. Maria Manning replied, that he (O'Connor) was no man, nor worthy of the
name, and said, that this was not the first time he had served her in this manner; that he
was the sole cause of her taking the King John’s Head, at erstone, by which £100 were
lost; that he had once before induced her to take a house in the Mile-end-road ; and that he
might depend upon this, that he should abide the consequences; stating, at the same time,
that she herself was the same as her own poor father was, who despised a man whose word
he could not depend on, and that she herself would sooner see the devil enter than one on
whose word she could not rely. Shortly after three weeks from the 25th of March had
elapsed my wife made a claim on O'Connor for the payment of what she considered
due from him for three weeks’ lodging, and summoned him at the county court,
Osborne-street, Whitechapel, to recover the same. The day previous to the time for appear-
ing to the summons in the court O’Connor came to Minver-pgnce, and paid 30s. for the three
weeks to me, in the presence of my wife, and apologized for- not taking the lodgings, sayi
that he was ashamed at the idea of giving my wife so much trouble, and truste | we sho 5
not be bad friends in consequence. I replied, that it was a matter of indifference, as the
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state, and said to me, “ You cur-hearted villain, you have prevented me carrying out my plan.
You rwill atand for dt, for it never will be found oat. | am wow quite certain -he: never
come here agnin.” I then asked her what would become of her soul if she eommitted an act
of murder? to which she answered, “ We have nosou}; after we are dead we are like-a lump
of clay, and there is no more thought of us, and we shall never suffer hereafter for murdering
that man.” The next morning she said to Massey, “ O’Connor was here last evening, and 4
informed him that you were out with your gister. I wish you'to write me a note to Q’Con-
nor.” He said “Certainly, but you must diotate.” Massay then sat down and said, “ Now,
Mrs. Manning, what do you wish me tosay ?” and then, at her dictation, he wrote as follows :—.

-4 Dear 0'Connor,—After arriving home late last evening, being informed that you had
been at my house, I was truly sorty that mn\\d riiyself were not able to be at home
to dinmer.” We went to our uncké’s in the n, and while we were there he was taken
dangeronsly ], and my sister was obliged to remain the whole of the night, but we shall be
most happy 6fyoar society someday next week. Trusting thit you are quite well, 1 am,
dear O'Connor, yours very truly, o - : “W. Massey.™

On Wednesday, about two days afterwards, my wife wrote to him fo come and dine. He:
never came until ten o)clock that evenjng, as he did not reoeive the mote before-seven. He:
was aceompanied by the witness Walsh, and appeared to be quite drunk.’ He luid on the .
sofa and seemed to be jn a fainting ptate. . My wife got a hottle of eau de cologne and aleiéd
it $p his nose and washed his face, and implored Mr. Walsh to go straight home with him.
We all shook hands, and parted as the best of friends, The next day, Thursday, the day of
the murder, at nine o’clock A%, ghe wrote a nete to Q’Conmor, and took it to-the -Post-office
herself, telling me that there waa:a certainty of his getting it. The note was as'follows:— -
«Dear 0"Connor,—I shall be happy 1o ‘sce you to dine with us’ this ‘day at half-past five.
I trust 'you aré q'uiuﬁgﬂ." Yours tru.ly,’ Tt e ‘“Mf‘:mm L‘mec."
e i

e " ) , ' i ) , Yoa g Lo
He came at ten minutes past five on the Thursday, August 9, previous to which she had Jaid:
the table frfr five, with phl;”dls% goyera:and ever{thini down. Nothing had been prepared in
the way of food. ‘When he’ entered the house, he askeqd where Mr. and Miss Maasey- -were,
;;:2 my wife gaid they were up-stairs dressing for dinner. - He thep inquired how leng they:
ad been up-stairs. %{ wife replied, they bad only just gone up—they saw him come tothe
doar. At this time Massey was ‘not jn the house, nor was his sister even in Londbn; and-
even-to the present hour it is my belief that she has never seen-Loudom at all. My wife
asked O’Counar fo go down stairs and wash his hands, which he declined. fShe said, “ Pa«
trick, Miﬂﬁég:sf‘y 1 a very particular young lady.” He had then been in the house twenty
%y wile

minutes. pressed him tv go down and wash his hands, and I heard higa go down
the stairs, being at the time in my bedroomn washing. In sbout a minute after he had de-
scended, J hieard the report of a pistol. My wife then came up: to.me and said, “ Thank God,
I have made him all right at last; it never will be found.out, 88 we are on such exceedingly
good terms.  No one will ever have -the least' suspicion of my mardering him.”- I replied,
“T am quite certain you wil| be ?mpgcd for this act.”  She replied, “ It 'will not be you who
will Bave to suffer; it will be me.” After shooting him, she said, “I think no more of
what 1" have done than if I had shot the cat that is on the wall.” Upon her coming
to me up-stairs she insisted on my 'going down jimmediately, and on my reaching
the’ Kitchen ‘I found O’Connor resping rom the grave. He moaned, and 1 never liked
him very well, and 1 battered in his sku]l with a ripping chisel. 8he took
from his trousers pocket the keys of his trunk and cashbox, and within ten minutes afterithe
marder, viz., tWenfy minutes’ to six,.she put on her bonnet and mantle, and proceeded -to his
house. I'then'said it would be impogaib{: for me to stay in the house, and [ went out into
the ' garden, and smokéd -a pipe on the wall, and conversed with the Jandlord of the
next house, and went ouf into his outhouse to mx:l?w«a purchase of some rige he had there.
My wife returned from O'Conror’s, letting herself in with ‘the streat door key. This-was
about twenty minutes tg 8 p.u. :Bhe appeared much excited, and said, “ I have the whale
of the ‘shares und the .bonds iith me. I knocked at the door wlien I went to O'Gonsor's:
housé, and Miss Arnies let me in. ] then asked if 0’Connor was at heme. Mijss Armes snid, -
¢No ; he ig iicf "home from "the -docks yet;’ upon which I asked leave ;t;gd up-stairs, as 1
had come fo ses him on business. I went up to his room, and remained there:for fifteen
minutes. * I walked to his’bedroom, unlockéd hig trunk, and togk all the shares I'conld see—
his t\‘v';oe"%old ‘watchies and gold chains. * I'saw the banker’s book, by which:it appeazed there,
were 00 in the banker’s hands. The book was useless, 5o L did not take it. I remuived -
at Miss Armes’ about an hour and ten ininutes, and then returned home.” She then sorted -
the shares, and, while doing so, said she had not the foreign bonds, which were worth
between £3000 and £4000, and she was determined to go again on the following day to ffet
these {oreign bonds, as she was quite sure he had them, ag. she had -seent them before sheknew
him (Manning). = She repeated her visit on the following day to Miss Armnes),.and' retarned -
greatly excited.at not having found.the abject of her search. She said she had purchased a cake
of Miss Armet, remarking to her that it was ve stranng'Conmr -had not come homeé} ‘to
which Miss Avmes assented ; my wife dediring her to be kind enongh to tell him that shehad
been two évenings to see him, as she desired to do so upon important business, My wife
remained there about the same-time as on the previous day: Om Saturday she told me she

R U]




16

wanted me to go to a sharebroker’s with some Eastern Counties’ shares. I asked her what
‘was the use of doing 8o, as I should have to commit a forgery? She replied,  The man is
dead, so there can be no witness against you.” Upon which I said it would be impossible to
sell the shares now, as fifteen days’ notice was required before a sale could be effected. She
then said 1 could borrow money on them, and I went to Messrs. Killick and Co., share-~
brokers, and wanted to borrow £120 upon them. Theznnked who had referred me to them,
and I replied, “ A gentleman who had' been in the habit of doing business with them.” I
was then asked myname and residence, to which I replied “ Patrick O’Connor, 21, Greenwood-
street, Mile-end-road.” I was told that £120 counld not be advanced on the shares, but that I
might bave £110, and that the rate of interest was 5 per cent., and for six weeks. I replied,
¢:] should not want the money more than two months;” and they said the charge would be the
same if I had it only fora They then produced a document, which I signed “ Patrick
O'Connor, 21, Greenwood-street, Mile-end-road.” They gave mea £100 note and 10 sovereigns.
1 immediately went tothe Baok of England and had the note changed for 50 sovereigns and five
£10 notes, and returned home and gave the money to my wife. ere were other shares with
O’Connor’s name on them, and my wife said I had better take them to another broker and
tarn them into money. The last-named shares I believe to have been some of the Leicester-
shire and Birmingham, an India bond for £5, and about six scrips of the Bordeaux Railway.
1 declined woom])ly with this last request. She declared there was not the least danger as
the man was , and she became much excited and insisted on my gowg. I puton my
hat, and went out as if ﬁoing to a broker; and returned in about two hours, and said I had
been to a broker (thongh I had not), who would advance money on the shares on Thursday.
She remarked it was strange he would not do so then, and that she had her doubts as to my
having been to a broker. On Monday, the 13th of At I left home at nine in the morn-
ing, and returned about half-past 12, when my wife told me two persons had been there in-
uiring both for O’Connor and myself; that she did not know them, but believed they were
ustom-house officers. I replied it was my firm opinion ehegewere policemen in plain cloth-
ing, and that as sure as she was a woman we should both apprehended for this crime.
She replied, “Don’t tell me that, or I shall faint.” 1 then sat down to dinner, and
after dinner she said I had better to Bainbridge’s, the broker, and get him
to come and take the furniture that night, so that we might take our departure by the
train to Liverpool. and go thence by steam-packet to New York. I left at half-past two for
Bainbridge’s, and upon my quitting she said she would join' me in about an hour and a half.
After waiting about two hours, I sent the servant to Minver-place, but she did not find the
house. I then went home, and found my wife was gone away in a cab with all her boxes. I
went through a neighbour’s house, and found my own back door wide open, and that ever;-
thing, except the furniture, had been taken away; and 1 was, therefore, left penniless. In
about half an hour I returned to Bainbridge’s, and told Mrs. Bainbridge that m; wife had
started for the seaside, but I thought I should remain with them a fortnight. I asked the'
terms, and was told they were the same that Massey paid. 1 remained there till Wednesday
morning, when 1 declared my intention of going into the country for a month or so; and
sent Bainbridge’s girl for a cab, and quitted the house at half-past seven o’clock, but did not
tell the cabman where to drive to till he had gone a quarter of a mile down the street. I then
told him to go to the South-Western station, where I took a ticket for Southampton, and left
that place at midnight by the packet, and reached Jersey in twelve hours, and went to the
Navy Arms Hotel. :

e remainder of the statement it will be unnecessary to give, as it merely referred to
the proceedings at Jersey, and had nothing whatever to do with the crime. He stated,
however, “ that after his wife returned from Mr. O’Connor’s on the night of the murder,
she went down stairs with a lnga pair of scissors, and cut off the whole of his clothes
and buried them, as well as the slippers that were upon the corpse; and then she got
a strong piece of cord, and they both tied the legs back to the haunches ; and having
done so they put the body in the hole and covered it with lime, and then trod the earth in,
which occupied a considerable time, and they did not retire till nearly midnight, and the next
morning they again set to work at the grave, and concluded it about 11 o’clock, and then the
wife said, ‘ Thank God we are safe; it is over; no one will think of looking there for him.’
About a fortnight before weﬁunrchased a '?int and a half of vitrol, and this was thrown over
the body before the lime. My wife also frequently expressed her pleasure at O’Connor being
dead, and said that he was the greatest villain that ever lived, and she said she would put no
money out to interest. She afterwards said it would never be found out unless throuch my
nervousness, and if any one came the would answer them, as she had the nerve of a horse,
8he likewise said she was sorry she had not read prayers over the hody.”

This remarkable statement concluded in the folgoving words :—
“Idoh solemnly declare that the foregoing account, as written by the Rev. W. 8,
Roe, the chap! at my suggestion, is just and true.

“ Condemned cell, Horsemonger-lane, Nov. 9, 1849,
¢ Signed in the presence of— “W. J. Rog, G. HALLETT, S. DEALE.”

¢ FREDERICK (GEORGE M.umnm.

Printed and Published by WiLL1AX MAnk CLARK, 17, Warwick-lane, Paternoster-row, London,
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